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_in the Charles 1., was defeated by
| Sir Hardress r Johu Berkeley and Col.
L Slt%:l;r  been sent into Cornwall, in the autumn
: .}E 1649, to enc. their friends to take up arms for

. Charles TL; were seized at Col. Trevanion's house, and
= m risoners to 'Lmo In 1650, the Scilly islands

b against the parliament by a considerable bod
of English and Irish forces. In May 1651, .e\dn:lirasjr
Sir George gh; acting for the parliament, took-all

these islands, excepting St. Mary's, which was not sur-
rendered until June. In 1667, the Dutch made an at-
tempt to land near Cawland, in this county, but were
driven back by the infantry on ghore; they also made
an attempt on Fowey harbour, but were repulsed.
~ Cornwall is within the diocese of Exeter, and pro-
vince of Canterbury, and forms, together with three
parishes in Devonshire, an archdeaconry, comprising
the deaneries of East, Kerrier, Penwith, Powder, Pyder,
Trigg-Major, Trigg-Minor, and West, and containing two
hundred and three parishes, of which eighty-five are rec-
tories, ninety-six vicarages, and twenty-two perpetual
curacies; there are also three donatives, and several
chapels : the spiritual court is held at Bodmin every
second Friday, except during the Easter and Christmas
holidays ; and the archdeacon's visitations are held an-
nually, about a month after Easter, at Launceston,
Ligkeard, Bodmin, Truro, Helston, and Penzance. The
office of rural dean, which in many parts of the kingdom
has become nearly nominal, is in Cornwall an eflicient
office : the rural deans are appointed annually, make
regular visitations to every church within their deanery,
and report the state of each at the archdeacon's visita-
| tions, For civil purposes the county is divided into the
nine hundreds of East, Kerrier, Lesnewth, Penwith,
b Powder, Pyder, Stratton, Trigg, and West, in which are
gixteen borough and market towns, viz., Bodmin, Bos-
siney, Callington, Camelford, East Looe, Fowey, Helston,
Launceston, Liskeard, Lostwithicl, Penryn, St, Ives, St.
Mawes, Saltash, Trégoney, and Truro; four boroughs
which have no market, vie., Newport, St. Germans,
St. Michaels, and West Looe ; and fifteen market towns
which are mot horoughs, viz., Boscastle, Camborne,
Falmouth, Grampound, Marazion, Mevagissey, Padstow,
Penzance, Polperro, Redruth, St. , St. Austell, St,
Columb, St. Day, and Stratton, the above towns,
ten are sea-ports, viz,, Falmouth, Fowey, Looe, Mara-
zion, Mevagissey, Padstow, Penryn, Penzance, Polperro,
and St Ives ; besides which there are the smaller ports
of Bude, Charlestown, Hayle, Helford, Porth, Port-
Ieaac, Portreath, or Basset's Cove, and Trevaunance,
P ‘knight.mmedto parliament for the shire,
representatives for each of the twenty boroughs,

psessions, &t Bodmin ; the: Easter
0 ; and the Epiphany and Mid-
: .tlmwithul. The county
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ment upon the eldest son of the king.
government of the county is vested in the
has his chancellor, attorney-general, sc
and other officers, and his court of excheg!
appointment of sheriffs, &c, The important
the mining trade are under a separate jurisdiction, f
miners beigng. by ancient privilege Mh. he:
by Edward IIL., exempt from all other civil jurisdictic
than that of the stannary courts, except in cases
land, life, or limb. At the head of this jurisdietio
the lord-warden of the stannaries, under
vice-warden ; the final appeal being to the d
council. The vice-warden's court, held genevall,
month, is a court of equity for all matters relati
the tin mines and trade, from which no writ
lies to the courts at Westminster, but there is
to the lord-warden, and from him to {he duke
his council. Issues are frequently directed by the vice-
warden to be tried in the stannary Mm are
held at the end of every three wecks (except in the
stannary of Foymore, in which there is ely any bu-
siness for the court), before the steward of each stanna-
ryand a jury, for determining on all civil petions M
within the stannaries, in which either the tiff or de-
fendant is a privileged tinner ; but the decision of each of
these courts is subject to an appeal to the vice-warden,
and from him to the superior authorities, Henry VIL,
on confirming their ancient privileges, granted that no
new laws uffecting the miners should be enncted by the
duke and his council, without the consent of twenty-four
persons, called stannators, six being chosen out of each
of the four stannaries, or mining districts, of Fo re
Blackmore, Tywarnhaile, and Penwith and Kerrier. :
stannators for Foymore are chosen by the mayor an
corporation of Lostwithiel, those for Blackmors by the
muyor and corporation of Launceston, those for Ty-
warnhaile by the mayor and corporation of Trure,
those for Penwith and Kerrier by the mayor and corpo-
ration of Helston ; they are some of the principal gen-
tlemen of property in the mining districts : on asser
bling, they elect a speaker, and their D
a stunnary parliament. These parliaments
convened occasionally by the lord-warden, o
cumstances of the times have required new ki
revision of the old ; the last met at Truro, in 1
continued by adjournments until Septem
The stannary prison is at Lostwithiel, w
records of the stannaries were kept prev
being burned during the parlinmentary war,
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of the annual revenue of the duchy; in 181 s o
£22,000, of which, £8,500 arose from the fin »
this county, and £3,500 from rents of . 2=
&c. The tin duty, before the late con -
amounted to pearly £ 14,000 per annum, A
The climate is remarkably salubrious, &y
coast, especially towards the Land's End, L
count of the superior mildness of the air, mui I~
to by invalids in the winter season. The sur 27k
eonnty is hilly, and a large portion of it et
uncultivated heaths and moors. The moo %
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-eight feet ; Kil hill, one thousand mdcud:y
feet ; Henhomugh, one thousand and thirty-
md-Cadmbnmngh. one thousand and eleven
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waters from the surrounding hills,
grmmda, through which the great roads chiefly
pamtadnmupact; bat there is much beau-
ﬁﬁll.smymthe southern coast, particularly at
it and West Looe, Fowey, and Polperro, and on the

of the Lynher, near Trematon castle, and Nottar-
Falmouth bay and Mount's bay are considered

in beauty to any spot in Great Britain. The banks

‘the Tamar, in the neighbourhood of Calstock, Cothele,
Pentillie, &c., abound with fine scenery, The surface of
the ground in many parts of the mining district has
Qnmg:ut.ly disfigured, particularly by the stream-works
mcﬁuni ve ages, Some of the most remarkable and
.Seenes oceur a hold line of broken

fErge

DA groups ol gra-
e rocks at the Land's End, Cape Cornwall, and Castle
the rocks of schistus at Tin , and the stu-
rocks near Portreath, with a ﬁy perforation
Tabbin's Hole. The rocks of serpentine at Kynan's

mear the Lizard Point, exhibit a variety of pic-
forms. The interior of the county also pre-
some remarkable objects in the rude masses of
ite, in varions fantastic shapes, which appear nbove
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to the depth of many feet with sea sand, which is
of very minute fragments of sea shells, or
m appears whnbunwhrﬁnw ‘
of the sea at a remote period. The sea has
ably encroached upon the coast, within the
years, in the hundreds of Stratton
cially near Bude harbour, where the
wasting the sand hills, The
vails in the greater part of the county is that
of stratified rock usually called slate, or schistus, but
known m the mining district by the name of
this, varying in substance and in colour, is
every part of Cornwall, with the exception
which are occupied by the granite, or mnu-
stone, the serpentine, and a few others of small extent.
Of the granite there are four considerable districts :
the first is nearly bounded by the church-towns of
Northill, St. Neots, Blisland, St. Breward, and St,
Clether ; the second by those of Llanlivery, Roach, St,
Denis, St. Stephens, St. Austell, and St. Blazey; the
third by those of Constantine, Crowan, Redruth, and
Stithians ; the fourth occupying the western extremity
of the county, from St. Paul and Zennor to the Land's
End ; and four small spots, one of them between Cal-
stock and Callington, another east of Redruth, a third
west of Breage, and St. Michael's Mount. In the south-
ern part of the district of Meneage the substratum
is serpentine, except a small portion of green-stone,
being a species of trap, in the parish of St. Keverne.
There are also three narrow veins of what is called ire-
stone, or iron-stone, two of them bo the granite
of the Land's End toward the east and west, the third
bounding the granite in the neighbourhood of Redruth,
to the north-west, Some thin beds of limestone occur
alternately with the slate near Padstow, and in the
parishes of Carantoc and Lower St. Columb ; and there
are some igolated strata of limestone between Liskeard
and the Tamar. Beds of clay of various colours are
also found in several parts,

Some districts produce, an abundance of corn, pnr-
ticularly that part extending from Endellion to'St. Co-
lumb on the north coast, thst called Meneage, the neigh-
bourhoods of Burian and St. Germans, the lands near
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and Stoke-Climsland

to ﬂlﬂ:e 1 ect which the
atmosphere, the harv
midland mnﬂu Nearly a
part of the county, from one hun-
ifty ousand to two hundred thousand acres,
of unenclosed waste lands, which are appropri-
to ino other purpone than as a scanty pasture for
“inferior breed of sheep, and for goats, throughout
year; and about ten thousand acres to the summer
pasture of cattle and sheep. Many of the valleys
'dl wooded, particularly in the south-eastern part
the county, and in the vicinity of Lostwithiel and
j and there are extensive tions at Tre-
golhn;n, Clowance, Tehidy, Port-Eliot, Carclew, &e. : the
princlpﬂ landowners having of late directed their at-
. tention to planting, the face of the ¢ounty, in the course
of twenty or thirty years, will present extensive wood-
land scenery, both useful and ornamental. Much of
the waste land in the mining district has been rendered
more valuable by assigning on lease, for ninety-nine
years, determinable on three lives, to the operative miners,
portions of about three acres each, at an annual rental of
ten shillings, on condition that they build a cottage and
‘cultivate the land, Itis worthy of observation, that the
common sea-rash, which is very abundant on the north-
ern coast, is plant.ed there, ns the only means of arrest-
ing, by the spread of its fibrous roots, the progress of the
moving heaps of sand.  Several plmt.a indigenous to the
south-eastern parts of Europe grow wild in this county.
The Devonshire breed of cattle, more or less mixed,
prevails throughout Cornwall; those of the larger sort,
which are very numerous, are sold annually to graziers
and contractors: the native cattle are very small and
hardy, black, short-horned, and thick-boned; draught
oxen are much used. Several mules, too, are bred and
employed in the mining district, where also’ are many
goats, these animals bei mur.h more numerous in
Cornwall than in any part of South Wales, The Cornish
choughs, once so abundant, and so well known as having
afforded an armorial device to many of the Cornish
gentry, have become rather scarce,
Cornwall has been celebrated for the produce of its
ﬂn mines from very remote antiquity. Strabo, He-
« rodotus, and other ancient writers, relate that the
Pheenicians, and after them the Greeksand the Romans,
traded for tin to Cornwall and the Scilly islands; under
the name of the islands Cnniw'idas, from a very early
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ducedl was fourteen thousand and ninety-

eight blocks; in 1824, twenty tboumdthnew-
dred and ten; in 1825, twenty-four thousand four hun--
dred and seventy-nine; and in 1826, e

thousand seven hundred and eighty-seven. At the

Dr. Berger, there were twenty-eight tin mhlel-ﬂllll
in operation in Cornwall, of which seven were in
the parish of St, Agnes, four in that of Wendron,
three in Gulval, and two each in Lelant, Redruth, and
Perran-Zabuloe; besides which there were thirteen
mines producing tin and copper, of which four were
in the parish of Redruth, four in Gwennap, three
in St, Agunes', and two in St. Neot's; and one mine
worked for tin and cobalt in Madron.  Drakewall's tin'
mine, on Hingeston down, in the parish of Calstock; is
said to be the oldest mine now wrought, having been in
operation about one hundred and The
principal tin mines are, Huel-Vor, in the paruh of
Breagne; Poldice, in the parish of Gwennap; Huel-
Reeth, in the parish of Lelant; and Beam, in the parish
of Roche: tin-ore is also found in beds usually tho
diluvial; the most extensive deposits of this

occurring at Carnon, in the parish of Feock ; Pentéwan,
in the .parish of St. Ewe; and the Gorse and Fore
moors, in the parishes of Roche and St. Columb. The
mineral rights of tin in the duchy manors were, about
fifteen years ago, sold for a term of years. mmm
has always been smelted in the county: in the

1705 o patent was obtained for smelting it in iron
furnaces. Soon afterwards reverberatory furnaces were
introduced ; and the blowing-houses, in which the metal
had before been smelted, fell into disuse, Furlo?f
purposes, however, particularly for fixing the

the scarlet dye, the tin smelted in blowing-houses is
esteemed more valuable than the other, and it bears
a higher price: the smelting establishments are prin-
cipally at St. Austell's, Hayle, Huel-Vor, Penzance, Pau
heath, and Truro.

The workmgofmpperminuwmmm
on in this county to any great extent umtil the
close of the seventeenth century, since which the
quantity of ore raised has been gradually: ‘#0
that, in the year 1524, were obtained one hundred and
ten thousand tons of ore, producing eight thounadfm
hundred and seventeen tons of copper, of the value of
£748,2538; in 1525, one hundred and ¢ - thou-
sand seven hundred and sixty-eight of ore, producing
nine thousand one hundred and of copper, of
value of £798,700; in 1826, one hundred and twenty-
eight thousand four bundred and fifty-nine of ore, pro-

ten tb,wnnd four hundred and ﬂﬂyaf w
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tion, of which eleven were in thé parish of Gwennap,
gix in that of St. Agnes, five in that of Camborne, four in
‘that of Gwinear, four in that of St, Hillary, three in each
of the parishes of Germoe, Crowan, and , and two
in St. Neots, the remainder being scattered singly in
other hes.  Besides these were the mines already
described as being worked both for copper and tin; a
mine in Gwinear, for copper and silver; and one in
Camborne, for copper and cobalt. The most productive
copper mines in 1813 were, one near Hayle, one near
St. Austell, one in the parish of Camborne, four in Gwen-

, ome in Crowan, one in St.Agnes’, and one in
astock; the two first were the most profitable, it
being calculated that the one near St. Austell yielded
about £2000 a month, and that near Hayle about half
a8 much: the¢ Huel-Damul mine, in the parish of
Gwennap, in the course of about seéven years, yielded a
profit to the pn s of about £230,000: the
monthly expense of working Dbleoath mine is about
£4000 ; and that of the Consolidated mines £6000.
There are¢ about one hundred and twenty steam-en-
gu employed in drawing the water, rubbish, and

out of the mines, and in working the apparatus
for crushing the ore : the steam power in operation at
the Consolidated mines, in the parish of Gwennap,
is equal to that of two thousand five hundred horses ;
there are several engines of four hundred and sixty

m each. Copper-ore is said to have been
sm in Cornwall at Polruddan, in the parish

. Austell : about the year 1754, some gentlemen
borne erected furnaces for smelting the ore at
in that parish; but, for the convenience of
eoul, the works were removed to Hayle, where
the only copper smelting-houses in the county
about thousand tons of ore are smelted

six
but the greater part is still shipped to be

518

e et
in the

parih of S Biaaey | Winly, he Gty
and Redruth,” in the parishes of Gwennap, Redruth,
Agnes, Stythinn, Kenwyn, and Kea W' th
“ Camborne,” in the parishes of Camborne and THogan ;
fifthly, the “ Huel-Vor," in the parishes of Crowan,
Breagne, Germoe, and Gwinear ; and

“ Western,” extending along the north
Lelant to the Land's End: in each of these there are
geveral mines, but there are also some in the interven-
ing tracts. The mineral rights of copper, lead, &c., in the
duchy manors were sold, about the year 1812, for a term
of thirty-one years. The mines are private property, and
are let during a term of years for a pecuniary considera-
tion, varying in amount from one-twelfth to one-thirtieth
of the produce. A debenture is allowed by government
on Norway timber and coal consumed in the mines.
The Cornish slate is a considerable article of commerce ;
the principal quarries are those on the southern coast,
those between Liskeard and the Tamar, those in the
parishes of Padstow and Tintagel, and the celebrated
quurry of Delabole, or Dennybal, in the parish of St,
Teath, the of which is held in the hi '
esteem, and is shipped in large quantities from Port-
Isaac, about five miles distant, both coastwise and to
the continent : this remarkable quarry was described
by Dr. Borlase, about sixty years ago, as being three
hundred yards long, one hundred yards wide, and forty
fathoms deep ; the quartz chrystals found in it are of
great brilliancy. There is 4 great quantity of stone
in various parts of the county suitable for building ;
it is principully taken from the porphyry dykes, or
courses, which traverse both the granite and slate strata,
in a direction from east to west ; the granite, or moor-
gtone, which abounds on the surface of the moors, has
of late years been exported for the érection of bridges
and other public buildings. An abundance of felspat
clay, resulting from the decomposition of granite, is
found in the parishes of Roche, St. Stephen, and St,
Denig, and is shipped, chiefly at the neighbouring port
of Charlestown, for the manufacture of china and fine
earthenware, A yellow sandy clay, which from its
resisting intense heat is called fire-clay, found near
Lelant, is sent to Wales for laying the bottoms of cop-
The abundance of fish on the coast, besides sup-
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e principal articles of export are tin, copper, and fish;
which may be added slate, granite, china-stone, china-
ay, and potatoes. The principal imports are coal,
ber, iron, hemp, and other articles of consumption
and fishing, besides a considerable quantity
grain and flour, grocery, and various manufactured
ds. With respect to the state of the harbours, the
mouths of nearly all the tide rivers on the northern
coast bave been nearly choked with sand cast up by the
, or drifted in by the north-westerly winds.
principal rivers are the Tamar, the Lynher or
Lyner, the Tide or Tidi, the Leaton, the East Looe,
the Duloe, the Fawy, the Fal, the Hele or Heyl, and
the Alan or Camel. The Tamar rises in the parish of
Moorwinstow, about three miles from the Bristoi chan-
nel, and, after receiving the Tavy on the east, and the
Lynher creck on the west, constitutes the fine harbour
of Hamoaze ; then, after forming two large creeks on
the west, and one on the east, it falls into the English
channel, between Mount-Edgecumbe and the lands of
Stonehouse and St, Michael's island, in Plymouth Sound :
its course is about forty miles, nearly south, in which it
reéceives numerous small vivers, and forms from the sea
up to its source (excepting only for the space of about
three miles) the boundary between this county and
Devonshire. The Lynher rises about eight miles west of
Launceston, and flows south-south-east, near Callington,
to Noddetor, or Notter, bridge, where it becomes naviga-
ble, and spreads into the Lynher creek; four miles
further it falls into the Tamar, after a course of about
twenty-four miles, The Tide, or Tidi, rises on the south
side of Carraton hill, near Liskeard, and becomes navi-
two miles above St. Germans, below which town
is called St. German's creck, which forms a junction
with the Lynher creck. The Leaton rises about four
miles north-east of Liskeard, and, passing near that
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becomes navigable at Polbrock : flowing
where it is about a mile broad, it falls into the
about two miles below. An act of

sea
was
passed, in 1774, for making a navigable canal from Bude

harbour to join the river Tamar, in the parish of Cal-
stock ; and another in 1769, for making a navigable
canal, to be called the Polbrock canal, from Guinea
port, near Wade bridge, to Dunmeer bridge, in the
parish of Bodmin, with a collateral cut to, or near,
Ruthern bridge, in the same. parish,

The great mail-coach road from London to Falmouth,
Penzance, &c., enters Cornwall at Poulston bridge, one
mile and three quarters from Launceston, and passes

h that town, Bodmin, Truro, the borough of Mi-
chell, and Penryn. The road to Penzance branches off
between Truro and Penryn, at the village of Perranwell,
and joins the turnpike road from Penryn to Helston, six
miles from the latter town, through which and Mara-
zion it passes to Penzance, The great road from Lon-
don to the Land's End, by way of Devonport, enters
Cornwall at Tor-point, and passes near St. Germans,
through Liskeard, Lostwithiel, St, Austell, and Gram-
pnunncf, to Truro, where it joins the other great road.
The mail-coach roads are very good; there is little tra-
velling on the cross roads.

Cornwall abounds with rude monuments of itz abo-
riginal inhabitants, much resembling those found in Ire-
land, Wales, and North Britain, consisting of large un-
wrought stones placed crect, either singly or in cireles,
or with others laid across; and barrows and tumauli;

cular enclosures of stone, or earth, within which are
rows of seats, having formed amphitheatres, originally
designed for the exhibition of various sports, and where,
in later times, the Cornish plays were acted: these are
called rounds, or Plan an guare, the place of sport.

muli and barrows, the latter commonly culled by

British name of cairns, are found in all parts of

probably sepulchral, is found in
cromlech, which consists of a large flat
zontally upon several others fixed upright in
and is vincially called the quoit, or
quoit. ancient instruments
commonly .called celts, have
abundantly than in any o
been discovered, consisting of gallerie _
yarious directions, formed of u

laid across. In the year 1749, a
coins, believed to be British, were
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[ em coeval with the time of the Romans.
‘Roman antiquities consist for the mo:.stn
&, which of late years have been discovered in
nee in the western part of the county; and of
spear-heads, swords, and other weapons of mixed metal,
which have frequenﬂmen found in the ancient mines
and stream-works. situntion of any of the Roman
stations has not been ascertained. Ancient roads, or
fragments of them, are visible in various parts of the
county : one of these, believed to be British, traverses
the hills, with barrows at intervals along its line, from
the Land's End towards Stratton and the north of Corn-
wall, passing near the great British station of Carnbré.
Two Roman roads enter the county from Devonshire,
one of which was a continuation of the great road from
Dorchester and Exeter ; the other appears to lead from
Torri and the northern part of Devonshire towards
Stratton. Several of the Cornish churches retain traces
of Saxon, or early Norman, architecture, some of them
exhibiting curious imens ; the most considerable of
which in the church of St. Germans, anciently
the cathedral of the bishoprick of Cornwall, which was
founded in 614, and annexed to the see of Crediton, in
the county of Devon, in 1031 : most of these churches
appear to Have been rebuilt in the fifteenth and six-
teenth centuries: the towers are extremely well con-
structed, and those of St. Austell and Probus are highly
' ted, In the churches of St. Kew, St. Neot, and
St, Winnow, are considerable remains of ancient painted
Several others contain richly ornamented sereens,

, pulpits, &c. Of the ancient fonts, many are

ue Saxon style. There is a great number
chral monuments of the sixteenth century, con-
of large slabs of slate, with effigies carved in bas-
Before the Reformation there were about twenty
houses in Cornwall, including two Alien
, and one preceptory of the Knights Hospitallers ;
e were also eleven colleges, and seven ancient hos-
pitale: the monastic remains are few, and, excepting
e of St. German's priory, not remarkable. Small
apels, or oratories, erected over wells or springs to
extraordinary properties have been attributed,
most parts of the county, the greater part
in ruing; and in every part of it, are anci-
crosses, not in the churchyards, but
the moors, and in other solitary situations.
are also, particularly in the narrowest parts of
county, from St. Michael's Mount to the Land's End,
geveral rude circular buildings on the summits
of very remote antiquity, and still denominated
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rans across from the edge of onecliff to that of another,
with a ditch on the side. There are considerable
remains of a vallum called the Giant's Hedge, which
appears to have been originally about seven miles and
a half in length, extending in an irregular line from the
river Looe, a little above the town of West Looe, to

n. .
La%f peculiar customs still observed, the following are
the most remarkable. The lighting of bonfires on the
eve of St.John the Baptist's day, and on that of St,
Peter's day; the custom among the reapers of i
up the last handful of corn, and parading about wit
it; and that of saluting the apple-trees at Christmas,
which prevails also in Devonshire ; to which may be
added, the Furry at Helston, and the Bodmin riding,
described in the account of those places, The Cor.
nish were formerly much addicted to sports and
pastimes, especially to the miracle-play, wrestling, and
hurling ; the practice of wrestling, after that particular
mode, still prevails here more generally than in any
other part of England. The miracle-plays having
been composed in the Cornish language, a dialect of
the ancient British, have not survived its extinction :
that language was generally spoken until the time
of Henry VIIL, when, by the introduction of the
English Liturgy, it gradually fell into disuse, and towards
the closeof the last century it had entirely ceased to be
spoken.

CORNWELL, a parish in the hundred of Cuap-
LINGTON, county of Oxrorp, 4 miles (W.) from Chip-
ping-Norton, containing 97 inhabitants, The living is
a discharged rectory, in the archdeaconry and diocese
of Oxford, rated in the king's books at £7.4.2., and
in the patronage of the Crown,

CORNWOOD, a parish in the hundred of ErmMing-
TON, county of Devox, 5 miles (N, E. by E.) from Earl's
Plympton, containing 1057 inhabitants. Theliving is a
vicarage, in the archdeaconry of Totness, and diocese of
Exeter, rated in the king's books at £33.4.7., and in
the patronage of the Bishop of Exeter. The church,
dedicated to St, Michael, contains three stone stalls.
The ground is.hgly,with several small mountain streams
encompassin e parish, the river Yealm running
thmugﬁ a%d the Erme separating it from the adjoin-
ing parish of Harford. A charity school is supported
by subscription, aided by an endowment of £ 10 per an-
num, left by the late vicar, the Rev, Duke Young, who
also bequeathed £20 per annum for medical assistance .
to poor people not receiving parochial relief. Cattle
fairs are held on the first Monday in May, and the
fourth Monday in September,

CORNWOR ,a parish in the hundred of Corz
RIDGE, county of Drvon, 4% miles (8. E. by 8.) fro
Totuess, containing 607 inhabitants. The 1§

i vicarage, in the of T
diocese of Exeter,rated in the

dowed with £200 royal bov , the
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ground. The river Harborne, separating it from Ash-
n, on the north, falls into the D?rt, which then

'ms the line of separation from Stoke-Gubriel, for a
short distance, it a kind of peninsula, At
Tuckerhay, a hamlet in this parish, is a flax-manufac-
tory. There is a school for poor children, male and
female, founded in 1609, by Dame Elizabeth Harris, and
endowed tby her with land producing about £25 per an-
num.  Sir John Peters bequeathed a small sum from
the great tithes of ‘the parish, to be distributed to poor
people not receiving parochial relief.

CORPUSTY, a parish in the southern division of
the hundred of Ereinemam, county of Norvork, 6
miles (W.N.W.) from Aylsham, containing 451 inha-
bitants. The living is a discharged vicarage, in the
archdeaconry and diocese of Norwich, rated in the
king's books at £4. 12. 84., endowed with £8500 royal
bounty, and £200 parliamentary grant, and is seques-
trated. The church is dedicated to St. Peter.

CORRIDGE, a township in that part of the parish
of HarTeurn which is in the western division of
Morrers ward, county of NoRTHUMBERLAND, 11
miles (W. by 8,) from Morpeth, containing 27 inhabit-
ants,

CORRINGHAM, o parish in the hundred of Ban-
#TABLE, county of Essex, 3 miles (E.) from Horndon
on the Hill, containing 235 inhabitants, The living is a
rectory, in the archdeaconry of Essex, and diocese of
London, rated in the king's books at £22. 13. 4., and
in the patronage of the Rev. W. R, Stephenson. The
church, dedicated to St. Mary, has a tower apparently
Norman, with two tiers of plain round arches; at the
upper end are some pierced windows, and a low wooden
spire. This parish is situated between Tilbury Fort
and Canvey Island, and is bounded on the south by
the Thames.

CORRINGHAM, a parish comprising the villages
of Great and Little Corringham, in the wapentake of

, Cornineuam, parts of LinpsEy, county of LincoLw,
4 miles (E. by N.) from Gainsborough, containing 479
inhabitants, The living is a vicarage, in the peculinr
jurisdiction and patronage of the Prebendary of Cor-
ringham in the Cathedral Church of Lincoln, rated in
the king's books at £12. The church is dedicated to
St. Lawrence, There is a place of worship for Wesleyan
Methodists,

CORSCOMBE, a parish in the hundred of Beamins-
rer-Forum and Repmonr, Bridport division of the
county of Dorser, 34 miles (N, E.) from Beaminster,
containing 632 inhabitants. The living is a rectory,
in the archdeaconry of Dorset, and diocese of Bristol,
rated in the king's books at £21. 3. 4, and in the pa-

of the Rev, J, Munden. The church, dedicated

,is m neat modern structure, erected about

ied and fifty years since. The village is si-

“on the north gide of a hill, and commands ex-
tensive views over the county of Somerset to the Bristol
channel, and the mountains of Wales. The court-house,

belonging to John Disncy, Esq., lord of the manor,
and now ocenpiéd as a furm-house, is nearly encom-

passed by at, over which there was formerly a

Jag K

-in the lower division of the huni
ey county of Grovckster, b
ewent, containing 446 inhabit-
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ants, The living is a discharged vicarage, in the arch-
deaconry and“c]l:iﬁeese of Gloucester, rated in the king's
books at £6, 2. 9., and in the patronage of the Crown.
The chuoreh is dedicated to St. M . This parish is
beautifully situated, and has recently been improved by
the enclosure of upwarids of one thousand three hundred
acres of land, which anciently abounded with wood, and
was called “ Corse Lawn."” '

CORSENSIDE, a parish in the north-eastern divi-
sion of TinpaLeE ward, county of NORTHUMBERLAND,
5% miles (N.E. by N.) from Bellingham, containing 487
inhabitants. The living is a discharged vi , m the
archdeaconry of Northumberland, and diocese of Dur-
ham, endowed with £250 private benefaction, and £ 600
royal bounty, and in the patronage of Francis Tweddell,
Esq. The church, which formerly belonged to Haly-
stone priory, is a small ancient edifice, inconveniently
situated at the north-west end of the parish. The river
Reed passes through the centre of the parish, the soil on
its bauks being of a light gravelly nature, and the best
in the vicinity. Limestone and coal are found here,
and in the western part of the parish a lead mine was
formerly worked.

CORSHAM, u parish in the hundred of CuiprENn-
naMm, county of Wirrs, 4 miles (S.W, by W.) from
Chippenham, containing 2727 inhabitants. The living
is a discharged vicarage, in the peculiar jurisdiction of
the incumbent, rated in the king's books at £10. 16.,
and in the patronage of P. Methuen, Esq. The church,
dedicated to St, Bartholomew, is a large structure, con-
sisting of a4 nave, three aisles, and a chancel, with a
tower and spire in the centre, and a chapel separated
from the north aisle by a richly carved screen. There
are two places of worship for Independents, one for Bap-
tists, and a disused meeting-house, formerly belonging
to the Society of Friends. Corsham, or, as it is some-
times named, Corsham Regig, from King Etheired's
having had a villa here, is a considerable village, having
a separate jurisdiction, the bailiff of the manor, who
is chosen by the tenants from among themselves, being
vested with the power of sheriff and coroner within
the same. Before the Conquest, it was a lordship be-
longing to Tostig, Earl of Northumberland, and at the
time of the Norman survey it was held by the Crown ;
but in the reign of Henry III. it was possessed by that
sovereign's brother, Richard, Earl of Cornwall, who, as
well as his successors, granted and procured for it many
important and peculiar privileges, which were con-
firmed in later times, some of them being still enjoyed
by the inhabitants. Here was anciently an Alien priory, .
4 cell to the monastery of Marmonstier, in Touraine.
During the last century, Corsham was noted for its
manufacture of woollen cloths, which has beén entirely
discontinued ; though, with a view to the revival of its
disused market, Mr, Methuen built, in 1784, a market
or court-house, in the centre of the village, which con-
sists principally of one long street of well-built houses,
the situation being flat, dry, and salubrious. At the
south end is an hospital for six poor aged women,
erceted in 1688, to which a free school was formerly
attached ; it is under the government of a master, who

occupies an adjoining lodge, and who is appointed by

the Earl of Ruﬁlno:, 4 rgeindnnftsg foundress,

Lady ‘Hungerfo ct of Sir E. Hungerfo

Knts who;’alm bequeathed land produﬂ%l‘g zsoﬁ‘ an-._
3
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num for a school. Edward Hasted, Esq., the Ristorian
of the county of Kent, was master of this hospital,
and died there in 1512. Sir Richard Blackmore, a
physician and minor poet, was a native of this place.
A neat free school-house, for poor children of hoth
sexes, has recently been erected, at the expense of Paul
Methuen, Esq., the present lord of the manor. Fairs
for cattle are held on March 7th and September 4th.

CORSLEY, a parish comprising Great and Little
Corsley, in the hundred of Wanrminster, county of
Wivrs, 33 miles (W.N.W.) from Warminster, containing
1609 inhabitants. The living is a discharged rectory,
in the archdeaconry and diocese of Salisbury, rated in
the king's books at £11. 0. 10., and in the patronage of
the Marquis of Bath. The church ig dedicated to St.
Margaret. There is a bequest yiclding £9 per annum,
for the instruction of children.

CORSTON, a parish in the hundred of WeLLow,
connty of Somenser, 3§ miles {W.) from Bath, con-
taining 868 inhabitants, The living is a discharged
vicarage, in the archdeacenry of Bath, and diocese of
Bath and Wells, rated in the king's books at £6. 3. 9.,
endowed with £200 private benefaction, and £200 royal
bounty, and in the patronage of the Bishop of Bath
and Wells. The church is dedicated to All Saints, The
river Avon bounds the parish on the north east : cornua
ammngnis, und various petrified shells, abound in the
quarries here.

RSTON, a chapelry in that part of the parish
of Manmessury which is in the hundred of MaLmis-
sURY, county of Wivrs, 24 miles (S. by w.) from Malmes-
bury, containing 171 inhabitants, The chapel, dedi-
cated to All Saints, exhibits some portions of early

rlish architecture,

ORTON, a hamlet in the parish of PorTismam,
hundred of Usescomse, Dorchester division of the
county of Domrser, 6 miles (8. W.) from Dorchester,
The population is returned with the parish. Here was
formerly a chapel, which has long been desecrated, and
converted into a barn.

CORTON, a parish in the hundred of Murronrp
and LoreiNGLAND, county of Suvrork, 3 miles (N))
from Lowestoft, containing 375 inhabitants. The living
isa di vicarage, in the archdeaconry of Suffolk,
and diocese of Norwich, endowed with £600 royal
bounty, and in the patronage of the Crown. The church,
dedicated to St. Bartholomew, is in ruins, the
porch and the lateral walls of the nave being nearly
with ivy, but divine service is still performed
in the chancel; h, from its beautiful tower, still
perfect, and which, from its elevated position, serves us
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after a severe storm in 1812. About the same time, a

part of the pelvis, or haunch bones, of the mammoth,

now in Mr. Sowerby's museum, London, together with

other antediluvian remains, were found half a mile

northward of the place,

CORTON, a township in the parish of Boyrox,
hundred of Hevressury, county of Wrurs, 21 miles
(8. E. by 8.) from Heytesbury. The population is re-
turned with the parish, -

CORTON, a hamlet in the parish of Crivre-Py-
rarp, hundred of Kinassrine, county of Wirts, 5
miles (N. E.) from Calne, The population is returned
with the parish. Here was formerly a chapel, now de-
molished.

CORTON-DENHAM, a parish in the hundred of
HoreTHORNE, county of SoMERSET, 4 miles (N.) from
Sherborne, containing 469 inhabitants. The living
is a rectory, in the archdeaconry of Wells, and dio-
cese of Bath and Wells, rated in the king's books
at £13. 9. 4., and in the patronage of E. B, Port-
man, Esq. The church is dedicated to St. Andrew.
Some workmen, in 1723, discovered a Roman urn in
the vicinity, containing about two quarts of coins, in
good preservation, of the emperors, from Valerian and
Galienus to Probus,

CORTON-HACKET, a parish in the upper division
of the hundred of Havrsaire, county of WoRCESTER,
5 miles (N. E.) from Bromsgrove, containing 187 inha-
bitants, The living is a perpetnal curacy, annexed to
the rectory of Northfield, in the archdeaconry and
diocese of Worcester. The church, dedicated to St,
Michael, i a small curious edifice, with a bell gable,
having some decorated and ornamented portions in the'
later style of English architecture,

CORYTON, a parish in the hundred of Lirrox,
county of Devox, 64 miles (N, by W.) from Tavistock,
containing 258 inhabitants. The living is a rectory, in
the archdeaconry of Totness, and diocese of Exeter,
rated in the king's books at £8, 13. 9., and in the
patro: of T. W. N, Newman, Esq. The church is
dedicated to St. Andrew.

COSBY, a parish in the hundred of GuraLAxTON,
county of LErcester, 6 miles (8. 8. W.) from Leices-
ter, contuining, with Little Thorpe, 883 inhabitants. The
living is a discharged vicarage, in the archdeaconry of
Leicester, and diocese of Lincoln, rated in the king's
books at £4. 15., endowed with £400 royal bounty, and
£200 parliamentary t, and in the patr of
Thomas Pares, Esq. The church is dedicated to St. -
Michael. '

COSFORD, a hamlet in the h of NewsoLp
upon Avon, Rughby division of the hundred of Knigar-
Low, county of Warwick, 8 miles (N. by W.) from
Rugby, containing 55 inhabitants. I
parish in the hundred of Creney,
county of Norraamrron, 14 mile (N. N. E)) from Stony-
Stratford, containing, with a portion of the hamlet of

old Su-:;f:nd, 559 hhnhl:n;. The living is a rec-
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ing the Ouse near its conflux with the Tow. A mineral

ing, named St, Vincent's or Finche's well, exists® in
US (ST.) and DAMIAN in the BLEAN, a
parish in the hundred of WurrsrasLe, lathe of St.
AvuGUSTINE, county of Kent, 2} miles (N. W. by N.)
from Canterbury, containing 438 inhabitants, The liv-
ing is & vicarage, in the archdeaconry and diocese of
Canterbury, rated in the king's books at £10, and in
the patronage of the Master of Eastbridge Hospital.
The church is dedicated to St. Cosmus and St. Damian.
There are four parcels of land within this parish which
are reputed to be within the ville of Christ Church,
the iuheritance belonging to the Dean and Chapter of
Canterbury.

" COSSAL, a parish in the southern division of the
wapentake of Broxrow, county of Norrincuam, 64
miles (W.N.W.) from Nottingham, containing 817 inha-
bitants, The living is a perpetual curacy, annexed to
the rectory of Wollaton, in the archdeaconry of Not-
tingham, and diocese of York, endowed with £200 pri-
vate benefaction, and £200 royal bounty, The Notting-
ham canal proceeds through this parish to the north-
ward, in a serpentine direction; and the river Erewash
runs on the west side, separating it from Derbyshire.
In the village is an hospital, founded by the ancient
family of Willoughby, for four old men and four old
women, who have coal, clothing, and two shillings per
week each : there is a small bequest for a free school.

COSSINGTON, a parish in the eastern division of
the. hundred of Goscorr, county of Leicesrer, 23
miles (S.E, by E.) from Mountsorrel, containing 237 in-
habitants, The living is a rectory, in the archdeaconry
of Leicester, and diocese of Lincoln, rated in the king's
hooks at £17. 7. 6., and in the patronage of T. Babing-
ton, Esq. The church is dedicated to All Saints, The
parish is bounded on the west and on the south by the
rivers Soar and Wreake, near which latter is a large
oblong tumulus, three hundred and fifty feet long, one
hundred and twenty broad, and forty high, and very
steep, extending due north and south, called “ Shipley
hill,” supposed to be the monument of some Danish

ngCOSSING'I'ON. a parish in the hundred of Wair-
LEY, county of Somenser, 44 miles (N.E.byE,) from
Bridg-water, containing 268 inhabitants. The living is
a rectory, in the archdeaconry of Wells, and diocese of
_ Bath and Wells, rated in the king's books at £13. 10.,
and in the patronage of the Rev. T. Hobbs. The
church is dedicated to St, Mary.. The village is one of
the neatest in the county, the cottages being fitted up in
a tasteful style, and the gardens ornamentally laid out.

COSTESSY, a parish in the hundred of Fongnor,

county of NoxroLx, 44 miles (N.W.byW.) from Norwich,

' 824 inhabitants. The living is a perpetual
the archdeaconry of Norfolk, and diocese of
and in the patronage of the Mayor und Cor-
of Norwich., The church is dedicated to St.
und. Here is & handsome Roman Catholic chapel,
ed arched windows and painted glass, erected

n_ of the wapentake of RusmoLirv,
INGHAM, ﬂ:ﬁu(ﬁ,) from Nottingham,
nh . The living is a rectory, in
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the archdeaconry. of Nottingham, and diocese of
rated in the king's books at £7.18.4.; and
patronage of the Rev. Willinm Beetham. The _
dedicated to St. Giles, Costock is situated in a vale
running east and west, and extending to the summit of -
a hill on each side, lying north and south, with a small
brook at the bottom, dividing it into two nearly equal

COSTON, a parish in the hundred of Framuaxp,
county of LErcesTEg, 7 miles (N, E. by E.) from Me
Mowbray, containing 162 inhabitants. The living is &
rectory, in the archdeaconry of Leicester, and diocese
of Lincoln, rated in the king's books at £16. 6. 3., and
in the patronage of the Crown. The church is dedi-
cated to St. Andrew,

COSTON, a parish in the hundred of Foremnox,
county of NorroLk, 44 miles (N.W.) from Wymondham,
containing 65 inhabitunts. The living is a perpetual
curacy, in the archdeaconry of Norfolk, and diocese of
Norwich, and in the patronage of the Archdeacon of
Norfolk. The church is dedicated to St. Michael.

COTE, a joint hamlet with Aston, in the parish
and hundred of Bamrrox, county of Oxrorn, 24 miles
(W. by 8.) from Bampton. The population is returned
with Aston.

COTES, a township in the parish of EccLesman,
northern division of the hundred of Piremivy, county
of Srarronrp, containing 241 inhabitants.

COTES de VAL, a hamlet in the parish of Kim-
core, hundred of GurRLAXTON, county of LE1CESTER,
31 miles (E.N. E.) from Lutterworth, containing 7 in-
habitants, Here was formerly a chapel, but it has long
since been destroyed.

COTGRAVE, a parish in the southern division of
the wapentake of Binguam, county of NorTinGHAM,
6 miles (S.E.by E.) from Nottingham, containing 779
inhabitants, The living is a rectory, consisting of two
consolidated medicties, the first being rated in the king's
books at £10.7.3., and the second at £9. 14, 94., in
the archdeaconry of Nottingham, and diocese of York,
and in the patronage of Earl Manvers. The church,
dedicated to All Saints, is in the later style of English
architecture, with a lofty octagonal spire. Here is
a place of worship for Wesleyan Methodists. The
Nottingham and Grantham canal passes through the
parish, and the Fosse-rond proceeds along its eastern
boundary. Limestone is plentiful, and gypsum is oc-
casionally found here, There is a small bequest for
teaching poor children, and for bread for the poor, the
school-house having been erected by a gift from a per-
son unknown, A court, called the “ Court of St. John
of Hierusalem,” which was anciently held at Shelford,
under the prior of St. John of Jerusalem, and then
styled the “Master and Licutenant's Court of Shelford,’
is held here, and has 8 common seal : its jurisdiction
extends over the extra.parochial liberty of Brewhouse-
Yard, Kneighton, Owthorpe Tollerton, Hoveri %
Gedling, Barnby in the Willows, Stanford, Ruddington,
Rempstone, Normanton upon Soear, Flinthom, Hickling,
Willonghhy, Normanton on the Wolds, ve, What-
ton, Aslackton, Scarri Carcolston, ton, and
Ratcliff: all wills within the above places are proved in
this court, and charters of exemption from toll th
out the king's dominions are granted to the tenants in
each of these manors, B Ut !
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fCDTHAM, a8 hamlet in the parish of Keruny,
eastern division of the wapentake of Yammoroven,
parts of Lixpsey, county of LincoLx, 9 miles (N, W,
byw.) from Great Grimsby. In the reign of Stephen,
Alan Muncels, or Munceaux, built here a Cistercian nun-
nery, in honéur of the Virgin Mary, in which, at the
suppression, were a prioress and twelve nuns, whose
revenue was estimated at £ 46 per annum.

COTHAM, a parish in the southern division of the
wapentake of Newark, county of Norrincuam, 4}
miles (8,) from Newark, containing 74 inhabitants. The
living is a discharged vicarage, in the archdeaconry of
Nottingham, and diocese of York, rated in the king's
books at £7. 18., endowed with £400 royal bounty,
and in the patronage of the Duke of Portland. The
church, dedicated to St. Michael, is a small dilapidated
building.

COTHELSTON, a parish in the hundred of Tavux-
ToN and Tauvnron-DEAN, r:m'mty of SomEerser, 7
miles (N.W. by N.) from Taunton, containing 108 inha-
bitants, The living is a perpetual curacy, annexed to
the vicarage of Kingston, in the archdeaconry of Taun-
ton, and diocese of Bath and Wells, endowed with £200
private benefaction, and £800 royal bounty. Cothelston
hill is one thousand two hundred and fifty feet above
the level of the sea, commanding an extensive view
over eleven counties : on the summit is a round tower
of great antiquity, The old manor-house, formerly the
résidence of the Stawells, who held the manor from
the period of the Conquest until it was alienated to the
fﬁ:’lly of its present possessor, still exists, but is inha-
bited by a farmer. A curious and very ancient custom
prevails in this manor, certain tenements being held by

payment annually of so many bushels of rye, on

artinmas-day, at the manor-house ; from which prac-
tice the tenants are called “ Rye Renters.”  Limestone
strata of blue lyas run north and south through the
parish ; and some indications of copper having been
observed, an attempt at mining was made, but it was
soon discontinued.

COTHERIDGE, a parish in the upper division of
the hundred of DoppineTrEE, county of WonrcesTeR,
3% miles (W.) from Worcester, containing 277 inha-
bitants. The living is a curacy, in the arch-

and diocese of Worcester, rated in the king's
hooks at £5. 16. 8., and in the patronage of the Rey.
i:.Ba'kdey. The church is dedicated to St. Leo-
COTHERSTON, a township in the parish of Ro-
maLp-Kink, western division of the wapentake of
GirLuine, North riding of the county of York, 3}
miles (N.W. by W.) from Barnard-Castle, containing
706 inhabitants. There are of worship for the
Society of Friends, , and Wesleyan Me-
thodists. A free school on the National has
been established for fifty children, of whom twelve are
annuglly clothed. The village is situated on
the banks of the Tees, j to which are the
remains of a castle that formerly belo to the
Fitz-Hughs, lords of the manor, but was destr in
one of the inroads of the Scots,
- COTLEIGH, a parish in the hundred of Conyrox,
county of Devox, 3 miles (E.N. E.) from Honiton, con-

s
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books at £9, and in the patronage of the Rev. William
Mithell. :

COTNESS, a township in the parish of Howbpen,
wapentake of Howpensuire, East riding of the coun-
ty of York, 5 miles (8. E.) from Howden, containing
29 inhabitants, "

COTON, a parish in the hundred of WernerLEY,
county of CAMBrIDGE, 3 miles (W, by N.) from Cam-
bridge, containing 228 inhabitants, The living is a
discharged rectory, in the archdeaconry and diocese of
Ely, rated in the king's books at £6. 12. 11., and in
the patronage of the Master and Fellows of Catha.
rine Hall, Cambridge. The church is dedicated to
St. Peter. Dr. Andrew Downes, Greek Professor at
Cambridge, and translator of the Apocrypha, died
here in 1627. L

COTON, a township in the parish of Haxsury,
northern division of the hundred of Orrrow, county of
Starrornp, 63 miles (8. E. by E.) from Uttoxeter, con-
taining 42 inhabitants, William Wollaston, author of
a learned work entitled “The Religion of Nature De-
lineated,” was born here, in 1650 ; he died in 1724,

COTON, a joint liberty with Hopton, in that part
of the parish of St. Many, Starrorp, which is in the
southern division of the hundred of Prrenrvy, county
of Starvown, 5} miles (E. by 8.) from Stone. The
population is returned with Hopton.

JOTON in the ELMS, a township in the parish
of Lvrringron, hundred of Rerron and Gresey,
county of Denrny, 6} miles (8. by W.) from Burton
upon Trent, containing 285 inhabitants. There is a
trifling bequest, made in 1773, by Thomas Wagstaff,
for which five poor boys are educated.

COTTAM, a joint township with Lea, Ashton, and
Ingol, in the parish of Presron, hundred of Amouxn-
perNESs, county palatine of Lawncaster, 4 miles
(w.N.W.) from Preston. The population is returned
with Lea.

COTTAM, a chapelry in the parish of Souvrn Lz-
verroN, North-clay division of the wapentake of Bas-
seTLAw, county of Norringuam, 8 miles (E. by 8.)
from East Retford, containing 74 inhabitants. The
chapel is dedicated to the Holy Trinity.

COTTENHAM, a parish in the hundred of Cags-
TERTON, locally in that of Northstow, county of Cam-
nr1nGE, 63 miles (N.) from Cambridge, containing 1488
inhabitants. The living is a rectory, in the archdea-

conry and diocese of Ely, rated in the king's books at «

£36. 15., and in the patronage of the Bishop of Ely.
The church is dedicated to All Saints. There is a place
of worship for Particular Baptists. The dairies, which
are numerous in this parish and neighbourhood, are
famed for producing excellent cheese. The adven-
turers’ land, chiefly enclosed from the old river Ouse
and the common adjoining, was sometimes subject to.
inundation, but, in consequence of late im nts,
this has been in a great measure prevented. A branch
of the old Ouse passes near the village, and
river Cam below Streatham, It was to this
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‘a8 o salary for teaching sixteen poor children ; and,
1728, Mrs, Alice augmented this endowment
with £10 per annum, five more, and the same sum
annually for apprenticing poor children, a bequest for
the same purpose having been previously made, in 1671,
by Mr. Moreton, who gave a moiety of an estate in
the parish of St. Andrew, Holborn : in 1715, Mrs. Jane
_ ve £15 per annum for the like use. This
is the birthplace of Archbishop Tenison, author of se-
veral theological works, who died in 1715.
: COTTERED, a parish in the hundred of Opsey,
county of Henrronn, 34 miles (W.) from Buntingford,
containing 410 inhabitants. The living is a rectory,
with that of Broadfield annexed, in the archdeaconry
of Huntingdon, and diocese of Lincoln, rated in the
king's books at £20. 8, 6., and in the patronage of the
Misses Jones, The church is dedicated to St. Mary.

COTTERSTOCK, a parish in the hundred of WiL-
LYBROOK, county of Nowrmamperon, 2 miles (N, N, E.)
from Oundle, containing 159 inhabitants. The living is
a discharged vicarage, with that of Glapthorn united,
in the archdeaconry of Northampton, and diocese of
Peterborough, endowed with £200 private benefac-
tion, and £200 royal bounty, and in the patronage of
the Earl of Westmorland. The church, dedicated to
St. Andrew, with its tower, is an interesting edifice,
exhibiting portions in every style of English architec-
ture, and some remaing of stained glass in the fine
tracery of the windows : it anciently had a co for
a provost, twelve chaplains, and two clerks, founded
in 1336, by John Gifford, clerk, a canon in the cathe-
dral cliurch of York; three stone stalls still remain
in the chancel. In 1658, Clement Bellamy bequeathed
land, producing about £5 per annum, for two exhibi-
tions to two poor scholars at Cambridge, and for ap-
prenticing poor children.

COTTESBACH, a parish in the hundred of Gura-
LAXTON, county of LeicesTer, 14 mile (S. by W.) from
Lutterworth, containing 118 inhabitants. The living is
a rectory, in the archdeaconry of Leicester, and diocese
of Lincoln, rated in the king's books at £10. 6. 8., and
in the patronage of the Rev, R, Marriott, The church
is dedicated to St, Mary,

COTTESBROOK, a parish in the hundred of Guins-
porovGH, county of NorraAMrroN, 83 miles (N.N. W.)
from Northampton, containing 297 inhabitants, The
living is a rectory, in the archdeaconry of Northampton,

_ and diocese of Peterborough, rated in the king's books
at £26. 0. 10., and in the patronage of Sir J. Langham,
Bart. The church is dedicated to All Saints. An

ital for two widowers and six widows was founded
by Sir James Langham, in 1651, and endowed with
three acres of land in Sibbertoft, as Wiﬁ:ilir;‘

i A o

RD, a parish in the hundred of Proven-
' of miles (N.) from Bicester,

coutaining 140 iuhabitants. The living is a discharged
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COTTESMORE, a parish in the hundred of ArsTo®,
county of RurLaxn, 44 miles (N. N. E.) from Oakham,
containing, with the chapelry of Barrow, 602 inhabitants.
The living is a rectory, in the archdesconry of North-
ampton, and diocese of P rated in the
king's books at £25. 16, 3., and in the patronage of
Sir Gerard Noel, Bart. The church is dedicated to St.
Nicholas, The Oakham canal passes through this
parish, in which limestone is obtained.

COTTINGHAM, a parish in the hundred of Corsy,
county of Nomruamrrox, ¢ miles (8. W.by W.) from
Rockingham, containing, with the township of Middle-
ton, 839 inhabitants. The living is a rectory, in the
archdeaconry of Northampton, and diocese of Peter-
borough, rated in the king's hooks at £23. 7. 34,
and in the patronnge of the Principal and Fellows of
Brasenose College, Oxford, The church is dedicated
to St. Mary Magdalene. There is a place of worship
for Wesleyan Methodists. In an ancient record it is
stated that a house for leprous persons existed here in
the time of Henry 111 .

COTTINGHAM, a parish (formerly a market town)
in the Hunsley-Beacon division of the wapentake of
Harrarue, East riding of the county of Yomrk, 44
miles (N.W.) from Kingston upon Hull, containing,
with a part of the township of Willerby, 2470 inhubit-
ants, The living is a vicarage, with the perpetnal
curacy of Skidley annexed, in the archdeaconry of the
East riding, and diocese of York, endowed with £200
private benefaction, €300 royal bounty, and £800 par-
liamentary graut, and in the patronage of the Bishop of
Chester, as impropriator of the rectory, which is rated
in the king's books at £106. 13, 4. The church, dedi-
cated to St, Mary the Virgin, is a spacious handsome
edifice, built in 1272, with a light and beautiful tower -
rising from the centre: within are several elegant mo-
numents, particularly those of the family of Burten, and
in the chancel is an ancient tombstone, without date,
to the memory of the founder, Nicholas de Stuteville.
There are places of worship for Independents and Pri-
mitive and Wesleyan Methodists, Leland, in his Col-
lectanea, states that William d'Estoteville, or Stuteville,
being then sheriff of Yorkshire, entertained King John
here, and obtained from that monarch, in the year
1200, permission to hold a market and fair, and to em-
battle and fortify his residence. This noble mansion,
called Baynard castle, continued for ages a distinguished
monnment of feudal grandeur, but it was destroyed by
fire in 1541, and only the ramparts and ditches are
visible, In the 15th of Edward II., Thomas, Lord
Wake, began to establish here a monastery for Augus-
tine canons, which, about the year 1324, was removed
to the extra-parochial liberty of Newton, or Howden-
price: its reveuue, at the dissolution, was estimated at

£178. 0, 10, ; there are no remains, The vi which

carpe
portion of the land in the parish is appropriated to the
cultivation of vogetables and other horticultural
for the market at Hull, which place is also, in a
supplied with milk and butter from
o annually on
Martin. A free is principally

éri#i}
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from a bequest of land, producing about £40 per
pomm, by Mr. Mark Kirby, in 1712, for which twenty
children are instructed. There are various minor bene-
factions for the poor, including a dole of £10 per
annum, left by Mr. Robert Mills, for distribution at
Christmas. The parish officers, in 1819, assigned about
twelve acres of land, the of which were pre-
viously applicd toward the repairs of the church, to
twenty poor men, each of whom has erected a
for which he pays annually an acknowledgment of two
shillings. Adjoining the ancient road called Keldgate
are some intermitting springs, which will sometimes
flow copiously after remaining quiescent for several

years.

COTTINGWITH (EAST), a chapelry in the parish
of Aveuron, Holme-Beacon division of the wapentake
of Hantuiny, East riding of the county of York, 81
miles (8, W.by W.) from Pocklington, containing 308
inhabitants. There is a place of worship for Wesleyan
Methodists. A trifling bequest has been made for the
instruction of children. .

COTTINGWITH (WEST), a township in the parish
of TuonGanwy, wapentake of Ovze and DerwenT, East
riding of the county of York, 9% miles (8.E.) from
York. The population is returned with the parish,
Four poor children are educated for £3. 10., being a
portion of the produce of town lands.

COTTLES, an extra-parochial liberty with Little
Chalfield, in the hundred of Brapronrp, county of
Wivrs, 34 miles (W.) from Melksham. The popula-
tion is returned with Great Chalfield.

COTTON, a township in that part of the parish of

Saxppacs which is in the hundred of Norrawics,
county palatine of Cuestex, 2§ miles (E.byN.) from
gllewich, containing 81 inhabitants,
N, a township in that part of the parish of
Waen which is in the Whi ‘h division of the hun-
Brapronrp (North), ty of Savor, contain-
ing 458 inhabitants.

COTTON, a chapelry in the parish of ALvETON,
* southern division of the hundred of Tormonsnow,
county of Sravrorp, 6 miles (N, E) from Cheadle,
containing 439 inhabitants. The living is a perpetual
curacy, in the archdeaconry of Stafford, and diocese of
Lichfield and Coventry, endowed with £400 private
benefaction, and £ 1000 royul bounty, and in the pa-
tronage of George Whieldon, Esq. The chapel was built
in 1795, at the sole expense of the late Thomas Gil-
bert, Esq., who also endowed at,md left l::w payment
of the repairs a perpetunl charge upon his property.
of limestone, worked by

third Tuesday, for the recovery of debts under 40s.
- COTTON, a parish in the hundred of HarTismere,
county of Surrork, 2 miles (W.N.W.) from Mendles-
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COTTON, or COTTAM, a chapelry in the parish of
Laxgrorr, partly within the liberty of St. Perer of
York, and partly in the wapentake of Dickening, East
riding of the county of Yorxk, 51 miles (N.N.W.) from
Great Driffield, containing 16 i itants. The hving
is a perpetunl curacy, in the peculiar jurisdiction of
the Prebendary of Langtoft in the Cathedral Church
of York, and in the patronage of the Vicar of Langtoft.

COTTON, a township in that part of the parish of
Hovincuam which is in the wapentake of RyepaLe,
North riding of the county of Yorxk, 8 miles (8.by E.)
from Helmsley, containing 112 inhabitants. .

COTTON (ABBOT'S), a township in the parish of
CamistrLerox, lower division of the hundred of Brox-
Tox, county palatine of Cnesrer, 4 miles (E. by N.)
from Chester, containing 17 inhaBitants,

COTTON (EDMUND'S), a township in the parish
of Cumistueron, lower division of the hundred of
Broxrton, county palatine of Cumster, 4§ miles
(E. by 8.) from Chester, containing 85 inhabitants, R
derives its name from Ethnuttd de Cotton, whe formerly
possessed it,

COTTON-FAR, a hnmlet in the parish of Harp-
ingsToNEg, hundred of Wymensiey, county of Norta-
AMPTON, -; a mile (83 from Northampton, containing,
with Paper Mills and Delapree Abbey, 356 inhabitants.
An hospital, dedieated to St. Leonard, for a master and
leprous brethren and sisters, is stated to have been
founded here by William the Conqueror, which was
under the superintendence of the mayor and burgesses
of Northampton : its revenue, in the 26th of Henry VIIL,
was estimated at £12. 6. 8,

COUGHTON, a hamlet in the parish of WALroRrD,
hundred of GreyTrEE, county of Hererorp, 2} miles
(8. by E.) from Ross. The population is returned with
the parish, Here was formerly a chapel, now in ruins.

COUGHTON, a parish in the Alcester division of
the hundred of Bamuicnway, county of Warwick, 2
miles (N. by W.) from Alcester, containing, with the
hamlet of Sambourn, 926 inhabitants, The living is a
discharged vicarage, in the archdeaconry and diocese of
Worcester, rated, in the king's books at £9. 10, 74., en-
dowed with £400 royal bounty, and in the patronage
of Sir Charles Throckmorton, Bart. The church is
dedicated to St, Peter

COULDSNOUTH, u joint township with Thomp-
son’s Walls, in the of Kingkxgwrox, western
division of GLENDALE county of NorTHUMBER-
LAND, 74 miles (W, by N.) from Wooler, containing, with
Thompson's Walls, 44 inhabitants.

COULSDON, a parish in the first divizion of the
hundred of WaLLiNGTON, county of Surney, 5 miles
(8. by w.) from Croydon, containing 516 inhabitants.
The living is a rectory, in the archdeaconry of Surrey,
and diocese of Winchester, nhdinthekinglbom )
£21, 16, 5., and in the ofthe shop
of Cmtcrbury The ehurch )
the Evangelist.

COULSTON(EAS'I'),IMI]IEII&B hw
Wuonrwerspows, county of Wivrs, 5 mil
from Wc:tbng, containing 99 inbabitants.
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COULSTON (WEST), a joint tything with Baynton,
in the_parin::l; orfvgnmuron, hundred of Wnou{vnzu-
nowx, county of Wirts, contai with Baynton,

v ning, ynton, 168

COULTON, & parish in the hundred of LonspaLe,
north of the sands, county palatine of LANCASTER,
comprising the chapelries of Finthwaite, Haverthwaite,
and Rusland, and the townships of East Coulton, West
Coulton, and Nibthwaite, and containing 1627 inhabit-
ants, East Coulton is 5} miles (N.N.E.), and West
Coulton 5 miles (N. by E.), from Ulverstone. The
living is a perpetual curacy, in the archdeaconry of
Ihf:hmond, and diocese of Chester, endowed with £400
private benefaction, £400 royal bounty, and £600
parliamentary grant, and in the patronage of the
Landowners, who pay their quotas to the minister's
stipend. The church is dedicated to the Holy Tri-
nity, This parish is bounded on the east and south
by the lake Windermere, and the river Leven, which
issues fi it, and on the west by the lake Conis-
ton and the river Crake. There is a meeting - housc.
for the Society of Friends. The parochial school is
endowed with fifty acres of land given by Adam Sandys,
Esq., besides a small bequest from Bartholomew Pen-
nington.

COUND, a parish in the hundred of Coxpovenr,
county of Savor, 6} miles (N.W.) from Much Wenlock,
containing, with the chapelry of Cressage, 799 inhabit-
ants, The living is a rectory, in the archdeaconry of
Sulop, and diocese of Lichficld and Coventry, rated in
the king's books at £33, and in the patronage of John
C. Pelham, Esq. The church is dedicated to St. Peter.
The river Severn runs through the parish.

COUNDEN-GRANGE, a township in that part of
the parish of St. ANprEW AvckrnanD which is in the
gouth-eastern division of Dirvrineron ward, county
palatine of Durnam, 14 mile (E.8.E.) from Bishop-
Auckland, containing 28 inhabitants,

COUNDON, a township in that part of the parish
of St. AxprEw AvckrLanp which is in the north-
western division of DarvLincToN ward, county palatine
of Dunruam, 2 miles (E. by 8.) from Bishop-Auckland,
containing 222 inhabitants.

COUNDON, a hamlet in that part of the parish

of the Hory Tmixity, CoveEntry, which is in the
Kirby division of the hm% Knigurrow, county
of Warwick, containing 213 inhabitants.
. COUNTESS-THORPE, a chapelry in the parish
of Brasy, hundred of Gurmraxrown, county of Lei-
cesteRr, 6 miles (8.) from Leicester, containing 741
inhabitants.

COUNTHORPE,?I;;mJet in the psris‘l:fof ByrHAM-
CASTLE, ntake of BELTISLOE, parts Kmnvgu,
_county #w:ﬂ;com’ 34 miles (8,) from Corby, contain-
ing 43 inhabitants.

'JGOUFIISBUBY, a parish in the hundred of SuEg-
county of DEvoN, 154 miles (E. by N.) ,from
ombe, containing 118 iubabitants. The living is
, annexed to that of Linton, in the

'myofmhnﬂdimafm.m-

“dowed ¥ ' royal bounty, and £200 parliamentary
BB !&chmhil'dedimdtosg;.hhnthancpﬁn.
narish borders on the Bristol channel, and is bound-
r some miles on the gouth and west by the small
rapid stream Lyn.
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COUPE-LENCH, a joint township with Newhall-
hey and Hall-Carr, in that part of the parish of Bumrx
which is in the higher division of the hundred of
BrackBurN, county palatine of Laxcaster, 4% miles
(8. 8. E,) from Haslingden, containing, with Newhall-
hey and Hall-Carr, 1224 inhabitants,

COUPLAND, a township in the parish of Kim-
NEWTON, western division of GLENDALE ward, county of
NORTHUMBERLAND, 44 miles (N.W.) from Wooler, con-
taining 98 inhabitants.

COURAGE, a tything in the parish of CmieveLEY,
hundred of Faircross, county of Berks, 4} miles
(N.N.E.) from Newbury. The population is returned
with the parish.

COURTEENHALL, a parish in the hundred of
WymEeRsLEY, county of NorTrAMPTOoN, 5% miles (8.)
from Northampton, containing 144 inhabitants, The
living is a rectory, in the archdeaconry of Northampton,
and diocese of Peterborough, rated in the king's books
at £12. 10. 10,, and in the patronage of the Crown.
The church is dedicated to St. Peter and St. Paul. A
free school was founded and endowed, in the year 1670,
by Sir Samuel Joues, for boys who must reside within
four miles of the village of Courteenhall ; the founder
bequeathed £ 500 for the purpose of building the school-
house, and a rent-charge of £80 for a master, and £20
for an usher, besides a bequest of £500 for repairing
the church,

COVE, a tything in the parish of Yarevy, hun-
dred of CroxpanL, Basingstoke division of the county
of SouTHAMPTON, Q.miles (E.N. E.) from Odiham, ¢on-
taining 403 inhabitants, It is within the jurisdiction
of the Cheyney Court held at Winchester every Thurs-
day, for the recovery of debts to any amount,

COVE (CHAPEL), a chapelry in Prrr quarter of
the parish of TrverTon, hundred of Tiverron, county
of Devox, 5 miles (N.) from Tiverton. The population
is returned with Pitt quarter. The chapel is dedicated
to St. John the Baptist.

COVE (NORTH), a parish in the hundred of Wane-
rorp, county of SurroLk, 23 miles (E, by 8.) from
Beccles, containing 219 inhabitants. The living is a dis-
charged rectory, with that of Willingham annexed, in the
archdeaconry of Suffolk, and diocese of Norwich, rated
in the king's books at £10, and in the patronage of
the Crown. The church is dedicated to St. Botolph.
There is a place of worship for Wesleyan Methodists.
The navigable river Waveney passes on the north side
of this parish,

COVE (SOUTH), & parish in the hundred of Bry
THING, county of Surrork, 3 miles (N.) from South-
wold, containing 186 inhabitants. The living is a dis-
charged rectory, in the archdeaconry of Suffolk, and
diocese of Norwich, rated in the king's books at
£6. 2. 11., endowed with £200 royal bounty, and in
the patronage of Sir T. S. Gooch, Bart. The church
is dedicated to St. Lawrence.

COVEHITHE, county of Surronk.—See NORTH-
HALES, '

COVEN, a liberty in the parish of Brewoop, cast-
ern division of the hundred of CurrLesrone, county
of Srarrorp, 2 miles (E, 8. E.) from Brewood, contain-
ing 499 inhabitants. The Staffordshire and Worcester-
shire canal passes through this liberty. There is a place
of worship for Wesleyan Methodists,

. -



>

COovV _ 528

COVENEY, a parish in the southern division of
the hundred of Wrrcaronp, Isle of Ewvy, county of
Campringe, 6 miles (W.N.W.) from Ely, containing,
with the chapelry of Manea, 952 inhabitants. The
living is a rectory, in the archdeaconry and diocese of
Ely, rated in the king's books at £5, and in the pa-
tronage of Lord Rokeby. The church is dedicated to
St. Peter.,

COVENHAM (ST. BARTHOLOMEW), a parish
in the wapentake of Lupnorouven, parts of Linpsey,
county of LincoLn, 54 miles (N.N.E,) from Louth,
containing 219 inhabitants. The living is a discharged
rectory, in the archdeaconry and diocese of Lincoln,
rated in the king's books at £17, 12. 8, and in the pa-
tronage of the Rev, John Fretwell, There is a place of
worship for Wesleyan Methodists, Here was formerly
a cell belonging to the monastery of 5t. Carilephus, in
the diocese of Mains,

COVENHAM (ST. MARY), a parish in the wapen-
take of Lubpsorouen, parts of Linpsey, county of
Lixcoun, 6 miles (N. N, E.) from Louth, cuntajuing 142
inhabitants. The living is a discharged rectory, in the
archdeaconry and diocese of Lincoln, rated in the kmg 8
books at £10, endowed with £200 myal bounty, and in

the pntmnage of the Crown.
- COVENTRY, an ancient
2 city, and a county of itself,
) locally in the county of
Warwick, 10 miles (N.E.)
from Warwick, 18 (8. E.)
from Birmingham, and 91
(N.N.W.) from London, on
the road to Holyhead, con-
taining, exclusively of those
portions of the parishes of
the Holy Trinity, St.John
the Baptist, and St. Michael,
} which are without the city,
21,242 inhabitants. In ancient records this place is
called Coventre and also Conventrey, from the foundation
of a convent by Canute, of which St. Osburg was abbess,
in 1016, when it was burnt by Edric, the traitor, who
baving invaded Mercia, destroyed many towns in War-
wickshire. On the site of this convent, Leofrie, Earl of
Mercia, and his countess Godiva, in the reign of Edward
the Confessor, erected a monastery, which they munifi-
cently endowed, and decorated with such a profusion of
costly ornaments, that, according to William of Malmes-

bury, the walls were covered with gold and silver. About

this time Leofric, at the intercession of his countess,
granted the citizens a charter conferring various pri-
vlleges and immunities, the same commemo-
rated, in the south window of Trinity . church, by por-
traits of the Earl and Countess; with a poetical legend.

‘Leofric died in 1057, and was interred in the monastery

which he had founded. Shortly after the Norman Con-
became vested in the

cov '

of this monastery, from which he expelled the monks,
fortified the church, and cut deep trenches in the
adjoining ficlds, concesling them only with a -l;f'l:‘t
covering : on the earl's pmlch to .bdtg: K
Marmion drew out his forces, but, or?etnng exact
gituation of the trenches, his horse fell with him to
the ground, and in this situation his head was severed
from his body by a private soldier. In 1855, the city
was surrounded with walls three miles in circuit, three
vards in thickness, and six yards in height, strengthened
with thirty-two towers, and containing twelve principal
gates, each defended by a portcullis. In 1397, Ri-
chard IL+ appointed this town for the decision, by sin-
gle combat, of the quarrel between the Dukes of Hereford
and Norfolk ; and magnificent preparations were made
on Gosford (:mn for this encounter, which, however,
was prevented by the banishment of the combntants,
@ measure which ultimately caused the deposition of
the king. In 1404, the Duke of Hereford, who had
become Duke of Lancaster, by the death of his father,
John of Gaunt, on his return from exile, having sue-
ceeded to the crown by the title of Henry IV., held a
parliament here in the great chamber of the priory,
which, from the exclusion of all lawyers, was called Par-
liamentum Indoctorum, In 1411, the Prince of Wales,
afterwards Henry V., was arrested at the priory by John
Horneby, mayor of the city, probably for some tumul-
tuous excess, the particulars of which are not re-
corded. The city, with a district of four miles around
it, was severed from Warwickshire, and erected into a
county of itself, under the designation of the “ City and
County of the City of Coventry,” by charter of Henry VL,
in 1451 ; and in 1459 the same monarch held a parlia-
ment in the chapter-house of the priory, which, from the
number of attainders passed against the Duke of York
and others, was, by the Yorkists, called Parliamentum
Diabolicum. 1In 1465, Edward IV. and his queen kept
the festival of Christmnas at Coventry ; and three years
after, the Earl of Rivers and his son, who had been
seized by a party of the northern rebels at Grafton,
were beheaded on Gosford Green. In the war between
the houses of York and Lancaster, Richard, Earl of
Warwick, marched with all his ordnance and warlike
stores into this city, where he remained for a short
time, during which Edward IV., on his route frem
Leicester, attempted to force an entrance but y
repulsed, he passed on to Warwick, and thence to Lon-
don, where having gained a battle in which the Earl
of Warwick was slain, he returned to quentry,md
deprived the citizens of their charter, for the restora- ,
tion of which they were compelled to pay a fine of five
hundred marks. In 1472, severe enactments were
passed by the magistrates women of immoral
character, who were publicly exhibited in carts gn“

the market days. Henry VIL, on his m
Bosworth Field in 1475, was reeeived w
demonstration of congratulation an

In the early part of the simanth omhuy!' oven-
trybecamethe thntuofullgml PErsect
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following year Mr. Lawrence Saunders, Robert Glover,
AM., and Cornelius Bongey, were burnt for their re-
ous tencts. In 1565, Queen Elizabeth visited the

; and in 1566, Mary, Queen of Scots, was con-
ducted to this place, where she was detained a pri-
soner; and in 1569, on her removal from Tutbury
castle, she was for some time at the Bull Inn, in the
custody of the Earls of Shrewsbury and Hunting-
don. In 1607, the city suffered considerable damage
from an inundation, which entered two hundred and
fifty-seven houses, washing away furniture and utensils
of various kinds : the flood rose to the height of three
yards, and, after remaining for three or four hours,
suddenly subsifled ; clusters of white snails were after-
wards found in the houses and in the trees, supposed
to have collected prior to the influx of the water, which,
though observed at the distance of nearly a mile
from the town, was so instantaneous in its approach,
as to preclude all means of precaution, King James,
attended by a large retinue of the nobility, visited the
city in 1617, on which occasion a cup of pure gold,
weighing forty-five ounces, and containing £ 100, was
presented to him by the corporation, which his Ma-
jesty ordered to be preserved with the royal plate for
the heirs of the crown, During the parliamentary war,
Charles 1., having erected his standard at Notting-
ham in 1641, sent orders to the mayor and sheriffs of
Coventry to attend him at that place ; but the majority
of the citizens embraced the cause of the parliament,
and a party having obtained possession of the magazine
in Spon tower, which the Earl of Northampton had di-
rected the aldermen to secure for the royalists, kept it
for Lord Brooke, who removed it to Warwick castle,
The parliamentarian party in the city, having been rein-
forced with four hundred men from Birmingham, held it
against the king, who sent a herald to demand entrance,
which being refused, some cannon were planted in the
great park and on Stivichall hill, which played upon
the town, but without effect. Finding the citizens re-
solved to defend their gates, and learning that Lord
Brooke was approaching with his army from London,
the king drew off his forces, and the city was now
regularly garrisoned by the parliament, and further
* preparations made for its defence. The women were
“employed to fill up the quarries in the park, that they
might not afford any shelter to the royal troope; and
for this purpose they assembled in companies, by beat
of drum, and marched in military array, with mattocks

" and spades, headed by an ainzon who carried an Her-
culean club on her shoulder, and conducted from their
work by another, who discharged a pistol as @ signal
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mission @8 to leave only a few fragments of them re-
maining: of the gates, which were only dismantled,
there are some yet standing ; the Bastille, Swanswell
and Cook-street gates, are most entire,

The city is pleasantly situated on a gentle eminence,
bounded on the north-east by the river Shirburn and
the Radford brook, which, running from north to
south, unite within the town. In the more ancient
part, the streets, with the exception of that part of the
High-street called the Cross-cheaping, or the market-
place, are generally narrow, partially paved, and lighted
partly with oil and partly with gas : many of the houses
are in the style of the sixteenth century, built of timber
frame-work and brick, with the upper stories projecting,
and present a dark and sombre appearance, occasion-
ally enlivened by an intermixture of others of more
modern structure, of which several are spacious and
handsome : the suburbs have within the last few years
been greatly extended,: several new streets have been
formcgr‘:nd ranges of handsome houses erected: the
inhabitants are amply supplied with water from conduits
made by the corporation, and by water-works under
the superintendence of two public companies. The
public library, established in 1791, has a proprietary of
about two hundred members, and is well regulated by
a committee : the theatre, a neat and conveniently ar-
ranged building, is opened occasionally; and assemblies
and concerts take place periodically at St. Mary's and
Drapers’ Halls: the environs are pleasant, abounding
with interesting scenery, and withrsome agreeable
menades,  The , erected in 1792, on the site
of the old Bull Inn, are a handsome range of building,
fronted with stone, and ornamented with the king's
arms over a window above the principal gate-way : the
establishment is for a field officer and fifteen subalterns,
and comprises a riding-house, an hospital, and stabling
for one hundred and eighty-eight horses. The mak-
ing of caps was the principal trade of the town prior
to the year 1436, when the manufacture of woollen
and broad cloth was introduced, and continued to flon-
rish till the end of the sixteenth century : at this time
Coventry was celebrated for a peculiar kind of blue
thread, which, from the permanence of its colour, ob-
tained the appellation of ** Coventry true blue.” About
the beginning of the eighteenth century, striped and
mixed tammies, camlets, shalloons, and calimancoes,
were manufactured to a considerable extent, to which
succeeded the throwing of silk, the weaving of gauzes,
broad silks, and ribands, and the manufacture of watches,
The weaving of ribands forms at present the staple trade;
a great quantity is exported; an immense number of
pieces are sent off weekly for the supply of the wholesale
dealers in London, and a considerable quantity is, by
means of travelling agents, distributed to. every town in



Lancashire and Yorkshire : the caunal office is a small
building, with a portico of the Grecian
Ionic order. The market, which is on Friday, is held
in various parts of the town; for comn, in the Cross-
cheaping, now a spacious area d: by the re-
moval of a middle range of old houses, by which it
was divided, and in which was the ancient cross, one of
the most beautiful in the , taken down in 1771 ;
for cattle, in Bishop-street; for pigs, in Cook-street ;
and for butter, eggs, and poultry, in an area behind the
mayor's parlour, where a markef-house has been erected.
Fairs for three days each ‘are held on April 21st, Augnst
16th, and October 21st, for cattle and merchandise ; to
these fairs are attached courts of pie-powder, and the
corporation are entitled to the same tolls as are taken
at Smithfield market, in London, The great shew-fair
takes place on the Friday after Corpus Christi- day, and
continues for eight days, on the first of which the
commemoration of Lady Godiva's procession is occa-
sionally revived, bya representative obtained for that pur-

: this ceremony has its origin in a tradition that the

. pose
citizens being greatly oppressed by the severe exactions

impaudmthemby Leofric, his countess undertook
to intercede for their relief, but was apparently frus-
trated in her suit by a promise of exemption only
upon the condition of her naked through the city
on horseback ; it is further recorded in the traditionary
‘of the city, that, having obtained her husband’s

|

- permission, and trusting for concealment to the length

of her hair, and to the discretion of the inhabitants,
puin of death, to shut them-
she performed the task, and
city a charter of “freedgm from ser-
vitude, evil customs, and exactions.” The tradition
also records that a tailor, who‘:robeyedtheinjunction,
was instantly struck blind ; u figure, called Peep-
ing‘l\nn,mdrini:md,md placed in a niche at the
a house in -8 i

CovVv

superior council of thirty-one, and a second council, or
grand inquest, of twenty-five members, assisted by a
town-clerk, sword-bearer, mace-bearer, and subordinate
officers. The mayor, i steward, and coroner,
are chosen annually by the council of thirty-one, in the
council-chamber in St. Mary's Hall, and sworn into of-
fice on All Saints' day : the aldermen are elected by the
same body, from the grand inquest, as vacancies oceur :
the mayor, recorder, and aldermen, are justices of the
peace, and have exclusive jurisdiction within the city
and county of the city, The city is divided into ten
wards, cach under its respective aldermen, and com-
prises thirteen fraternities, or trading companies, the
numbers of which, with the exception of the Drapers’
company, who still retain their hall, have been greatly
reduced. The freedom is obtained only by a servitude
of seven years to one trade within the city and liberties,
Among the privileges enjoyed by the freemen is that of
depasturing cattle upon the “ Lammas Grounds,” a tract
of three thousand acres, appropriated to that use from
Lammas to Candlemas by especial grant, The corpora-
tion hold quarterly courts of session, at which the mayor,
assisted by the steward, presides : these courts are held
by adjournment in the mayor's parlour, on the last
Friday in every month ; they have power to try capital
offenders, but this they generally delegate to the judge
travelling the midland circuit. A court of record has been
held by prescription from a very remote period, the date
of which is certainly anterior to the reign of Henry VI,
for the recovery of debts to any amount, at which the
mayor and sheriffs preside; and a county court is held
monthly by adjournment, in the mayor's parlour, where
also either the mayor, or some of the city magistrates
attend daily, to decide on affairs of police.

The city first exercised the elective franchise in the
26th of Edward L, but there were partial intermissions
until the 31st of Henry VI., since which time it has
regularly returned two members to parliament: the
right of election is vested in the freemen not receiving
alms, of whom the number is about three thousand :
the sheriffs are the returning officers. The county-hall,
in which the sessions and other courts are held, is a
neat modern building faced with stone, and ornamented
with pillars of the Tuscan order, rising from a rustic
basement, and supporting a handsome cornice in the'
centre of the front : adjoining is the gaoler's house, a
neat brick edifice ; and behind it the'prison, which has
been y rebuilt. St. Mary's Hall, appropriated to




: pleasing design.
~ Coventry forms a diocese jointly with Lichfield, of
hich the seat was fixed in this city from 1102 till
1188, when it was removed to Lichfield : the diocese com-
prehends the whole counties of Derby and Stafford (ex-
hes of Broom and Clent in the latter),
of Warwickshire, and nearly half of
Salop, and comprises five hundred and
fifty-seven parishes. Of the cathedral, once a sumptuous
and magnificent structure, formerly the Benedictine
monastery founded by Leofric, of which at the dissolu-
tion the revenue was £781. 19. 5., only the slightest
vestiges are digcernible, in the mouldings of arches and
outlines of windows and doors worked in with the mate-
rials of a modern building, which has been erected o
the site of one of its ancient towers, and some indistinct
remaing of what are supposed to have been the conven-
tual buildings. The city comprises the parishes of St.
Michael, the Holy Trinity, and St. John the Baptist,
the last having been constituted a parish by act of par-
liament in 1734, all in the archdeaconry of Coventry,
and diocese of Lichfield and Coventry. The living of
St. Michael's is a vicarage, rated in the king's books at
£26. 15. 5., and in the patronage of the Crown. The
church is a splendid structure, principally in the later
style of English architecture, with a lofty tower of four
stages, panelled and ornamented with niches in which
« were finely sculptured figures, and surmounted by a lofty
and finely proportioned octagonal spire, the whole
height being, from the base of the tower, three hun-
dred feet, exactly equal to the length of the church :
the interior is finely arranged, and derives great beauty
from the loftiness of its elevation, and the delicacy
of the piers which support the roof; the clerestory
windows of the nave form a noble range of large di-
mensions, and are ornamented with ancient stained
g: the chancel, which is of earlier date, was for-
merly & chapel erected in 1183, to which the nave
and aisles were subsequently added ; it deviates from
a straight line, and forms an angle with the line of the
nave, which sensibly offends the eye. The living of the
of the Holy Trinity is a vicarage, rated in the
g's books at £10, and in the patronage of the
. Crown: the church, which is of earlier date than the
more recent part of St. Michael's, is a venerable cruci-
form structure in the later style of English architec-
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eruciform in the upper; from the eentre rises a square
embattled tower, with circular turrete at the angles,
and supported on four finely clustered piers and arches
of singular beauty: the interior is characterised by a
simple grandeur of style, which more than compensates
for the want of elaborate embellishment. To the south
of the city was the of the Grey friars, the
brethren of whicly were famous for their skill in the re-
presentation of ious dramas : it was originally
founded in 1234, the church was built in 1358, for
which Edward the Black Prince granted the friars per-
mission to take stone from the quarries in his park at
Cheylesmere : the monastery was destroyed at the dis-
solution ; all that remains is the very beautiful steeple
of the church, consisting of an tower, with a
pierced parapet, from which rises a lofty and finely pro-
portioned octagonal spive; to this a body is now being
annexed by subscription among the inhabitants, aided
by a grant from the parliamentary commissioners,
There are places of worship for Baptists, the Society of
Friends, Independents, Wesleyan Methodists, Uni-
tarians, and Roman Catholics.

The free grammar school was founded, in the reign
of Henry VIIL, by John Hales, Esq., who endowed it
with lands at that time of the value of two hundred
marks, but which now produce an annual income of
£000, of which the head-master receives two-thirds
and the second master the remainder; it is under the
management of the corporation, by whom the masters
are appointed : there are three exhibitions of £ 10 each,
and two of £5 each per annum, to either of the Uni-
versities; two fellowships in St. Jehn's College, Oxford ;
and one fellowship and one scholarship in Catharine
Hall, Cambridge, belonging to this establishment, The
schoolroom is the remaining part of a church which
anciently belonged to the hospital of St. John, built in
the reign of Henry IL, the revenue of which, at the
dissolution, was £83. 3. B.; it is a spacious room,
lighted with windows in the decorated style, with rich
tracery, and fitted up with the ancient carved seats,
removed from the choir of the church belonging to
the monastery of the White friars: the western
end, taken down to widen the street, has been vebuilt
in an appropriate style, and ornamented
handsome turrets. Sir William Dugdale,
brated antiquary, and Archbishop Secker, received
rudiments of their education at this
Bablake Blue-coat school, one side

of the Bablake hospital, was founded, in



ent of the income, has been increased to forty-

-mhn receive each aweekly allowance of six shillings;
of them are resident ifi the ital, and have

drangle, is an ancient edifice of timber frame-work and
brick, in the Elizabethan style, but much of its original
character has been destroyed by repairs and alterations.
The Grey friars’ hospital, so called from its proximity
to a monastery of that order formerly vxisting here, was
founded in 1529, by Mr, William Ford, who endowed it
for five aged men and one woman; from the increased
i amount of the income, there are at present eighteen
women in this establishment, who receive a weckly al-
i;bwmoe of Qs. 6d., with additional advantages: the
which form a long and narrow quadrangular

| area, almost darkened by the projection of the upper
stories, are in the style of domestic architecture prevail-
ing in the reign of Elizabeth ; the timber frame-work,
' carved, and decorated with cornices and canopies

£

‘over the central windows and doorways is, as perfect as
‘when first erected, and these beautiful almshouses are
‘deservedly admired as the most entire and elegant spe-
of the kind in the kingdom. The house of in-
: es the site, and includes the remains, of.

of Carmelites, founded in 1342,

e
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botanist, were natives of this city; and D
Hollund, the translator of Camden's Britannia,
here for the greater part of his
the title of earl to the family of
COVERHAM, a parish in the western
the wapentake of Hawxe, North ri
it e s e
sing the to ps o b
C:rglton-llighdnle, Melmerby, and West Scrafton, and
containing 1170 inhabitants, The living is a perpetusl
curacy, in the archdeaconry of Richmond, and diocese
2100 voyss Doumigy Sl 9800 Yumustustasy 3l
£400 royal ty, £1200 i grant,
and in the patronage of the Rev.S. Hardcastle. The
church is dedicated to the Holy Trinity. The river
Cover runs near this village, over which there is a
bridge of one arch, and near it are the remains of a
riory of White canons, founded in the thirteenth cen-
Enry, at Swainby, in the parish of Pickhall, and re.
moved hither soon afterwards : its revenue, in the 26th
of Henry VIIL, was valued at £207. 14. 8. A.school,
in which between twenty and thirty children are edun-
cated, is endowed with a bequest of a messuage and
lands by John Constantine, in 1724, producing £23 per
annuim. .

COVINGTON, a parish in the hundred of Leicn-
ToNsToNE, county of HunrTinepon, 34 miles (W.N.W.)
from Kimbolton, containing 139 inhabitants, The livi
is a rectory, in the archdeaconry of Huntingdon, ul:ﬁ
diocese of Lincoln, rated in the king's books at £10, 1. 8.,
and in the of Earl Fitzwilliam. The church
is dedicated to All Saints. o

-

COWARNE (LITTLE), a parish in the hundred

of Broxasm, county of Hurrronrp, 4% miles (S, W,
by W.) from Bromyard, containing 134 inhabitants,

The living is a perpetual curacy, annexed to the rectory
of Ullingswick, in the archdeaconry and diocese of
Hereford

COWARNE (MUCH), a parish in the hundred of
BroxasH, county of H:umni:im? miles (8. 8.W.)
from Bromyard, containing 585 itants. The living
is a discharged vicarage, in the archdeaconry and dio-
cese of Hereford, rated in the king's books at £14. 19.7.,
and in the of the of Gloucester. The
church is dedicated to St, Mary. :

COWBIT, a parish in the wapentake of Eriox,
parts of HoLraxp, county of Lincons, 54 miles (N,

by E.) from Crowland, containing 511 inbabitants. The
living is a curacy, in the and
diocese of Lincoln, and in the of the Devisces

of Mrs. Miller. m_mmm-samry,.m '

withthemetuy,mauﬂndhl%hy&m
sell. There is of for an
e o | e

£12.10.per o, uiin from  ogucst of land:

COWDEN, a parish in the




of the
) ‘ ing 146 inhabitants. Great
Cowdon is 144 miles, and Little Cowdon 124, (N. E.)
from Kingston upon Hull. The living is a di :
rectory, in the archdeaconry of the riding, and
q.loeuc,of York, rated in the king's books at £2, 13. 4.,
and in the patronage of the Crown. The church has
long been swallowed up by the sea, and the parish is
commonly considered a township partly in the parish
of Aldborough, but chiefly in the parish of Mappleton.

COWES (EAST), a hamlet in the parish of Waie-
PINGHAM, liberty of East Mepina, Isle of Wight divi-
sion of the county of SourEAMPTON, & of & mile (8. E, by
E) from West Cowes, The population is returned with
the parish. This village is situated on the eastern side
of the mouth of the river Medina, and owes its origin
to a fort, or blockhouse, erccted by Henry VIIIL,
for the defence of the harbour, of which no traces
are discernible, Here is a custom-house, where
:r!u:eh wrriving in the harbour pay the government

uties,

COWES (WEST), a sea-port and chapelry in the
northern division of the parish of Norrawoon, liberty
of Wesr Mepina, Isle of Wight division of the county
of Sovrmamrron, 41 miles (N.) from Newport, and
86 (8.w.) from London. The population is returned
with the pmrish, This place owes its origin to the
erection of a small castle on the western bank of the
river Medina, which commands the entrance of the
harbour : this fortress, which was built in the reign of
Henry VIIL, is a small edifice with a semicircular
battery mounting eleven pieces of: heavy ordnance, and
contains accommodation for a captain and a company
of artillery. From the excellence of the harbour, in
which ships may find shelter in stormy weather, and
from which they may sail out either to the east or west,
as the wind may serve, Cowes has become a populous
and flourishing town ; and, from its advan situ-
ation for ship-building, a private dock- has been
established, in which several men. of war have been
built for-the royal navy. The town is ll:lumtly and
romantically situated on the declivity of an eminence
rising from the mouth of the river Medina, by which it

this port in 'IBQD was one bhundred md&—-one,
nine

averaging thirty-nine tons’ burdem; in 1826,
British and four foreign vessels entered inwards from
foreign ports, and nine British and two foreign vessels
cleared outwards. Packets sail daily to Southampton
and Portsmouth, and passage boats to Newport and
Ryde. The living is a perpetual curacy, in the arch-
deaconry and diocese of Winchester, endowed with
£400 private benefaction, £400 royal bounty, and
£1400 parliamentary grant, and in the patronage of the
Vicar of Carisbrooke. The chapel, erected in 1657,
and consecrated in 1662, is on the summit of the hill
on which the town is situnted. There is a place of
worship for Wesleyan Methodists. )

COWFOLD, a parish in the hundred of Winpman
and Ewnvurst, rape of BramBiRr, county of Sussex,
7 miles (8. 8. E,) from Horsham, containing 822 inhabit-
ants. The living is a vicarage, in the archdeaconry of
Lewes, and diocese of Chichester, rated in thé king's
books at £10. 6. 8., and in the patronage of the Bishop
of Chichester,

COWGROVE, a tything in the parish of Win-
BorNe-MinsTER, hundred of Bapnuny, Shaston (East)
division of the county of Domrser, 2 miles (W.) from
Wimborne-Minster, containing 638 inhabitants.

COWICK, a chapelry in the parish of St. THOMAS
the AvostrLE, ExeTEr, hundred of Wonrorp, county
of Devoxn, 1 mile (8. W. by 8.) from Exeter, The
population is returned with the i The chapel
is dedicated to St. Thomas h Becket, A Benedictine
monastery, a cell to the abbey of Bec in Nmmcbiy;

-

of it. *

COWICK, a township in that of the parish of
Sxarra which is in the lower div. of the wapentake
of OsgoLpcross, West riding of the county of Yonk, §

a mile (8. E, by E.) from Snaith, containing 905 inha-
bitants, There is a small endowed school, b

COWLAM, a parish in the wapentake of Buckrose,

ng of the county of York, 6} miles (N. W.
ing 33 inhubitant
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~ COWLEY, a parish in the hondred of Rarsaare,
eounty of GroucesTer, 6§ miles (8. by E.) from Chel-
tenham, con 273 inhabitants. The living is a
rectory, in the and diocese of Gloucester,
rated in the kmgshoohatﬂﬂ.l 104, and in the
of the Crown. The church is dedicated to
St. Mary. The Ermin-street traces the southern boun-
dary of this parish.
COWLEY, a parish in the hundred of Erruonr~e,
county of Mmm.mx, 14 mile (8 by E.) from Uxbndge,
349 inhabitants. The living is a rectory, in
the archdeaconry of Middlesex, and diocese of London,
rated in the king's books at £ll, and in the
of E. Hilliard, Esq. The church is dedicated to St.
Lawrence. Barnard Dognall, in 1761, bequeathed four
acres of land, producing £10 per annum, for the
parish clerk, on condition of his keeping the church
free from dust, and the chnrchyard from weeds and
other annoyances.
COWLEY, a parish in the hundred of BurrineToN,
county of Ox¥oRrp, 24 miles (8. £. by E.) from Oxford,
472 inhabitants. The living is a perpetual
“curacy, in the archdeaconry and diocese of Oxford; en-
dowed with £600 private benefaction, and £600 royal
bounty, and in the patronage of the Dean and Canons
g Christ Church, Oxford. The church is dedicated to
James, There was anciently g preceptory of the
ng)ts Templars in this parish.

WLEY, a township in the parish of GrosaLy,
western division of the hundred of Curriesrone,
uotmty of Stavrorp, 5 miles (E.) from Newport, cop-

498 inhabitants.
| 'WLING, a in the hundred of Rissrince,

m&yofSule,B{mﬂa (N.N.W.) from Clare, con-
iuinlng?'wh:hhim 'I‘hehvinglsapcrpemnl
| curacy, in the archdeaconry of Sudbury, and diocese of
iNurwmh, endowed withdlmhe royal baunty,fngd 1‘5 1000

grmt,m patronage of the Master
bnd Fdlmu Trinity Hall, Cambridge. The church
is dedicated to St.

; There gre fairs on the
S1st of July and the 17th of October,
. COWLING, a joint township with Burrel, in that
part of the parish of Broare which is in the mwm
division of the
the county of Yon, 24 miles (W. by 8.) from

The on is returned with Burrel.
ING, a township in the parish of KiLowics,
‘eastern division of the of StaiNcrirre and

Ewcross, West riding of the county of York, 5§ miles

(a.s.w) from Skipton, containing 1870 inhabitants,
are chiefly “in the cotton manufacture,

Lnlwol is endowed with about £16 per annum, grising

i

n the parish of Horrox,
eastern dh'him Ul’ CasTLE wud, county of NorTrUM-

BERLAND, 8 miles ﬁamﬂlmwth, tain
amlmz.m é’:. S oo o

584

of Haxe, North udlcug taining

- on the

CoXx
culiar court of Allerton and W
the of Durham, rated in ktng‘u
£5. 11. 0., and in the patronage of Thomas m
Esq. Here is an hospital for decayed tenants, supposed

COWSHUISH, a comprising the hamlet of
Toulton in the parish of Kinsron, hundred of Tavx-
ron and TaunTON-DEAN, county of Somerser, 5§
miles (N.W. by N.) from Taunton. 'ﬂw population is

returned with the parish.

COWTHORN, a in the parish of Mrpous-
rox, Pickering lythe, N riding of the county of
Yorxk, 4 miles (N, N.W.) from Pickering, eontnining 2]
inhabitants.

COWTHORP, a parish in the upper division of the

take of Cramo, West riding of the county of
York, 3§ miles (N.E. by N.) from Wetherby, .containing
120 inhabitants. The living is a discharged rectory, in
the archdeaconry and diocese of York, rated in the
king's books at £4. 15. 10., and in the patronage of
T. Starkie, Esq. The church is dedicated to St. Mi-
chael.

COWTON (EAST), a parish in the eastern division
of the wapentake of Giurine, North riding of the
county of Yorx, 7 miles (N.E. by E.) from Catterick,
contai 338 inhabitants, The living is a discharged
wicarage, in the archdeaconry of Richmond, and diocese
of Chester, rated in the King's books at £4. 6. 10§.
is attached conditionally to the Master-

The patro
¢hip of Kirkby-Ravensworth Hospital, or otherwise in
the of the Wardens and Hospitallers. The

church is dedicated to St. Mary. A free school esta-
blished here has an annuity of £27 from Kirkby-Ravens-
worth school fund,

COWTON (NORTH), a township in that part of the
parish of GinLinve which is in the eastern division of
the wapentake of GiLLing, North riding of the county
of Yong, 6} miles (N.E.) from Catterick, containing
270 inhabitants,

COWTON (SOUTH), a chapelry in that part of the
parish of GiLLiNG which {s in the eastern division of
the wa of GiLruing, North riding of the
of York, 5§ miles (N.E. by E.) from Catterick, con-
148 inhabitants. e living is a perpetual cu-
tracy, in the archdeaconry of Richmond, and diocese of
e
parliamentary patronage car
of Gilling. The chapel is dedicated to St. Mary. On
the moor between this and North Cowton was

the famous battle of the Standard, in 1138, between
the English and the Scotch, when the latter were do-

feated with the 1 eleven thousand men : gu-m

is still called Hill, and the holes &n

the slain were ﬂuwm .-
OOXFORD,nhnnlntin p-mh—dmsg Rup-

uAM, hundred of Garvow, county of No
gtl:sg)ﬁnmmmhm ’ma@oydhﬂon
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township with Buxton, in that
parish of Buck~inn which is in the

stone quarries, and a good seam of clay for making
enware.

COXLODGE, a township in that part of the parish
of Gosrorr which is in the western division of CasTLE
ward, county of NorTHUMBERLAND, 24 miles (N.) from
Newcastle, containing 633 inhabitants. A place of wor.
ship for Wesleyan Methodists and a Sunday school were
In& in 1819. There are several collieries in the town-
ship. In 1800, the grand stand for the Newcastle race-
COuUrse was here, near which is a reservoir for
the y of that town with water, which is raised by

pump,
COXWELL (GREAT), a parish in the hundred of
Faruineoox, county of Berks, 13 mile (8. W.) from

, endowed with £400 ‘private bene-
faction, and £400 royal bounty, and in the patronage
of the Bishop of Salisbury. The church is dedicated
to St, Giles, Limestone and fossil remains are met
with here. There are the remains of a religious esta-
blishment in this parish, formerly built by the abbots
of Beaulieu, to whom the manor was granted by King
in 1204, now used as a barn : the adjoining farm-
occupied by the monks. On Badbury hill

Kinike was

E

ancient circular

the ancient Britons, & igw

COXWOLD, a parish in the wapentake ; '
vortH, North riding of the county of York, compris-
of Birdforth, and the ips of An-
gram;Grange, Byland cum Membris, Coxwold, Newbo-
rough, , Thornton with Baxly, Wildon-Grange,
and Yearsley, and containing 1447 i i of
which number, 348 are in the township of Coxwold, 5
miles (N.) from Easingwould. The living is & pay&l
curacy, in the archdeaconry of Cleveland, and diocese
of York, and in the patronage of G. Wombwell, Esq.
The church, dedicated to St. Michael, is a small an-
cient structure, said to have been erected so early as
700, with an nal tower : the chancel was rebuilt
in 1777, by the Harl .of Fauconberg: there is some
stained glass in the windows, and within are many
handsome monuments of the Belasyse family. A free

school was founded, in 1608, by Sir John
alderman of London, whp endowed it withs
£36. 13. 4. per annum, charged on certain lands in
this county : only a few boys are instructed in writing
and arithmetic, paying a small : also. An
hospital for ten poor men was founded, in 1696, by
Thomas, Earl of Fauconberg, the endowment of which
consists of a rent-charge of £59, and is divided
among ten poor persons, only two of whom reside
in the hospital, which comprises a chapel, with a
small chamber above, and two ts on each
side : an hospital for eight ‘poor women was also es-
tablished here, which has long since gone to decay.
There is a fair on the 25th of August. Sterne
wrote his Tuistram Shandy and some other works at
Shandy Hall, near this place, where he resided about
Bcven years, .

COZENLEY, a township in the parish of Krrxny-
MavrzeArp, lower division of the w of Cranro,
West riding of the county of Yonk, 44 miles (N. w. by
W.) from Ripon, containing 579 inhabitants,

CRABHALL, a joint township with Blacon, in that
part of the parish of the HoLy Triniry, CaEster,
which is in the higher division of the hundred of Win-
RALL, county palatine of CarsTer, 24 miles (N. W. by
N.) from Chester, The population is returned with
Blacon. -

CRACKENTHORPE, a township in the parish of
Bowngate, or St. Micmarn, ArrrLeny, Easr

of WESTMORLAND,

*
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CRA 536 CRA l
6f mils () from Skiptan, o 179 inhabit-  CRAKEHALL, a joint township with Elmer, in that
There is a- place of worship for Wesleyan Me- of the parish of Torcrirrs the wapen-
th o - mdﬂmﬁnm,h?oﬂ,:ﬂdhgﬂfﬁauﬁwﬂm

BRA.BLEY apnﬂahinthehududotw
county of HEREFORD, comprising the townships of
East and West Cradley, and containing 1459 inhabit-
of which number, 730 are in the of
Cradley, 7 miles (N. by E.) from Ledbury. The
living is a rectory, in the archdeaconry and diocese
i ‘s books at £18, and in
Hereford. The church

 CRADLEY, a chapelry in that part of the parish
of HarLes-Owen which is in the lower division of the
hundred of HavrsmirE, county of WonrcesTER, € miles
(N.W.byN.) from containing 1696 inhabit-
ants. The living is a curacy, in the archdea-
conry and diocese of Worcester, endowed with £400
private benefaction, and £1400 parliamentary grant,
and in the of Lord Calthorpe, the Rev. Mr.
Gisborne, and W. Wilberforce, Esq. The chapel, a
modern mﬂmﬂymamthebmwofn
shill, an agreeable prospect, has lately re-
ceived an addition of two hundred free sittings, the In-
corporated Society for the enlargement of churches and
chapels having granted £75 towards defraying the ex-
pense. There are of for ists, Wes-
leyan Methodists, and Unitarians. A National school for
oy and girls is supported by charitable contributions.
?Ih;ﬂvuﬁw runs on the north and mnorth-western
clgnlry and separates it from Stafford-

2 coal has been worked upon its banks,

but is mdumtmuad. Beautifully situated in a
y spot, amid pleasing walks, and on the banks of
large pool; or artificial lake, is Cradley Spa, where
and cold baths have been eracted :ethe water is

W(WEBT) lwwmhip in the parish of
] , hundred of Raprow, county of Hererono,
7 -(N;’hyn.)m;l_.ndhnry.mumngm inha-
bitants. A charity school is supported by subscriptions

« KEHAI L, tovnshlphthlt dw

CRAKEHALL, a part
of BepavLe which is in the eastern division of the Wa-
pentake of Hang, North riding of the county of Yorx,
14 mile (N.W. by W.) from Bedale, with
Rands- , 550 inhabitants, There are places of
worship for Ba.ptlntl and Wesleyan Methodists. . The
village form# a spacious quadrangle, endmhg an
extensive and pleasant green, ornamented with stately
trees.

CRAKEMARSH, a township in the parish of Ur-
roxETER, southern division of the hundred of Tormons-
row, county of Starrorp, 2§ miles (N, by E) from
Uttoxeter, with which the population is returned, Crake-
marsh is in the honour of Tutbury, duchy of Lancas-
ter, and within the jurisdiction of a court of pleas held
at Tutbury every third Tuesday, for the recovery of debts
under 40s.

CRAMBE, a parish in the wapentake of Burmex,
North riding of the county of York, comprising the
townships of Barton le Willows, Crambe, and Whitwell
on the Hill, and ec 59¢ inhabitants, of which
number, 152 are in the township of Crambe, 6§ miles
(8.W. by 8.) from New Malton. The #iving is a dis-
charged vicarage, in the archdeaconry of Cleveland, and
diocese of York, rated in the king's books at £9. 1. 8.,
and in the of the Archhishop of York. The

6 miles (.N.1) rom Boroughbridge. The population :

church is dedicated to St. Michael.

CRAMLINGTON, a chapelry in that part of the
parish of St. Annlxw, Newocastre, which is in the
eastern division of Castre ward, county of Norra-
UMBERLAND, 8§ miles (N. by E.) from Newcastle, con-
i The living is a perpetual

380 inhabitants.




3 bey, to which
tha urigmal establishment became a cell. The old
manor-house, from having been embattled, was called

held in it, in which was a room, called
the dungeon, for the confinement of offenders against
the chase laws,

The town is pleasantly situated at the north-eastern
extremity of the county, in the centre of a fine open
expanse of ‘champaign land : the houses are in general
neat and well built, and the inhabitants are amply sup-
plied with water. Riband-weaving formerly flourished
hiere, but has declined, and the majority of the labouring
class are employed in agriculture. The market is on
Thureday : fairs are held on August 24th and December
6th, for cheese and sheep. The town is within the juris-
diction of the county magistrates, and is divided into
the liberties of the tything, the priory, and the borough,
for which a constable, i an, and baﬂiﬂ',are ap-
pointed respectively. The living is a discharged viear-

m the archdeaconry of Dorset, and diocese of

rated in the king's books at £6. 13, 4., en-

dowed with £ 1000 private benefaction, and £2700 par-
liamentary grant, and in the patronage of the Marquis of
Bllitbm'y The church, dedicated to St, Bartholomew,
and formerly the conventual church of the priory, is an

ameient structure, partly Norman, and partly in the

early style of English architecture, with a and

handsome tower in the later style ; the pulpit is of oak,
ulrwﬂ, and supported on a pedestal of stone:
remains of stained glass in the large
south aisle, representing the Virgin Mary
of some of the Saints, An almshouse
was founded and endowed by

of July lst, 115, gl 60, i was e i e
ground of Jireh M&mﬁm

e

fifty yea.;'n its

extending three quarters of a mile in length, which

:nummed h;mchuu&'l?trlghtuglq
y paved, an y contains

built, houses, mmn snpphmed mw The

trnde:snawpﬂncfpnuym hops, wlnc is carried on to.
a considerable extent. Themrkel.fmmu%ynum-

day, and considerable for corn, hops, &e. hmwithh

the last few years, been altered to W. ﬁlﬂl
is also a cattle market on every nltemte

the market-house, a neat octagonal building lupzﬂlhﬂ
on double columns at the angles, and surmounted by a
cupola, was erected by William Coleman, Esq., a great
benefactor to the town. The fairs are on May 30th and
September 20th, for horses and cattle; the latter is
also a great hop fair.

The living is a vicarage, mthen'ehdewonrymd
diocese of Canterbury, rated in the king's books at
£10. 19. 44, endowed with £200 private benefaction,
and £1100 parliamentary grant, and in the nage
of the Archbishop of Cantarburv The church, dedica-
ted to St. Dunstan, is a spucious handsome structure in

bilated. The town consists chiefly of one wide street,

&
*

the later style of English architecture, with a square

embnttied tower : in the year 1725, of the columns
giving way, a part of the church fell down; it was re-
paired at an. expense of £2000. There a.replanu of
worship for Particular Baptists, Huntingtonians, Inde

pendents, Wesleyan Methodists, and Unitarians, ’ﬂie
free grammar school was founded, in 1574, by Simon
Lynch, Esq., and endowed by Queen Elizabeth with

land produdng at present about £ 140 per annur, which

has been augmented by subsequent benefactors to
£300 per annum : the management is vested in thir-
teen trustees, including the vicar. A writing school
was founded, in 1573, by Mr. Alexander Dence, who
endowed it with a house for the master, a schoolroom,
and the interest of £160; of this sum, £060 was ex-
pended intheenh:gemmtnftheprminu.theinm
of the remainder only available to the puyment of
the master. ANatlomllchoolfnrthomuuoﬁm.nf
an unlimited number of boys and
subseription.  In the hamlet of

rummsofanmcmohnpd,dcchmd to-the I
Trinity. There are several mineral  in the
nity, the properties of which ave similar to.
Tonbridgt-Welh Sir Richard Baker, (
English Chronicles, was born in this ps
year 1568, The celebrated William Huntington
minister of Providence chapel, Gray's Inn La

.don,lndfamduofumaﬂad“

sgalled h':g Four wm'" i, thumm,
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sh ip the hundred of Reb;

owp, 7 miles (W N, W.) from
153 inhabitants. % living is a
archdeaconry of Bedford, and ‘diocese of
in the sbooh at £33, 2. 1,; and in
the of the Rev. James Beard. The church is
dedicated to St. Peter and St. Paul, There is a place
of for Partiéular Baptists. A school is suap-
ported by charitable donations amounting to about £15
purnlmmn A mineral spring rises in the parish, but
it is very little resorted to. Cranfield gives the inferior
title of baron to the Duke of Dorset.
« CRANFORD, a parish in the hundred of Evrnorne,
county of Miopresex, 24 miles (N. W. by W.) from
g , containing 258 inhabitants. The living is a
, in ths archfleacmn-y of Middlesex, and diocese
of Londun. rated in the king's books at £ 16, and in the
patronage of the Countess of The
church is dedicated to St. Dunsten. The river Colne
the parish, and is crogsed by a bridge at
the village, called Cranford-bridge,

C FORD (ST. ANDREW), a parish in the hun-
dred of Huxvog, county of NorrTaAmrron, 4% miles
(B. by 8.) from Kettering, containing, with the parish of
Cranford St. John, 515 inhabitants. The living is a
rectory, in the archdeaconry of Northampton, and dio-

» S
4 L

cese of Peter h, rated in the ‘s books at
£9. 0. 7., and in the patronage of Sir . Robinson,
| Bart,

' CRANFORD (ST. JOHN), a parish in the hundred
{ of Huxvrog, county of Norraameron, 4miles (E. 8. L.)
lt‘rom Kettering, The population is returned with Cran-
{ford St. Andrew. The living is a rectory, in the arch-
deaconry of Northampton, and diocese of Peterborough,
rated in the ‘s books at £12, mdint.hepat.rom.ge
ofﬁn Bishop of Lincoln.
CRANHAM, a parish in the hundred of Caarrorp,
miles (E. 8. E.) from Hnmuhurch

nﬁadmthehinglboohatéw 13. 4., and in the pa-
tronage of the President and Fellows of St. John's
College, Oxford. The church is dedicated to All Saints,
This ;u-ull was formerly known by the names of
s Ockingdon and Cravenham.
mm.pmmmmma RarscATE,
county of Grovcester, 2§ miles (N, E. by E) from
Painswick, containing 321 inhabitants. The living is a
rectory, consolidated with that of Brimps-
and diocese of Gloucester,
rated in thakmg'lhnoklltl&&a..mdowedthh
of the Earl of

E

¥ mmr tpuhbhlhuuﬂ-ﬁvﬂnﬂ the
md&mmn,w of Surrey, 74 miles
o miﬁ)ﬂvw h rectory, in ﬁamg::tmyof
m a §
! y, and diocese of Winchester,

e U

mww- ]

™

Taakibr Rt % |

Bath and Wells, Thechurehhdadluhdtoﬁ;.-lm
The district which now comprises :
Cranmore was exempted from all suit .
the hundred courts, and raised into a liberty by Henry 1.

The inhabitants bury at West Cranmore,

CRANMORE (WEST), a parish forming, with the
parish of Evercreech aud the chapelry of Chesterblade,
a detached portion of the hundred of Werrs-Forum,

county of Somerskr, 3§ miles (E) from Shepton-
Mallet, containing 270 inhasbitants. The living is a

perpetual curacy, annexed to the vicarage of Doulting,
in the archdeaconry of Wells, and diocese of Bath
and Wells. The church is dedxcnudtoSthho-
lomew.

CRANOE, a parish in the hundred of GArTREE,
county of Lercester, 6 miles (N.N.E.) from Market-
Harhorough, containing 101 inhabitants. The living is
a rectory, in the archdeaconry of Leicester, and diocese
of Lincoln, rated in the king's books at £8. 16. 8., and
in the patronage of the Earl of Cardigan. The church
is dedicated to St. Michael.

CRANSFORD, a parish in the hundred of Promzs-
GATE, county of SurroLk, 24 miles (E.N.E.) from

£6. 13. 4., endowed with £200 private benefaction, and
£200 royal bounty, and in the patronage of the Rev.
C. Chevallier, The church is dedicated to St, Peter,
CRANSLEY, a parish in the hundred of Onrvring-
wury, county of Nomrmamperow, 8 miles (W.5 W,)
hfmm Kettering, containing 250 inhabitants, The living
a
ampton, and diocese of Peterborough, rated in the
king's books at £8. 5., endowed with £400 private
benaﬁcﬂon,mdﬁm:ayalbmby and in the patron-
age of J. C. Rose, Esq. Thechumhmdsdmudm

cammcx... hthahudmdofl‘mn
county of CorxwaLL, 7 miles (N.W. by W.) from Bt.
Michael, containing 389 inhabitants. The
perpetual curacy, inthcnd:dumnryuf

:“~‘
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ritls, supposed to have been erected by King
ane of whose freemeén possessed a moiety of this plnce
in the time of Edward the Confessor, The river Wissy
bounds the parish on the north.

CRANWORTH, a parish in the hundred of Mrr-
yourp, county of Norvork, 6 miles (N.E. by E.) from
Watton, containing 831 inhabitants, The living is a
rectory, with that of Letton consolidated, in the arch-
deaconry of Norfolk, and diocese of Norwieh, rated in
the kitig's books at £5. 18. 64., and in the patronage of
;’I‘ Gurdon, Fsq. The church is dedicated to St.

ary.

CRASSWALL, a chapelry in the parish of Cro-
pock, hundred of Ewvasuacy, county of Herevonrp,
5 miles (8.E.) from Hay, containing 374 inhabitants.
The living is a perpetunl curacy, in the archdeacoury of
Brecon, and diocese of St, David, endowed with £200
royal bounty, and in the patronage of the Earl of Ox-
ford. The ehapel is dedicated to St. Mary. About the
‘close of the reign of King John & monastery was found-
‘ed here, proba%nyby Walton de Lacy, for a prior and
ten rel:gmus of the order of Grandmont in Normandy :
at the seizuire of Alien priories it was valued at 40s. per
annum, and granted, in the 2nd of Edward IV, to
'God's House, now Christ's College, Cambridge. There
48 a fine stone quarry in' the neighbsurhood.

“CRASTER, a township in theparish of Emnrrrox,
southern division of Bamsroven ward, county of
Nowrnumnentasn, 6% miles (N.E.) from Alnwick,
containing 146 inhnbitants. The village, which is called
Craster Sea ‘Houses, is situated on the coast of the
North sea.

CCRATFIELD, a parigh in the hundred of Buyrn-
i!ao, county of Surrork, 5§ miles (W. 8, W) from
‘Halesworth, containing 717 inhabitants, The living is
‘wischurged vicirage, annexed to that of Laxfield, in
SRR iatoiy Ry st dickesé: o Norwih,

“rated in the M&isvu..mdhﬂnw
' « of Lord The church is dedicated
to . 'There is an endmﬁ?

Mh

-timloithe

e
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western division of CuesTer ward, éonntyplhﬂne of
Durnam, 93 miles (W.) from Gateshead, ouuhihint
308 inhabitants. Coal is obtained in this

Miss Simpson, of Bradley Hall, endowed a school

£25 per annum, for teaching twenty-six children j
another has been established by Lady Ravensworth,
who annually contributes £20 for the education ’d‘

8.
gHCRAWFORD-TARRANT , & parish in the hundml
of Bapnury, Shaston (East) division of the county of
Dorser, 3§ miles (8. E. by E.) from Blandford-Foram,
containing, with Preston, 76 inhabitants. The living
ie o perpetual curacy, in the archdeaconry of Dorset,
and diocese of Bristol, and in the patronage of E. B.
Portman, Esq. The church is dedicated to St Mary.
Richard Poor, successively Bishop of Chichester, Salis-
bury, and Durham, founded, about 1230, an abbey of
Cistercian nuns, in honour of the Blessed Virgin and
All Saints ; at the dissolution, its revenue was uﬂmmd
at £239. ll 10,

CRAWLEY, a township in the parish of Eerine-
maM, northern division of CoqUETDALE ward, county of
NORTRUMBERLAND, 04 miles (W. N. W.) from Alnwick,
containing 23 inhabitants. It was anciently ealled
Crawlawe, from Caer-law, a fortified hill. - Crawley tower, "
a# Roman structure, stands on an eminenceé near an old
and strong intrenchment, which'is thought to be the
Alauna Amnis of Richard of Cirencester, thongh some
place this station at Alnwick, and others at Glanton :
it commands a fine view of the vale of Whitti
with the river Breamish, from its source to .
castle ; and no less than seven British and Saxon forti-
fications may be discerned within faur ‘miles md*tli‘lt
spot. ) #ai
© CRAWLEY, a hamlet in the pnr!lh of qum,
hundred of Bamreron, county' of Oxvonp, 1§ mile
(N. W. by N.) from Witney, containing 221 inhabitunts.
© CRAWLEY, a parish in the hundred of Bupnues-
GaTE,; Fawley division of the county of SovrmAmrrox,
5 miles {!:fw .) from wmmb: . with the
chapélry of Hunton, 476 inhabitants. - Therlivhgﬁim
rectory, in the peculiar jurisdiction of ‘the incumbent,
rated in the King's books at £35. 13.4,, and in
::muge of tl';s ishop of Wincheat:m:'he chureh is

dicated to t.lhry ‘Crawleyis the jurisdic-
Court held at. mlw




September 29th.
" CRAWLEY (HUSBORN), county otnnnmm--
éea HUSBORN-CRAWLEY.

' CRAY (FOOT'S), a parish in the hundud Oﬁ va-
LEY, lathe of Surrox at Hoxe, county of Kexm, 124
aniles (8. E.) from London, containing 421 inhabitants,
The living is a discharged rectory, in_the archdeaconry

diocese of Rochester, rated in the king's books at

B. 3. 4., endowed with £ 200 private benefaction, and
£200 royal bounty, and in the of the Crown.
ngehmh.ded;mdman ints, is a small plain
:ﬂmﬁudtobeofhagh antiquity,  This

pn'ish probably derived its name from Fot, or Vot, its
in the time of Edward the Confessor, and

n the river Bny, which runs by the eastern end of
t'hevilhge amill, and then directing its
course towards Nort.h ray. A National school was
established in 1815, for which the Rev, Francis Wollas-
ton left £200 five per cents,; and amin Harence,
qu in 1817, gave land whueon ool-house had
ouslyemcted by subscription ; from seventy

0 children of both sexesare t at this school,
:il is supported by mtdhuﬁnm in aid of the origi-

uest,
CRAY (ST. MARY'S), a in the hundred of
uxLey, lathe of Surrox at Hoxg, connty of Kenr, 2
iles (8. by W.) from Foot's Cray, containing 874 inha-
itants. Thahvtngisa guracy, annexed to
Orpington, in the peculiar jurisdiction of
tubury The church contains se-
l.nd some memorials of the Man-
Auhurltyanhonlmmhushsdhmiu 1710, for
education of six children ; and Sir Thomas Dyke, in
1816, erected another, with a residence for the master

and n:mding its benefits to the children of
UW; by a upon es-
Huntuu in 1715 by Catherine

, which, with a weekly con on of two-

each qmt&omo ington,
%&t)ﬂawﬂm r.homﬁu-and ﬁu‘ﬁ

coal&c.

man, wnmﬁu
which the httghqudhdim 1776, 1
other donations

for the same purpose, produce about
£11, 11, per annum ;. in 1777, the former left £ 200 for
repairs and other uses, which, with additions since made,
yields an annual dividend of £12. 8. From these funds
£10 a year is paid to.a mistress for ~unli-
mited number of mdﬂdm,thqmcmﬂzﬁ
age of seven years, are admitted into the National
at Bexley, the master and mistress of which receive from:
this charity £5 per annum each, with an allowance of
20s. a year for books and rewards, This parish is pleas-
ingly diversified with villas and well cultivated domains,
of which Mount Mascull and Vale Mascall claim dis-
tinetion; in the grounds of the latter the river Cray
fomac&mdemuehldmmdform beanty.
In 1723 a subterraneous fire broke out, and the inhabit-
ants for several days afterwards employed themselves
with wagons in conveying water from Bexley, for the
purpose of quenching the flames.

CRAY (ST, PAUL'S), a parish in the hmdmd o‘
RuxLey, lathe of Surron at Hoxg, county of Kenr,
14 mile (8.) frum Foot's Cray, containing 364 inhabit-
ants.  The living is a reetory, in the archdeaconry and
diocese of Rochester, rated in the king's books at
£12. 18. 4., and in the pa of Viscount Sidney.
The church is dedicated to St. Panlinus, - In 1729,
Richard Chapman bequeathed a rent-charge of £2 to-
wards endowing a school, in furtherance of which the
Rev. Thomas Kingsman, ln 1752, left £ 50 three per
cents,, producing annually about £1. 10, which sums
mepmdwamhmforteachmgumﬂn. The
river Cray runs through this parish.

CRAYFORD, a parish (formerly a market ta!m) b
in the hundred of Lesswuss, lathe of Svrrox
Hoxg, county of Kusw, 13 miles (E. by 8) from
London, containing 1866 inbabitants. The living is
a rectory, in the peculiar j of the. o
of Canterbury, rated in the king's books at £35. 13, 4.,
and in the of Thomas Austen, Esq. The
church, dedicated to St. Paulinus, is a spacious
dern structure, adorned with an elegant altar-phna;- -
it stands on an eminence at the upper
village, which consists of an
mgoﬁtnthelnftof themdﬁml-ondmtonuﬁhtd.:
There is a place of wmhi for i
Crayford is =0 called from Cr

-

on the river Creccan, mmmmmn _




was bujlt ‘and oceupied by Sir Cloudesley Shovel, is
- mlhd.md i8 mow occupied by a farmer. ’
mom a parigh inthe hundred of WitneR-
IDGE, county of Dl:‘\fﬂl, 64 miles (S, E. by E.) from
Molwu, containing 40 inhabitants. The living is
rectory, in the archdueaury of Barnstaple,
uddioeueofkutermedinthe 's books at
£4.18. 9, endowed with £700 private benefaction, and
£900 royal bounty, and in- the patronage of the Rev.
W. Karslake. The church is dedicated to St. Michael.
CREAKE (NORTH), a parish in the hundred of
Brorrercross, tmmty of NorrowLxk, $ miles (S.E. by 8,)
from Burnham-Westgate, containing 618 inhabitants,
The living is a rectory, in the archdeaconry of Norfolk,
and  diocese of Norwich, rated in the king's books at
£33. 6. 8, and in the of Earl Spencer and
the Bishop of Norwich alternately. The church is de-
dicated to St, Mary, hesides which there was formerly
one dedicated to St. Michael, also parochial, At Lin-
croft, between Creake and Burnham, Sir Robert de
ereford, in 1206, founded a church, and subsequently
a chapel and hospital, dedicated in 1221 to St. Bartho-
lomew, in which he placed a master, four chaplains,
and thirteen poor lay brethren: this foundation soon
afterwards acquired the distinction of a priory, and in
the 15th of Henry II1. was elevated into an abbey : that
monarch also confirmed the grant of a fair previously
made, changing the period to the eve and festival of St.
Thomas the Martyr ; in the 14th of Edward I. the abbot
claimed the right of holding four fairs aunnually at
Creake, In consequence of the death of the abbot, and
there being no convent to elect another, the abbey was
deemed dissolved, and its possessions were granted, in
the 22nd of Henry VIL, to the Countess of Richmond,
by whom they were given to Christ's College, Cam-
bridge. In 1815 a school-house was erccted here, upon
land given for the purpose by a charitable individual,
There are four cottages appropriated for the benefit of

ﬂlﬂ' .

E?g:m (SOUTH), a parish in the hundred of
Broraercross, county of NorroLx, 4 miles (5.8, E.)
from - Burnham-Westgate, containing 728 inhabitants,

. 'The living is a discharged vicarage, in the archdeaconry
,*nﬁ Norfolk, and diocese of Norwich, rated in the king's
hqoknati%,mdhtha of H. Goggs, Iisq
'I!lu\ehuruh is dedicated to St. Mary. There is a place

- for Particular Baptists. In. the neighbour-
d s a Saxon fortification, the way from
vis called Blood ﬁ‘m the dreadful slaughter
in 8 bd:m the Saxons and the

in the hundred of
mm. 74 miles
402 inhabitants!

AMPTON, 74 miles (N.N.W)&omNmﬂumﬁhn, u
ing 106 inhabitants. ke
CREDENHILL, a parish in the hundred o GRekl

wonrTH, county of HEREVORD, 4} miles (N, W. by W.)

from Hereford, containing 199 inhabitants, The living
is a discharged rectory, in the archdeaconry and ¢

of Hereford, rated in the king's books at £17, 19. 4.,
and in the patro of the Rev. Edmund
church is dedicated to St. Mary. On the am_nmitof
a steep and lofty hill, the declivity of which is
wooded, are the remains of an ancient and almost inac-
cessible camp, having an outer and an inner trench,
closing an area of nearly forty acres: from its

fo;lnla some have attributed thmb“{:;;k to the Briti:ns
while others, ter probability, suppose it to
have been cnnstrucwﬁy the Romans, for the defence
of their adjacent stution at Kenchester, the Magna Cas-
tra of Antoninus : the view from it is one of the most
extensive and beautiful in the county.

CREDITON, a borough, market town, and parish, in
the hundred of Creprron, and extending also into that
of West Budleigh, county of Devoxn, 8 miles (N. W.)
from Exeter, and 180 (W. by 8.) from London, contain-
ing, with the tythings of Bradley, Canon-Fee, Fulford,
Knowle, Rudge, Town, Uford, Uton, and Woodlnnd,
65615 inhabitants. This place, which takes its name from
ita gituation on the river Creedy, was for many years
the geat of a diocese, of which a collegiate church,
founded here in 905, and dedicated to the Holy Crou.
became the cathedral. In the reign of Canute, Levinus,
Bishop of Crediton, prevailed upon that mouarch, with
whom he had t influence, to annex the see of St.
Germans to that of Crediton, the united se¢ havmg
been removed to Exeter, by Edward the Confessor, in
1050. A chapter, consisting of a dean and twelye pre-
bendaries, was still maintained in the old collegiate
church, under the jurisdiction of the Bishop of Exeter,
the revenue of which, at the dissolution, was £332, 17, 5.:
the church, with some lands belonging to it, was granted
to the governors of the free school in the reign of Ed-
ward VI. In the reign of Edward L this borough sent
members to a parlinment held at Carlisle ; and, in 1310,
Bishop Stapleton obtained for it t‘l:e“i:ut of i a weekly
market and two annual fairs. To the middle of
the sixteenth century, the opponents of the Ref
assembled their forces at Crediton, but were
to withdraw by Sir Peter Carew, who was sent
them with a superior force. In1644, Charles I. reyiew
his troops in this town, which was mm y pos: '_ .
sed by the army under Sir Thomas F in 1 R

7
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calamity occurred in 1769, IR TSI T LA T
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mumhmm,ﬁﬂu&w well-built houses in if required. wmmw
the centre, in which is also & range of shambles : it is 'mmdadbyl&. Sparway, in 15657, and

amply supplied with water. Assemblies and concerts
take place periodically, during the winter, in a good as-
sembly-room, conveniently fitted up for the purpose.
The principal branch of manufacture is that of serge,
which is sent to Exeter to be finished for exportation ;
dowlas, long ells, and flannel, are also manufactured
here, but not to a great extent : it is in contemplation to
bring the road to Barnstaple through the town, within
a short distance of which it now passes. The market,
which is very well attended, is on Saturday; and on the
Saturday preceding the last Wednesday in April is a
market for cattle, in which more than one thou-

Fairs for cattle are held,
town, on May 11th and
September 21st, and in the western division on the 21st
of August, unless it happen on Friday, Saturday, or
Sunday, in which case it is postpbned till the following
Tuesday ; this fair continues for three days, on the first
of which a great number of cattle is sold. The town
ie. within the jurisdiction of the county magistrates,
who hold a petty session every month; and its local
affairs are under the superintendence of s portreeve,
bailiff, and constables, chosen annually by a jury at the
court leet of the lord of the manor, the bailill for the
year preceding being in\rariably appointed to the office
of portreeve.

The living is a vicarage, in the peculiar jurisdiction
of the Bishop of Exeter, rated in the king's books at
£80, and in the patronage of twelve lay governors, in-
corporated by charters of Edward VI. and Elizabeth,
by whom the church is kept in repair. The church,
dedicated to the Holy Cross, is a spacious and magnifi-
cent cruciform structure, with a square embattled tower
rwing from the centre ; it was erected, or rather rebuilt,
the reign of Henry VIL, and is a fine specimen of
later English style of architecture, which at that
was in its highest perfection. There are places of
ip for Baptists, Independents, Wesleyan Metho-
, and Unitarians, The grammar school was found-
Edward VL, and further endewed by Queen Eli-
, who by her charter provided for the gratuitous
instruction of four boys, to each of whom forty shillings

of the parishes of Gndrbon and Sandford, on the pay-
ment of £5 perannum, is under the management of the
twelve governors, who appoint the master, to whom they
a salary of £30 per annum, and nominate the four
ﬁ : there are three exhibitions, of £6. 13. 4. each,
to eithe.r ‘of the Universities, tenable for five years, be-
p:pt::nl .:f‘jimal ¢ %mBl o
curacy: ey. ue-coat

nhod,fmded about the year 1730, by subunpuon,

g;sgﬁw

mu&:mnuym Qm
of these united nchooll is £116. 12.. lbmmhn.ndnd

Humphrey

by Mr. John Davie, in 1620. Near the church are some
ﬂlghtremnhlofthupncopﬂpdlm,mdﬂﬁﬁew
of St. Lawrence, ently - connected with one of the
prebends of the collegiate church : in North-street is an
ancient building, said to have formed part of the dean's
house, in & portion of which, supposed to have been the
refectory, the ancient ceiling is still preserved. Winifred,
Archbishop of Mentz, and legate under several of the
popes, who was eminently successful in

the doctrines of Christianity among the Mercians, and
suffered martyrdom in the year 354, was a native of this

lace.

CREECH (EAST), a tything in the parish: of
Cuavren-Kxowre, hundred of Hasivor, Blandford
(8puth) division of the county of Domser, 34 miles
(8.) from Warcham. The population is returned with
the parish.

CREECH (ST, MICHAEL), a parish forming, with
the parish of Lyng, which includes the Isle of Athel-
ney, a distinet portion of the hundred of Axpens.
r1eLD, locally in the hundred of Taunton and Taunton«
Dean, county of Somurser, 3% miles (E.N,E.) from
Taunton, containing 812 inhabitants. The living isa
vicarage, i the archdeaconry of Taunton, and diocese
of Bath and Wells, rated in the king's books at
£16. 18. 9., and in the patronage of E. Cresswell, Esq.
The church ig dedicated to St. Michael. Henry Stodgel;
in 1701, and Ann Seager, in 1741, bequeathed a rent<
charge of £2 euch for teaching poor children. The
navigable river Tone runs through this parish, and is
crossed by a bridge at the village.

CREED, a parish in the western division of the
hundred of Powner, county of Cornwart, § of a mile
(8.) from Grampound, containing, with the whole «of
the chapelry of Grampound, part of which is in the
parish of Probus, 947 inhabitants. The living is a
rectory, in the archdeaconry of Cornwall, and diocese
of Exeter, rated in the king's books at £13. 6. 8., and
in the pa of Sir Christopher Hawkins, - The
church is dedicated to St. Creed. There is a small.
chapel of ease at Grampound, in a ruinous condition.
'The parish is bounded on the west by the river Fal;
and in the neighbourhood are vestiges of two: ancient
intrenchments, each enclosing about one acre.

(,RLEKSEA a parish in the hundred of Dlxm
county of Esu:x, 2 miles (N, W, by W.) from Burnham, .
containing 152 inhabitants, - The living is a discharged
rectory, to which the vicarage of Althorne was united
in 1811, in the archdeaconry of Essex, and diocese of Lon~
don,ntedmthekingaboeksntﬂﬂ ‘8.10,, and in
tronuge of J. Robinson, Esq. The’church is dedicated
to All Saints. There is a ferry over Grouch:
Wallisea igland, from the south side of the -
where the marshes are protected from
strong embankments, about nine feet in Hzl-‘

CREETING (ALL smm}. w
dred of Bos and Craypon,

13 mile {N.) MM co j i i
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Fellows of Eton The church s demolished. valued at £495. 18. 5. the femaiis hisve’ been' eon-
2: Mml and Ipswich navigation passes along verted into a farm-house; part of the cloisters is still

- CREETING (ST. MARY), a parish in the hundred
of Bosmenx and Cravpox, county of Surrorx, 14 mile
(N.N.E.) from Needham-Market, containing 167 inha-
bitants. Thelwyng is a discharged rectory, consolidated
with the rectories of i i i

r Creeting All Saints and Creeting
St. Olave, in the archdeaconry of Suffolk, and diocese of
Ncrwu:h,_ rated in the king's books at £7. 14. 2., en-
dowed with £200 private benefaction, and £200 royal
bounty, Here was formerly a cell to the abbey of Bernay,
in Normandy, the revenue of which, at the suppression
of Alien establishments, was applied towards the en-
dowment of Eton College.

CREETING (ST. OLAVE), a parish in the hundred
of Bosmere snd Cravoow, county of SurrorLk, 2%
miles (N.N.E,) from Needham-Market, containing 35
inhabitants. The living is a discharged rectory, con-
solidated with the rectories of Creeting All Saints and
Creeting St. Mary, in the archdeacoury of Suffolk,
and diocese of Norwich, rated in the king's books at
£4.17. 8}. The church has been demolished.

CREETING (ST. PETER, or WEST), a parish in
the hundred of Stow, county of SurrorLk, 2} miles
(N. by W.) from Needham-Market, containing 169 in-
habitants. The living is a discharged rectory, in the
archdeaconry of Sudbury, and diocese of Norwich,
rated in the king's books at £10. 2. 6., and in the pa-
tronage of George Paske, Esq.

CREETON, a parish in the wapentake of Brrris-
LoE, parts of KesTEvEN, county of LincoLw, 8% miles
(8. by E.) from Corby, containing 51 mhabitants. The
living is a discharged rectory, in the archdeaconry and
diocese of Lincoln, rated in the king's books at
£4.15. 10, and in the patronage of the Crown. The
church is dedicated to St., Peter.

CREIGHTON, a township in the parish of Urrox-
erER, southern division of the hundred of Tormons-
Low, county of Starrorp, 2 miles (N. by W.) from
Uttoxeter, with which the population is returned.

CRENDAL, a hamlet in the parish of Craxnonne,
part of the hundred of Crannorng which is in

the Shaston (East) division of the county of Donrser,
€ miles (E.) from Cranborne, with which the population
is returned.  Potter's clay is dug here, and a consider-
able quantity of earthenware is made from it.
. CRENDON (LONG), a parish in the hundred of
++ AsmExpos, county of Buckineaam, 24 miles (N.by
BVipifeoms - Tmms domsining 1919 ichabiumts.
is a perpetual curacy, archdeaconry
- " and diocese of Lincoln, endowed with
, and in the patronage of the
The church, dedicated to St.

discernible, and round the cornice of an ancient room s
the Stafford kunot, repeatedly labelled in black letter,
with the motto En lui Plaisance. - : g8 Tokinci

CRESLOW, a parish in the hundred of Corresvon,
county of Buckineaam, 53 miles (N.) from Aylesbury,
containing 5 inhabitants. The living is a rectory, in the
archdeaconry of Buckingham, and diocese of Lincoln,
rated in the king's books ut £3. The church, which
was dedicated to the Holy Trinity, is desecrated,
n;ui :ﬁm inhabitants attend divine service at Whit-
church,

CRESSAGE, a chapelry in the parish of Counp,
hundred of Conpover, county of Savor, 4 miles (N.w."
by N.) from Much Wenlock, containing 295 inha-
hitants,

CRESSING, a parish in the hundred of Wrrmawm,
county of Essex, 34 miles (8. E.) from Braintree, con-
taining 489 inhabitants, The living is a discharged
vicarage, in the archdeaconry of Colchester, and diocese
of London, rated in the king's books at £7, 15, 5., and
in the patronage of Andrew Downs, isq. The church
is dedicated to All Saints, Cressing Temple, anciently
a commandery of the Knights Templars, was given by
King Stephen, with the advowson of the church, in per-
petual alms to that order; on its dissolution these
possessions passed to the Knights Hospitallers of St.
John of Jerusalem, and reverted to the crown at the
general suppression. ;

CRESSINGHAM (GREAT), a parish in the south-
ern division of the hundred of GrEgnnoEk, county of
Nonrvorx, 44 miles (W. by N.) from Watton, containing
400 inhabitants. The living is a disc rectory,
with the curacy of St, George, and the rectory of Bod-
ney united, and a royal peculiar, in which the rector ex-
ercises jurisdiction, rated in the king's books at
£17. 18. 14., and in the patronage of the Crown. The
church, dedicated to St. Michael, is composed of flint
and freestone, with a tower at the west end, and is orna-
mented in many places with the letter M, surmounted
by a crown, also an erect sword, with a crown on the
point, supposed to be memorials of the victory of the pa-
tron saint ; the nave and chancel are separated by a
screen curiously painted and carved, behind which are
gix stalls, similar to those in collegiate churches. Abput
amile from the village, in a field called Stone-close,
stood the parochial chapel of 8t. George, previously the
chapel of a hermit, in right of which the rector holds
a fair apnually on the 12th of August, for horses and
toys.

CRESSINGHAM (LITTLE), a parish in the south-
ern division of the hundred of GrexxmoE, county of
Norrork, 3 miles (W.) from Watton, contai 160
inhabitants, The living is a rectory, in the

archdeaconry of Norfolk, and diocese of Norwich, rated

in the king’s books at £183. 12. 6., and in the

of the Rev. Thomas Baker. The church is dedicated

to St. Andrew. : Y
CRESSWELL, a township in the parish of Woon-

nonrn, eastern division of Mo
NORTHUMBERLAND, B}
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CRESSY HALL, a chapelry in the parish of Sun-
rurET, wapentake of Kriron, parts of HoLuanp, county
of Linconn, 63 miles (N. N, W.) from Spalding. The
population is returned with the parish,

CRESWELL, an extra-parochial liberty, in the south-
ern division of the hundred of Pimeminy, county of
Starrorp, 3 miles (8. W. by 8.) from Cheadle, contain-
ing 12 inhabitants.

CRETINGHAM, a parish in the hundred of Lozs,
county of SUrroLk, 4} miles (W, 8. W.) from Framling-
ham, containing 375 inhabitants. The living is a dis-

vicarage, in the archdeaconry of Suffolk, and*
diocese of Norwich, rated in the king's booksat£9.10. 10.,
and in the patronage of the Crown. The church is de-
dicated to St, Andrew.

CREWE, a township in the parish of Farnpox,
higher division of the hundred of Broxtow, county pa-
latine of CuesTeR, 6§ miles (N. W.) from Malpas, con-
taining 47 inhabitants. It is bounded on the west by
the river Dee.

CREWE, a township in that part of the parish of
Barruomrey which is in the hundred of Nantwics,
county palatine of CuesTer, 44 miles (8. W. by §.)
from Sandbach, containing 207 inhabitants. A charity
school was founded in 1720, pursuant to the will of

"Thomas Leadbeater, Esq., who thed £30 for the
| erection of a school-house, and £ 120 for the maintenance
lof a master,
| CREWKERNE, a market town and parish in the
| hundred of CrEWKERNE, county of SoMERSET, 10 miles
| (8. W. by 8.) from Ichester, and 132 (W. 8. W.) from
'London, containing 3434 inhabitants, This place, being
' a royal manor, anciently enjoyed many privileges, and
|in the reign of Henry IL was exempt from taxation.
' The town is pleasantly situated in a fertile valley, wa-
!tered by branches of the rivers Parret and Axe, and
' sheltered by hills richly planted ; it consists of five prin-
“eipal streets, diverging from a spacious market-place, in
the centre of which a large and commodious market-
‘house has been erected : the honses are in general well
‘built and of" hmds:in:- sppeurmg.ﬂaume inhabitants are
‘amply supplied with water -C stockings, and
dowlas, are manufactured here. The market, which is
nppliedwﬂ:heom.h on Saturday : the fair is on
th of September, for horses, bullocks, linen-dra-
, cheese, and toys, The living is a perpetual curacy,
of Taunton, and diocese of Bath
with £800 parliumentary grant,
of the Dean and Chapter of Win.
The church, dedicated to St. Bartholomew, is
cruciform stmﬂmt, in the decorated stylc of

W&mg from the M crowned with bat-
Mmdmhdﬂ ‘turrets : the in-
“terior is finely o ‘the windows are large and filled

with rich tracery, mwmum«m sup-
port ﬁfm are lofty and of g

“elevation ; be-
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want of applications, has been for some time accumu-
lating for the angmentation of the exhibitions, A cha-
rity school is supported by subscription; and there
are two almshouses, one of which, for six men
and six aged women, was, in 1707, endowed with a
rent-charge of £29, by Mrs, Mary Davis.

CRICH, a parish comprising the township of Crich,
in the hundred of MornesToN and. Larcmurca, the
township of Wessington, in the hundred of Scarspavg,
and the hamlet of Tansley, in the hundred of Wirks-
worTH, county of Dersy, and containing 2061 inhabit-
ants, of which number, 2024 are in the township
Crich, 4 miles (W.by8.) from Alfreton. The living
a discharged vicarage, in the archdeaconry of Derby,
and diocese of Lichfield and Coventry, rated in the
king's books at £6. 10. 10., endowed with £200 private
benefaction, £200 royal bounty, and £600 parliament-
ary grant. The Lord Chancellor, by reason of 1 .
presented in 1801, The church, dedicated to St. Mary,
has a tower surmounted by.a spire, and contains several
ancient monuments of the Dixie family. There are
two places of worship for Wesleyan Methodists, one at
Crich, the other at Tansley, Thizs place, which is situated
on an eminence commanding extensive prospects, was,
not long since, an inconsiderable village, and rose into
importance from the establishment of a cotton-manu-
factory at Frichly, in 1793 : in 1810 it received the
grant of a market, which was discontinued on the de-
cline of the manufactory ; fairs for cattle are held on
April 6th and October 11th. Several of the inhabit-
ants are employed in the adjacent quarries, which pro-
duce limestone of a superior quality, a considerable
quantity being sent to London and Manchester ; here
are also kilns for burning it : the manufacture of stack-
ings is carried on to a limited degree. The Cromford
canal passes along the western side of the parish, and
through a tunnel at itsnorth-western and southern extre-
mities : from the latter point a railway rums north-
ward to within.a short distance of the vi In
1825, an infant school was established in the parish.
Crich is evidently a place of some antiguity, coins of
Adriagn and Dioelesian having been found in an adjacent
lead mine, whenee it is conjectured that lead was first
obtained here by the Romans: at the period of the
Norman survey, “Leuric had a lead mine at Cl'ic,
which is still wrought to a small extent. The
Wakebridge, in this parish, which formerly he.lnngul
Darley abbey, still enjoys the privilege of exemption from
king's duty on lead-ore, the mine of which is considered
the richest in the county. About one mile north
village is Crich cliff, a lofty hill,upon the summit of
an observatory was erected in 1739;1“1
posed of limestone, and contains -mines -
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w amtainmg 968 inhabitants. The living is
mhdﬂom-ptf i and
gﬂ Peterhorough, rated in the king's books at
13. 14, and in the patronage of President

and Fellows of St. John's Oollege, Oxford. The church
is  dedicated to St, M A school was endowed
ﬁpﬂnrdu of fifty years ago, by Willinm Henfray, with a

5“5. »

C:Rl "
to t.hcnorth of the town, 'nm-lnrkct hwmy

m]lplusmfm,«whiuhin:ﬁllhﬂdm.ﬁb_

Sepuembcr The mmm;ﬂ
the first Saturday in every month: a

and other officers are appointed by a jury at the court -

bequest of about £10 per annum, for the education of leetofthalorﬁofthemamr,whnbddﬂlmm

twelve poor children,  Richard Rayson, in 1806, be-
queathed £15 a year for teaching twenty children free;
and Elizabeth !:t,:ﬁnbe in 1822, left €10 in trust, that
the interest sh be applied for a Sunday school :

third week, for the reeoveryof debts under 405,

Jade is a borough by preseription, and exercised
elective franchise from the reign of Edward L, but with
various intermissions till that of Henry VL., since which

the schoolmaster to whom these several sums are paid ®time it has uninterruptedly continued to return two mem-

has the use of a schoolroom, house, and garden. The
Grand Union canal, in its course through this parish,
passes under an arch or tunnel, one thousand five hun-
dred and twenty- -four yards in Iength and the Roman
Watling-street traces the entire western boundary.

CRICKET (ST. THOMAS), a parish in the south-
ern division of the hundred of Prruenrrox, county of
Somerser, 4} miles (W.by8.) from Crewkerne, con-
taining 75 inhabitants. The living is a discharged rec-
tory, in the archdeaconry of Taunton, and diocese of
Bath and Wells, rated in the king's books at £9. 17. 6.,
and in the patronage of Lord Bridport. The church is
dedicated to St. Thomas.

CRICKET-MALHERBIE, a parish in the hundred
of Anproxk and Burstonm, county of SomurseT, 2%
miles (8.) from Ilminster, containing 73 inhabitants.
The living is a discharged rectory, in the archdeaconry
‘of Taunton, and diocese of Bath and Wells, rated in the
king's books at £6. 6. 3., and in the patronage of Mrs.
Pitt. The church is dedicated to St. Mary Magdalene.

CRICKLADE, a borough and market town, in the
hundred of Hicnworrn, Crickrape, and Srtavie,
county of Wirrs, 44§ miles (N.by W.) from Salisbury,
and 83 (W.byN.) from London, containing, with the
township of Whidhill, 1506 inhabitants. This place,
which is of great antiquity, is by some antiquaries

ed to have derived its name from the British

Cerigwldd, signifying a country abounding with stones;
and by others from the Saxon Cracca, a brook, and

Ladian, to empty; the small rivers Churn and Rey here

ing themselves into the river Isis. Itis thought

by Dr. Stukeley to have beeén a Roman station, from its
* gituntion on the Roman road which connected Corinium,
now Cirencester, with Spine, now Spene. About the year
'905, Ethelwald, opposing the election of Edward the
Eldertothzd:rm collected a body of troops, con.
ng principally of East Anglians, and advanced to
place on apredatory excursion, from which he re-

'mth his plunder before Edward, who was march-
lihn l:ntl reached the town. In 1_010, the

bers to parliament: in consequence of notorious bribery,
the elective franchise was, in 1782, extended to the five
adjoining divisions, viz. Highworth, Cricklade, Staple,
Kingsbridge, and Malmesbury. The right of ehcﬂon is
vested in the freeholders, copyholders, and leaseholders
for not less than three years, within the borough, and in
the frecholders of the five divisions : the number of voters
is about one thousand two hundred; the bailiff is the
returning officer.
Cricklade comprises the parishes of St. Sampson and
St. Mary, both in the archdeaconry of Wilts, and diocese
of Salisbury. The living of St. Sampson’s is a vicar-
age, rated in the king's books at £18. 11. 104., and in the
patronage of the Dean and Chapter of Winchester: the
church js a spacious and ancient cruciform structure, with
a handsome square tower rising from the intersection,
crowned with a pierced parapet and pinnacles, and highly
ornamented with niches and pedestals: the south poreh
was formerly a chapel built by one of the H
family; and towards the east is another porch, with
large battlements, having in the centre the figure of a
lion couchant: the interior is of corresponding character.
The piers and arches which support the tower are lofty
and of graceful elevation; and the interior of the tower,
which is open to a considerable height, is decorated
with numerous escutcheons, among which are the cog-
nizances of the earls of Warwick, one of whom contri-
buted largely to the building of the church: a stone
cross, which formerly stood in the principal street, was
removed into the churchyard, when the old town-hall
was taken down. The living of St. Mary's is a dis-
charged rectory, rated in the king's books at £4. 14, 04.,
endowed with £200 private benefaction, and £ 1900
royal bounty, and in the alternate of the
King and the Bishop of Salisbury : the church is a very
ancient structure; the chancel is separated from the
nave bynmrcu]uNomm arch, and the interior con-
tains many vestiges of its original character; in the
churchyard is a handsome stone cross of one shaft on a
flight of steps; the head is richly ornamented with
sculptured figures in mnpwd nio.hn 'l‘hmﬂn
of worship for
Thmmfnml‘ylﬁeeuhnﬁ;fomdd Mm
by Robert Jenner, Esq., citizen and goldsmith of London;
but the endowment has been lost, and the building con-
verted into tenements for paupers ; hmw
is a. Nm«ml -elmol for girla; udthu_am
lmgtheawmlhew !
of & hundred acres of land in the neighbourho
producing £125 per annmn, d‘rm_' b is i
Mm:thmmd r children, and tl
t : R ) T




. TN T W . ¥ N " TR g e
" $ o W !I:"' Mt |

. CRI o 546 o CRO ’ ".'-""." '
- . :
mdud:smbuudmongthepoor In the parish of small ancient fabric, a.tthe west end an :
St. Mary are the remuins of the priory of St. John the tower, with a porch of wum :!

Baptist, founded in the reign of Henry ITI., now converted
into a residence for the poor: there was also an
dedicated to the same patron, the revenue of
the dissolution, was £4. 10. 7.; some land

- it, inthe parish of St. Sampson, is still called the

. CRIDLING-STUBBS, a township in the parish of
WomenrsLey, lower division of the - of Os-
GoLperaoss, West riding of the county of Yonrx; 4§ miles
(E.) from Pontefract, containing 96 inhabitants,

CRIGGLESTONE, a township in that part of the

, At
ing to

parish of Grear Saxparn which is in the lower divi-*

sion of the wapentake of Aesrice, West riding of the
county of Yomrk, 3§ miles (8. by W.) from Wakefield,
containing 1265 inhabitants. There isa place of worship
for Particular Baptists. Here are two tanneries and
several malt-kilns,

CRIMPLESHAM, a parish in the hundred of CLack-
cLosE, county of Norrork, 2% milés (E.) from Downham-
Market, containing 279 inhabitants. The living is a
discharged vicarage, in the archdeaconry of Norfolk, and
diocese of Norwich, rated in the king's books at £8,
and in the patronage of the Bishop of Ely. Fhe church

- is dedicated to St. Mary.

CRINGLEFORD, a parish in the hundred of Hum-
BLEYARD, county of Norrork, 24 miles (S. W, by w.)
from Norwich, containing 150 inhabitants, The living
is & perpetual curaey, in the archdeaconry of Norfolk,

"and diocese of Norwich, and in the patronage of the
| and Corporation of Nerwich. The church is de-
| dicated to St. Albert. Within the parish was anciently
| a free chapel, dedicated to St. Ethelred, to which pilgrims
|used to resort in great numbers, Cringleford derives
| its name from the gravelly ford, which has been super-
!seded by a stone bridge, separating the liberties of
| Norwich from the rest of the dounty.
| . CRIPTON, a tything in that part of the parish of
‘Winternoury-Came which is in the hundred of Cur-
rawworp-Tree, Dorchester division of the county of
Dorser, 34 miles (8. by E.) from Dorchester, containing
20 inhabitants.

Gﬂmu(loONG),apmilhinthehundredof
Kuorx.m,-ﬂhmon (East) division of the county of
ﬁ‘-mﬂu(w ‘8. W.) from Cranborne, containing

The living is a rectory, with which the
my-fumw was united in 1774, in the
zhdnomofﬂcnet,mdﬁomof&mol,medm
The church, dedicated to St. Mary,
Mwmﬁﬂau&nﬂ,nﬂhamiwbumusm
mmﬁhn&,inwhhh.thuuhanich and beneath it
: ﬁieldlmululnﬁnd-  Critchell, which re-
from its greater
parish of Moore-

”': bk 7 J}Luf mo-
e85
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well endowed with certain messnages and land, one
hundred sheep, and twelve: hnp, by John de Bridport,
in the 2nd of Edward IIL., for udnphﬁ:tomrdﬂy
for his soul.

_ COROBOROUGH, a joint township with w
in the parish of Homron, northern division of the
hundred of TormonsLow, county of Starrorp, B
miles (W.) from Leek, The population is returned whh
Blackwood.,

CROCK-STREET, a hamlet partly in the parigh af
Comse St. NicnoLas, eastern division of the hundred
of Kingssury, and partly in the parish of Donyarr,
hundred of Anprek and Bursrone, county of Somenr-
ser, 3 miles (W. 8, W.) from Ilminster. A considerable
quantity of coarse earthenware is made at the paueriel
in this' hamlet.

CROCKERN-WELL, a hamlet partly in the parish
of Biswop-Cuerrrox. and partly in that of Drews-
TEINGTON, hundred of Wonronrn, county of Devon,
7 miles (8. W.) from Crediton. The hamlet is divided
into three parts, and sbounds with beautiful scenery.
Here was formerly a chapel, but there are no remains
of it.

CROCKERNE-PILL, a hamlet in the parish of
Easton in Gorpaxo, hundred of Porrsury, county of
Somenrser, 5§ miles (N. W.) from Bristol. The
tion is returned with the parish. This hamlet, which
had its rise in the seventeenth century, is chiefly inha-
bited by mariners, who are principally engaged in piloting
vessels to and from Bristol, and down the channel, under
the regulations of the company of merchant adventurers
of Bristol: it is situated on the banks of the Avon,
near the junction of that river with the Severn.  *

CROFT, a parish in the hundred of WoLrny, county
of Heneronn, 54 miles (N. N. W.) from Leominster, ¢on-
taining, with the township of Newton, 119 inhabitants,
The living is a discharged rectory, with the perpetusd
curacies of Elton and Yarpole united, in the archden-
conry and diocese of Hereford, rated in the king's

faction, and £200 royal bounty, and in the
age of the Rev. James Keville. The church is
cated to St. Michacl. At Castle Parke, on an
to the north-west of the iaCmﬁAmlmy, .
meutﬂnmhcmp.mthadmbbditchmﬂnm \

CROFT, a joint township with Southworth, in the
parish of Winwick, hundred of West Dersy, county
palatine of Laxcaster, 4 miles (E.8, E.) from Newton
inlhcka“ d. Thepopdnﬂonkmdwithw\
wo

" CROFT, a parish intllclmndmdofﬁ NHOE,
county of lmcm,ﬂnﬂhs (n.irywjllu' }
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o lameonny i demile (%, /B, from. Waineet,cone the anchdeaconry and. dioesse-ofGarliske, rated i the
taining 483 inhabitants. The living is a vicarage, in  king's books at £8, and in th of H.

ﬁt‘uehduconry and diocese of Lincoln, rated in the
king's books at £23.7. 34., and in the of

‘ Iardlﬂonmr}. The church is dedicated to All Saints.

There is a trifling bequest for the benefit of the poor.

- CROFT, a parish partly within the liberty of St.
Prrer of York, East riding, but chiefly in the east-
ern. division of the wapentake of GiLuing, North
riding, of the county of Yonrx, comprising the town-
ships of Croft, Dalton upon Tees, and part of Sta-
pleton, the remaining portion of the last being in
the parish of St, John Stanwick, and containing 647
ml'mbitlmta, of which number, 867 are in the town-
ship of Croft, 34 miles (8.) from Darlington. The
living is a rectory, in the archdeaconry of Richmond,
end diocese of Chester, rated in the king's books at
£12, 8.4., and in the patronage of the Crown. The
church, dedicated to St. Peter, exhibits specimens of
the various styles of English architecture, The vi
is situated on the banks of the Tees, half a mile to
the west of which is a sulphureons mineral spring, the
water of which is used both for drinking and bathing :
commodious baths were fitted up about fifteen years ago,
Certain lands are held in this place by the owner pre-
senting on the bridge, at the coming of every new
bishop of Durham, an old sword, pronouncing a legend-
ary address, and delivering the sword to the bishop,
who returns it immediately. A eharity school, in which
twenty-five children are instructed, is supported by a
small bequest from Lady Crew, and by voluntary contri-
butions, the whole amounting to about £256 per annum.

CROFTON, a township in the parish of Trursny,
ward and county of CumpERrLAND, 34 miles (E. N.E.)
from Wigton, containing 65 inhabitants.

CROFTON, in the parish of OrrineTox, hundred of
Ruxwey, lathe of Surron at Hong, eounty of Kenm,
$4 miles (S.byW.) from Foot's Cray. This ie said to
have been once a parish, and the village to have been

by fire,

CROF'I‘E)N.: township in the parish of DipbLERURY,
bundred of Munsnow, county of Savor, 74 miles
(N.byw.) from Ludlow. The population is returned with
the parish. _

. CROFTON, a chapelry in the parish and hundred
of TrrorvieLn; Portsdown division of the county of
SourTuaMmrron, 24 miles (8, W, by w.) from Fareham,

+ The population is returned with the parish. The

is dedicated to the Holy Rood. .

. CROFTON, a parish in the lower division of the

e of Aesrige, West riding of the county of

! Yonx, 33 miles (E 8.E) from Wakefield, containing

& 459 inbabitants.. The living is a rectory, in the arch-

 deac diocese ‘of York, rated in the king's books

. in the later English style,

and
O at£10.0.25, the patronage of the King, as Duke.
:‘ wm&g %m, dedicated to All Saints, is

the Baptist. The river Croglin he 8¢
gives its name to this parish: veinsof coal extend gh
it, and there are quarries of limestonie and red frees
stone, besides a species of porphyry, or bastard marble,
The land is chiefly mountainous, with a remarkablé
lofty eminence, named Croglin fell. In a deep vale on
the north side of the viver is the village, near which are
the remaing of an old border fortification, termed Scar-
romanwick. The school, built by subseription in 1724,
is endowed with the interest of £50, given in 1728
by the Rev. J. Hunter, then rector, and an

of twenty-four acres, appropriated on the enclosure
of waste lands pursuant to an act passed in 1808,
yielding about £24 per annum; thirty-five children are

taught, 1 :

CROKEHAM, a hamlet in that part of the parish
of TrarcHaM which is in the hundred of Faircross,
county of Brrxs, 4§ miles (8. E.) from Newbury. The
population is returned with the parish, Here was for-
merly a chapel, which has been demolished.

CROMER, a parish (formerly a market town) in
the northern division of the hundred of ErriNncaam,
county of Norrouk, 21 miles (N.) from Norwich, and
130 (N.N.E.) from London, containing 1023 inhabitants,
This place, originally of much greater extent, included
the town of Shipden, which, with its church snd a
considerable number of houses forming another parish,
was destroyed by an inundation of the sea, It is situated
on a high cliff, on the north-eastern coast of the North
sea, commmanding a fine view of Cromer bay, which;
from its dangerous navigation, is by seamen called the
“Devil's Throat.," The town was formerly inhabited only
by a few fishermen, but, from the excellence of its beach,
the salubrity of its air, and the beauty of its scenery, it has
become a bathing-place of some celebrity : there are
still some remains of the walls with which it was an-
ciently surrounded ; and a fort and two half-moon bat-
teries were, during the last war, erected upon a com-
manding eminence for its defence: the houses are in
general badly built and of mean appearance, but those
near the sea are commodious and pleasantly situated,
and there are several respectable inns for the accommo-
dation of visitors ; the inhabitants are amply supplied
with water from springs. There are a circulating
library and a subscription news-room; and a regatta
is annually celebrated. The coast het'wmtl;:'m
and Yarmouth being extremely dangerous, it 8
found to erect within that short distance not
less than four lighthouses, of which that at Cromer,
three quarters of a mile to the east of the town, is built
of brick coated with Roman cement ; it is three stories.
high, and has a revolving lantern, twenty-four feet in
highly polished metallic reflectors, ting every

Esq.and others, The church is dedicated to St.John

&



books at £9. 4., endowed with £400 royal bounty, and
£800 parlimmentary grant, and in the patronage of the
Bishop of Ely. The church, dedicated to St. Peter and
St. Paul, was built in the reign of Henry IV, ; it isa
handsome structure of freestone and flint, in the later

trance, the north porch, and the chancel, though much
are fine specimens of the later style.
There is a place of worship for Wesleyan Methodists.
A National school for an unlimited number of children
of both sexes is by subscription
RD, a chapelry in the parish nnd hundred
of Winkswortr, county of Derny, 15 miles (N.)
from Derby, containing 1242 inhabitants. This place,
 which is pleasantly situated on the river Derwent, was
an inconsiderable vi prior to the year 1776, when
Sir Richard i -

customary market is held on Saturday; the
others are chiefly in detached situations. The cotton-

| manufactory affords employment to more than one
a proportionate number

persons, including
«hildren, who are not. admitted into the factory
tilh?niorawuinﬁmeataschnol

proprietor for their instruction :
mmuﬁctcryfnrhm l.ndnnefor
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of Lancaster, and within the jurisdictiod of a court of
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pleas held at mmmmmy, M*e
recovery of debts under 40s. "

CROMHALL (ABBOT'S), a prhlwh 'the umr
division of the hundred of Berxrrey,
lower division of the hundred of Thombury uf
Grovcester, 24 miles (N.W. by W.) from 'Wickﬂr
containing, with the tything of Lygon-Cromhall, 703
inhabitants. ‘The living is a réctory, in the tmhdu-
conry and diocese of Gloucester, rated in the
books at £16. 9. 2., and in the pa ‘of the?m-
vost and Fellows of Oriel College, Oxford. The church,
dedicated to St. Andrew, is partly in the early and
partly in the later style of English architecture. ' The
prefix to the name of this arises from its having
belonged to the abbot and convent of St Augustine, in
Bristol, to which society it was given by Lord Berkeley,
in 1145, A coal mine has been lately opened in the
neighbourhood.

CROMHALL (LYGON), a tything in the parish
of Asnor's CromuaLy, upper division of the hundred
of BerkeLey, county of GrovcesTer, 4§ miles (N.W)
from Wickwar. The population is returned with
the parish, This place derives its distinguishing nume
from having anciently belonged to the family of Lygon.

CROMPTON, a township in the parish of Oupmam
cum Prestwicn, hundred of Saurorp, county palatine
of LaNCASTER, 4-} miles (8. E,) from Rochdale, t:cn«
taining 6482 inhabitants,

CROMWELL, a parish in the northern dmlion
of the wnpenuke of TrureArTON, county of Nor«
TINGHAM, 54 miles (N.) from Newark, con 184
inhabitants. The living is a rectory, in the archdea-
conry of Nottingham, and diocese of York, rated iw
the king's books at £18. 2, 34,, and in the
of the Duke of Newcastle. The church is dedlnned
to St. Giles.

CRONDALL, & parish in the hundred of Cron-
DALL, Buingntnke division of the county of Sovrm-
AMPTON, comprising the tythings of Ewshott, Dippens
hall, Crondall with , and Crookham, and
containing 1894 inhlbltants, ot which number, 470 are
in the township of Crondall with Swanthorpe, 3 miles
(W.N.W.) from Farnham. The living is a vicarage, in

the archdeaconry and diocese of Winchester, rated in

the king's books at £22. 6. 74., and in - the
d‘thaMmdBnthrﬁnof:haHuplﬂlofﬁhM

]

Winchester. The church, dedicated to All Saints, is & *|

lugemientmtmpuﬂyintheﬁmm The =
this parish. At Bad-

Basingstoke canal passes

ley Pound farm, a mile south ﬁevlllige,l
Roman Mosaic pavement, twelve feet
covered a few years since, and is still
ations of ‘with
MMthemMWe.“
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CRO()amttownlhlp t yrow, in the
parish of Brancerera, north-western division of Dan-
LINGTON warll, county palatine of Durman, 5§ miles
(N, W. by N.) from Bishop-Auckland, containing 228
inbabitants.  Crook is a scattered village, partly ex-
umimg into the adjoining township of Helmington

CROOK. a chapelry in the parish and ward of
Kxnms.. county of WesrmoruanD, 4§ miles (W.N.W.)
from Kendal, containing 227 inhabitants. The living is
4 perpetual curacy, in the archdeaconry of Richmond,
and diocese of Chester, endowed with £200 private
benefaction, and £600 myn.l bounty, and in the patron-
age of the landowners in the parish. The chapel, an
ancient building with a tower, stands in the centre of
the chapelry, which is very extensive. The Society of
Friends have a meeting-house and burial-ground near
How. There is a woollen mill at the hamlet of Crook-
Mill, where also the turning of bobbins is carried on.
In the mountainous part of this district is a vein of lead,
containing barytes, similar to that used in the mannfac-
ture of Wedgwood's jasper vases.

CROOKDAKE, a joint township with Bromfield
and Scales, in that part of the parish of Bromererp
which is in Avvervare ward below Derwent, county
of Cumperuanp, 6§ miles (S. W.) from Wigton. The
population is returned with Bromfield.

CROOKHAM, a tything in the parish and hundred
of CronpavLL, Basingstoke division of the county of
SourHAMPTON, 4 miles (N. E. by E.) from Odiham, con-
taining 623 inhabitants,

CROOKHOUSE, a township in the parish of Kinx-
Newroxn; western division of GuENDALE ward, county
of NoRTHUMBERLAND, 7 miles (W. N. W.) from Wooler,

18 inhabitants,

. CROOM (EARL'S), & parish in the lower division
of the hundred of OswaLpsLow, county of WorcesTER,
Q miles (N.E; by E:) from Upton upon Severn, containing
186 inhabitants. The living is a discharged rectory, in
“the urchdeaconry and diocese of Worcester, rated in
king's books at £7. 8. 14., and in the patronage
" the Rev, Charles Dunne.  The church, dedicated to
ﬂtholu i an old building in the Norman style.

. CROOM-D'ABITOT, a parish in the lower division
h&lhe hundred of OswaLpsnow, county of WoRCESTER,
(w: by 8.) from Pershore, containing 129 inha-
The living is a rectory, with that of Pirton, in

deaconry and diocese of Worcester, rated in the
mﬂdﬂﬁﬁﬂ.mﬂ in thé patronage of the Earl of

1 Mded:madto St. Mary
-ithl ult adiﬂna in- the later style
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of the hundred of KinaToN, county
uhmﬂymthhn&dnrﬁmm

and the chapelries of Bourton, Cla; W n
and the hamlet of Prescott, inthe hundred of Bansury,
of Ox¥orp, 4 miles (N. by E)) from Y,

and containing 2395 inhabitants. The living is a-
carage, within the peenliar jurisdiction of the Dean
and C of Lincoln, rated in the king's books ut
£26. 10. 10., and in the of the  of
Oxford. The church is dedicated to St. Mary. ‘
is a place of worship for Wesleyan Methodists.  Walter
Calcott founded a free school, and endowed it with an
annuity of £18, for teaching forty children ; two others
are educated for a rent-charge of £2, given by John
Ditehfield in 1708. The river Cherwell and the Oxford
canal pass through this parish.

CROPSTON, a township in the parish of Tuurcass
ToN, western division of the hundred of Goscorx, county
of Lercester, 34 miles (8. W. by 8.) from Mountsorrel,
containing 98 inhabitants.

CROPTHORN, a parish in the middle division of
the hundred of Oswarpsvow, county of WoRceSTER,
44 miles (E. by 8.) from Pershore, containing, with the
chapeiry of Netherton, and the hamlét of Charlton, 687
inhabitants. The living is a vicarage, in the archdea-
conry and diocese of Worcester, ruted in the king's
books at £14. 17: 34., and in the pntmnnfofﬂla Dean
and Chapter of Worcester. The church is dedicated to
St. Michael. A school is endowed with about £10 per
annum, bequeathed by Mary Holland,; in 1740,

CROPTON, a township in the of My
Pickering lythe, North riding of the county
44 miles (N:W. by N.) from Pickering, con
inhabitants. There is a place of worship for Wi
Methodists. An estate forming part of the parish charity
lands, producing about £23 per annum, has been appro-
priated to the support of a school in which twelve chil-
dren are educated. There are various tumuli within the
township, thought to be British, and a high mount called
Cropton Castle, at the base of which are distinet traces
of a Roman road, and near it vesﬁguoflﬂomii
camp

CROPWELL (BISHOP), a parish in the southern
division of the wapentake of anm, county of Nor-
TINGHAM, 8 miles (E.8.E.) from N , contain-
ing 392 inhabitants. Thelivinghndischlrgtde
in the peculiar jurisdiction of the Collegiate Church of
Southwell, rated in the king's books at £5.3. 4, en-
dowed with £200 private benefaction, and £200 royal
bounty, and in the patronage of the Prebendaries of Ox-
ton in the Collegiate Church of Southwell. The church

is dedicated to St. Giles. There is a
far Wesleyan Methodists. The nl&i‘oumﬂ b
Grantham canal pass through this parish,

CROPWELL-BUTLER, a mh‘ﬂnw
Tyrawpy, southern division of the wapentuke of Bines
HaM, eamty of Norrincitan, aimuuws:m)

N 489 inhabitunts,

LETON,
Yonxk,
sel
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village, endowed mmmaw ann,
inrtuchhgthyehﬂdtndwy mgru
Cross-Cannonby,

- CROSBY, ttuwmhipinth.tplﬂofﬂu of
Borresrorp which is in the northern division of the

wapentake of MaNLEY, parts of Linpsey, - of
LixcoLw, S% miles (N, W.by W.) from m-
Bridge, containing 146 inhabitants. A school is partly

by charitable donations - to about
£2. 10. per annum, for the education of children -
ing to this and the adjoining township of Brumby and
Scunthorpe.

CROSBY, a township in that part of the parish of
Leax which is in the e of ALLERTONSHIRE,
North riding of the county of Yorx, 54 miles (N. by w.)
from Thirek, containing 39 inhabitants.

CROSBY upon EDEN, a parish in Eskpave ward,
county of CuMBERLAND, ing the townships of
Brunstock, High Crosby, Low Crosby, and Walby, and
un‘ta.hlingélﬂ inhabitants, of which number, 184 are in

of Low Crosby, 3§ miles (N. E. by E.) from
Oarhule The living is a discharged vicarage, in the arch-
deaconry and diocese of Carlisle, rated in the king's books
at £3. 11. 54., endowed with £200 royal bounty, and in
the patronage of the Bishop of Carlisle. The church,
dedicated to St, John, is a smull ancient building, situa-
ted in the village of Low Crosby. « Joseph Jackson, in

| 1773, bequeathed £40 for the e;lncatinn of four chil-

dren; and in 1803 a schoolroom was built by subscrip-
tion. The southern part of the parish forms a gentle
slope to the river Eden. A fine red frecstone is ob-
tained in. the neighbouring quarries. In the time of
Henry L. a cross was erected on the spot now occupied by
the church, to which the inbabitants resorted for prayer,
The military road from Newcastle to Carlisle passes
through this parish, and & portion of the site of the

- Picts' wall is also discernible in it.

. (CROSBY (GREAT), a chapelry in the parish of
Seerron, hundred of Wesr Dexpy, county palatine of
Laxcaster, 7 miles (N.by w.) from Liverpool, contain-
ing 674 inhabitants. The living is a perpetual curacy,
in the archdeaconry and diocese of Chester, endowed
#£ 200 private benefaction, and £ 1000 royal bounty,
in patronage of the Rector of Scphton. The
chp!lmnbniltiniﬂ The village is in a very
' being much resorted to for seu-
A grammar school was founded, in 1618, by
Harrison, a mﬁn-dﬁqﬁee. citizen and mer-
‘endowment of £50 a year for
, besides £8 for repairs: the
of freestone, and the
. the Merchant Taylors'
Company in London : there is also a charity school for
hoys and girls, founded under the will of Catherine
GROSBY .m\mmwm- parish of
county of Com-
gnﬂu (muuwmm
hm

ki Dt‘jﬂﬂ'ﬂﬁi r

~ Halsall, with an endowment of £18 per annum.
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“CROSBY (LOW), a township in |
M!npﬂnEnw,Mm#nﬂ;Wy
nnuwhh;!‘-l miles: (ngnw E) f!uﬂ‘ﬂuﬂhh‘, mi‘

184 itants,

:nnn‘the line of the millhry l'otd m dhﬁ‘
Carlisle.

CROSBY-GARRBTT a parish in East ward, coun-
ty of WesTMORLAND, comprising the townships of
Crosby-Garrett and Little Musgrave, and containing
278 inhabitants, of which number, 193 are in the town-
ship of Crosby-Garrett, 3 miles (W. by N.) from Kirkby-
Stephen. The living is o disch: rectory, in the
archdeaconry and diocese of Carlisle, rated in the
books at £19. 4. 44., endowed with £200 private bene-
faction, and £ 200 royal bounty, and in the patronage
of Richard Bunn, L.L.D., and Mrs. Coulston. The
church, dedicated to St. Andmw, is a spacious edifice
in the ancient style of English architecture. A charity
school was founded in 1629, and a schoolroom has
been since erected by subscription: it is endowed with
about £ 12 per annum, arising from a sum of £40 be-
queathed by Thomas Wilson in 1767, and from varions
other benefactions. This pmsh consists of two' de-
tached portions, the chapelry of Soulby lying between
them: it has the river Eden on the north-east, and on
the south-west a lofty verdant hill, termed Crosby
Fell, at the foot of which the village is situated, in a
deep and romantic valley.

CROSBY-RAVENSWORTH, a parish in Wesr
ward, county of W:s‘ruon.mn, 4 miles (N.hy E.)
from Orton, containing, with a portion of Birkbeck
Fells, 863 inhabitants. The living is a discharged vicar-
age, in the archdeaconry and diocese of Carlisle, rated
in the king's books at £7. 13. 4., endowed with £200
private benefaction, and £200 myul bounty, and in the
patronage of the Hon. F. G. Howard. The church, ‘de-
dicated to St. Lawrence, a handsome structure wﬂh a
square tower, was rebuilt in 1814 : near it stands the
ancient manorial mansion, a tower building embosomed
in trees, and formerly moated. A school was founded
and endowed by the Rev. Williamn Willan, in 1630 ; the
schoolroom was rebuilt, in 1784, by William Dent, Edq by
who, in conjunction with others, raised the income to
about £30 per annum, for which twenty-five éhﬂﬂren
are educated and supplied with books, A
tity of limestone is obtained in the sh, and
hogs are fattened in it, the hams noted for a
culiarly fine flavour. The village is situated in a
through which runs the small ﬁmmﬁﬁ'h
vennet ; at Black Dub, where the latter has its &

king's
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Asu, county of Groucester, 33 miles (E.) from Chi

-Sodbury, with which the population is re’turnad.]?-
the petty sessions for the division are held here alter-

nately with Badminton and Chipping-Sodbury.
. CROSSLAND (NORTH and SOUTH), a chapelry
in the parish of Aumonxpmury, upper division of the
wapentake of Acsmiae, West riding of the county of
York, 3% miles (8. W.) from Huddersfield, containing
1583 inhabitants. The chapel was lately erected at the
expense of £2321, 4. 1., granted by the commissioners
under the act passed in the 58th of George IIL, for
building additional churches, and contains three bun-
dred and twenty-two free sittings. The manufacture of
woollen cloth is extensively carried on here; and there
15 & seribbling-mill in the neighbourhood. A rent-
charge of £3 was given by Godfrey Beamont towards
the support of a school; and in 1749, Sir John Lester
Kaye, Bart., gave land for the erection of a schoolroom,
which has since been rebuilt,

CROSSTONE, a chapelry in the parish of Havirax,
wapentake of Moy, West riding of the county of
Yorxk, 114 miles (W.) from Halifax, with which the
population is returned. The living is a cu-
racy, in the archdeaconry and diocese of York, en-
ﬁwed with £600 private benefaction, and £3300 par-
inmentary grant, and in the patronage of the Vicar of
Halifax. This place derives its name from an ancient

" cross, which has fallen to decay,

~+ CROSTHWAITE, a parish comprising the chapelries
. of Borrowdale, Newlands, and Thornthwaite, and  the
~ townships of Braithwaite and Coledale, or Portingscale,
in ALLenpank ward above Derwent, and the chapelry
of St. John Castlerigg with Wythburn, the town of
Keswick, and the township of Under Skiddaw, in Ar-
- perpare ward below Derwent, county of Cumnen-

:
e

i

turesque and fertile vale, stan
to the Virgin Mary, which was rebuilt about 1513, at
the expense of the inhabitants: the ancient
had parochial privileges granted, in 1556, by the dio-
cesan, on account of its distance from the mo-
ther church, George in 1665, gave £60 for:
building and maintengnce of a school: the schoolroom
was erected by subscription, and the endowment is about
£37 per annum, arising from the foregoing gift, the
interest of £300 left by Tobias Atkinson in 1517,
and the sum of £13 appropriated out of the general
charities ; there are about thirty free scholars. Here
are a paper-manufactory, a corn-mill, and a malt-
house. Lyth is a distinct constablewick on the south
side of this extensive chapelry, and is bounded on the
south-west by the mountainous ridge called Lyth Fell,
or Whitbarrow Sear, At the hamlet of Raw, in Lyth,
there are several limekilns, and at Pool-bank & manu-
factory of wood-hoops. In Lyth-moss several large
trees have been discovered beneath the surface.
CROSTON, a parish (formerly a market town)
in the hundred of LeyrLaxD, county palatine of Lan-
CASTER, comprising the chapelries of Becconsall with
Hesketh, and Tarleton, and the townships of Bispham,
Bretherton, Croston, Mawdesley, and Ulnes- Walton,
and containing 5831 inhabitants, of which wumber,
1367 are in the township of Croston, 6} miles (W.)

&

vicarage, in the archdeaconry and diocese
rated in the king's books st £31. 11. 104, and in the
patrovage of Mrs. Muster. The church, dedicated to
St. Michael, stands in a valley upon the margin of the
river Yarrow, and was rebuilt in 1743, at an expense of
£1834, which was defrayed by a brief. In the church=
yard the Rev, James Hiet, in 1660, built a school-house,
and endowed it with £400, producing about £15 a year,
appropriated to the free education of thirty-six



| Swrrox, county of NowrTrAMPTON, 3}

. ch, rated in the king's books at £5. 6. 8.,
and in the of Sir R. Kerrison, Kut. The
church is dedicated to All Saints.

- CROUCH-END, a hamlet inthe parish of Hornsey,
Finsbury division of the hundred of Ossvistone,
county of Mropresex, 5 miles (N. by W.) from London.
The population is returned with the parish (which see).

CROUGHTON, a township in that part of the
arish of St, Oswarp, Caester, which is in the higher
division of the hundred of WirraLy, county palatine
of Cugsrer, 43 miles (N.byE.) from Chester, contain-
ing 27 inhabitants. The Ellesmere canal passes through
this township.
CROUGHTON, a parish in the hundred of King's
miles (5. W.)
Brackley, con 376 inhabitants, The living
itaractery in the archdeaconry of Northampton, and
diocese of Peterborough, rated in the king's books at
£15. 3. 64., and in the patronage of Viscount Ashbrook.
The church is dedicated to All Saints. Dr. John Friend,
| the learned author of a “ History of Physick,” was born
C’ROWAN a parish in the hundred of PexwiTh,
‘ county of Counuu.,ﬂ miles (N, by W.) from Helston,
| containing 3973 inbabitants. The living is a vicarage,
| in the of Cornwall, and diocese of Exeter,
| vated in the king's books at £11. 9. 2, and in the pa-
' “of Sir J. St. Aubyn, . The church is dedi-
| eated to St. Crewenne. A ity school was founded,
. in 1730, by the family of St.Aubyn, and endowed with
~ the interest of £100.

~ CROWBOROUGH, county of Starrorp. — See

CROBOROUGH.

* CROWCOMBE, a parish (formerly a borough and
market town) in the hundred of WiLLitox and Free-
mm,wntwyof SomersET, 7 miles (N. E. by;hl
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A market, now disused, existed so early as thenbi:&
Henry I11. ; fairs are held on the first Friduy in

Monday after August 1st, and October 31st, for cattle
and drapery. A cross, ingond preservation, stands ot
the entrance to the villnge, and fragments of another
are visible in the churchyard, Near the court-house
there is a spring which ebbs and flows with the tide.
Some veins of copper have been found in the sides ot'
the Quantock hills.

CROWELL, a parish in the hundred of Lr.wxmﬂ
county of Oxrorn, 5 miles (E. 8. E.) from Tetsworth,
containing 159 inhabitants, The living is a rectory, in
the archdeaconry and diocese of Oxford, rated in the
king's books at £7. 9. 94., and in the patronage of Miss
Wykeham. The church is dedicated to St. Mary.
Crowell is situated at the foot of the Chiltern hills : the
Roman Iknield-street passes throngh the parish. '

CROWFIELD, a chapelry in the parish of Conpun-
gaM, hundred of Bosmere and Craypon, county of
SurroLk, 5 miles (E.N. E.) from Needham-Market, con-
taining 345 inhabitants. The living is a perpetual curacy,
annexed to the vic of Coddenham, in the archdea-
conry of Suffolk, and diocese of Norwich. The church
is dedicated to All Saints,

CROWHURST, a parish in the first division of the
hundred of Taxbrince, county of Surney, 44 miles
(8. E.) from Godstone, containing 214 inhabitants. The
living is a vicarage, in the archdeaconry of Surrey, and
diocese of Winchester, and in the patronage of
Ruck, Ezq. The church is dedicated to St. George,

CROWHURST, a parish in the hundred of Banps-
row, rape of Hasrines, county of Sussex, 2} miles
(8.) from Battle, containing 340 inhabitants. The living
is a rectory, in the archd of Lewes, and diocese
of Chichester, rated in the king's books at £10, and in
the patronage of J. C. Pelham, Esq. The church, de-
dicated to St. Genrgc,upnnc:pallymthelsta‘wykof A
English architecture.

CROWLAND, or CROYLAND, a parish (formerly
a market town) in the wapentake of Evvor, parts of’
Hovrranp, comnty of LincoLn, 51 miles (8. 8. E.) from
Lincoln, and 89 (N.) from London, containing 2113 n_
habitants. the Octarchy this place was the
retreat of St. Guthlac, who in themguof&m-ed, righ
king of Mercia, retired from the persecution of
pagan Britons into a hermitage, near Mtha
to
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dour, and continued to flourish till the dissolution,
at which time its revenue was £1217.5. 11.:_the conven-
o N mmsﬁwhﬁm&m were gradually falling
1o deeay, were almost entirely demolished during the
: M war, when the monastery was occupied
@8 & garrison :  the remains are highly interesting,
consisting chiefly jof the western piers of the eastern
- portion, in the Norman style, and of some portion
~of the nave and aisles of the abbey church, in which
- the south piers and arches, and part of the clerestory,
are remaining, the western part of which is partly
Norman, and partly in the early and later styles of
- English architecture : the north aisle of the nave has
~ Deen restored, and is now used as the parish church.
The town, which is accessible only by artificial roads,
consists of four principal streets, separated by water-
courses, and communicating with each other by means
of an ancient triangular stone bridge of singular con-
struction, erected in the reign of Edward IL., and consist-
ing of one principal and finely groined arch, from which
diverge three pointed arches over the streams Welland,
Nene, and Catwater : it is in the decorated style of
English architecture, and on one side is a mutilated
figure of Ethelbald, in a sitting posture, holding a globe
in the right hand. The principal employment of the
. inhabitants is agriculture, the-feeding of cattle, and the
[ management of the dairy: a great number of geese and
~ wild fowl are sold for the neighbouring markets, and
an extensive fishery is carried on, for the privilege of
which £300 per. annum, formerly paid to the abbot,
is now paid to the crown : the soil, under the influence
of an efficient system of irrigation, has been greatly
| improved, and much of the land, formerly unprofit-
| able from the morasses with which it was overspread,
 has been converted into rich pastures and fruitful corn-
~ fields: the engines employed in draining the water from
~ the fens are of considerable power, and are set in mo-
[ tion by wind; one of them, which has twelve sails,
[ throws up forty tons of water every minute. The mar-
ket formerly held here has been remoted to Thorney,
~in the county of Cambridge ; but a fair is beld annually,
commencing on the festival of St. Bartholomew, and

) uin:%or twelve days.
The living is a rectory not in charge, in the
rchdeaconry and diocese of Lincoln, and in the alter-
te patronage of T. O. Hunter and James Whitsed,
re. The church, dedicated to S;}B]:trtholl‘uut:nev;!nm}
thiac, though m‘ t.u:lg' Bnly_teno aisle o
ve of the abbey church, is a commodious and very
ome edifice, chiefly in the later style of English
are, with a low massive tower ; the west 5
ghly enviched, is ornamented wiﬂ: several
ots, among which are those of
_and of King Ethel-
p gmall stone
his abode while lead-

e

the western division of the wapentake of Maxney,
parts of Liwpsey, county of Lincotx, 35 miles
(N.N.W.) from Lincoln, and 164 (N. by w.) ffom London, =
containing 1729 inhabitants, and, including the chapelry
of East Toft, 1961. The town is situated in the northey
west extremity of the Isle of Axholme, near the river .
Don, and within a mile of the Stainforth and w &
canal, which passes it on the north. The market,
formerly on Saturday, has been discontinued; but from
March till the end of May a market for sheep and cattle
is held every alternate Monday, and there are fairs on
the last Monday in May and November 22nd, for cattle,
flax, and hemp. The,county magistrates hold here a
petty session for the division; and constables are ap-
pointed at the court leet of the lord of the manor. The
living is a vicarage, in the archdeaconry of Stowe,and
diocese of Lincoln, rated in the king's books at £ 14. 10,
and in the patronnge of Mrs. Egremont. The church,
dedicated to St. Oswald, is a very ancient structure, of
which the original character is concealed by repeated
alterations and repairs, There are places of worship
for Independents and Wesleyan Methodists. A charity
school, for teaching poor children reading, writing, and
arithmetic, is partly supported by subscription, and by
an endowment of £60 per annum arising from various
bequests ; there are thirty children in the school. In
1747, the body of a woman was found in an erect
position in the peat moor, near the town, at the "
of six feet beneath the surface; from the s .on
the feet it appeared to h*e been there for several cen- :
turies ; the hair and nails were entire, and the skin, "
though discoloured, was soft and apparently sound,
CROWLE, a parish partly in the upper division of
the hundred of Havvsmire, but chiefly in the middle
division of the hundred of Oswaunsrow, county of
Woncester, 54 miles (8, by E.) from Droitwich, con-
taining 461 inhabitants. The living is a vicarage, in
the archdeaconry and diocese of Worcester, rated in
the king's books at £16, und in the patronage of the
Rev. R. Harrison, M.A. The church is dedicated.
St. Peter. On entering the parish from Worcester, ther

is a beautiful range of hills, forming an amphitheatre, =~
and commanding extensive . Crowle Court i
the interior of which clearly s it to have b L

a religiqus house, is a very ancien®edifice, swrounded -
by a deep moat. In the neighbourhood are consider-
able quarries of a blue stone, which burns into. ex-

cellent lime, " 4 TN Wil
ey

o
-

CROWLEY, a township in that part of the.
of Grear Bupwowrn which is in the
Buckrow, county palatine of Cnester, 6§
from Northwich, 149 inhabitants.

CROWLEY (NORTH), a parish in the |
Newronr; county of Buekinauam, 34 mil
from Newport-Paguell, containing 775 ink
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' a parish in the hun-
dred ofLumﬁ:, etmnty Oxronn.ﬁ a mile (n)
© from Wa The

living is & rectory, in the archdeaconry and dlocene of

Oxford, ri in" the s books at £12. 6. 0f., and
in the of G, Turner, Esq. ‘l‘hechurchin

dediuted to St. Mary
3 CROWN’I'HORPE a parish in the hundred of
Foresior, county of NorrorLk, 24 miles (N. W. by W.)
from Wymondham, containing 103 inhabitants. The
liy is a discharged rectory, in the archdeaconry of
Norfolk, and diocese of Ncrwich rated in the king's
books at £4. 12. 6., andmthepu ze of Lord
Wodehouse, The church is dedicated to St, James.
CROWTON, a township in the of WeAvER-
mam, second division of the hundred of Eppisnury,
county palatine of Caester, 53 miles (W. by N.) from
Northwich, containing 455 inhabitants.
CRGXALL a parish comprising the township of
: , in the hundred of Ovrrow, county of Star-
FORD, “and the chapelry of Catton, in the hundred of
Bm-mu and GresLey, county of Dn:nmr, 73 miles (N,)
"from Tamworth, and containing, with a part of the
parish of Edinghn!l 305 inhabitants. The living is a
in the archdea of , and diocese
| of Llchﬁeld and Coventry, rated in the king's books
at £5, and in the patmmfe of the Crown. The
| chureh i dédicated to St, John the Baptist. There
i a school on the Madras system, supported by sub-
on. The river Meuse flows through this parish,
and Tame touches upon its boundary. Croxall is
|in the honour of Tutbury, duchy of Lancaster, and
| within he jurisdiction of @¥court of pleas held at
| Tutbury every third Tuesday, for the recovery of debts
under 40s.
~ CROXBY, a parish in the southern division of the
take of WarLsncrorr, of LiNpsey, county
wof LiNcoLn, 5} miles (E. 8. E.) from Caistor, mnta'ming
67 inhabitants. The living is a discharged rectory, in
the archideaconry and diocese of Lincoln, rated in the
- iiﬁ'lbﬂoknatﬁu 4. 2,, and in the patronage of the
Crown. ' The chureh‘ii dedicated to All Saints,
CROXDALE, in that part of the parish
. J Sr. OswaLp, Dunlurl, which is in the southern di-
vision of EasinGron ward, county palatine of Duruax,
3% miles (S, by W.) from Durham. The population is
“parish. The living is a perpetual
euracy, hﬂlewchdncdﬁ_trynﬁddioeueofnurhm en-

dowed with £200 p “benefaction, and £200 royal
bounty. The chape hM'ﬁotheHolyCm
'11!?!01! man Catholic chapel at the hall.
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build a Cistercian e
wards was removed m “and all his
family were buried, and also King John's heart ; it was
delhcatedtot‘hemmed? the dis-
golution had an abbot an Mﬁuﬁﬁnm ‘whose
revenue was valued at £108. 6. 7.: remains of thh
once stately and sumptuous edifice, situated near:
Derbyshire border, exhibit good specimens of the

style of English architecture.

CROXTETH-PARK, an extra-parochial llburgq
the hundred of Wresr Derny, county pahtine
CASTER, 4 miles (W.N.W.) fmmPremt,mtunmgso
inhabitants.

CROXTON, a parish in the hundred of Lonasrow,
county of Cansnmon 4% miles (W.N.W,) from Cax-
ton, containing 225 inhabitants. The living is a rectory,
in the archdeaconry and diocese of El rated in the
king's books at £ 14. 8. 61., endowed with £200 royal
bounty, and in the patronage of Sir G. W, Leeds, Bart.
The church is dedicated to St.James. A school has
been recently built by Sir G. W. Leeds, Bart., for chil-
dren of Croxton, Eltisley, and the adjoining parishes,
which is endowed with £6 per annum bequeathed by
John Leeds, , in 1705.

CROXTON, a township in that part of the pm'llll
of MippLewice which is in the hundred of Nonra-
wicH, county palatine of CuestEr, 1 mile (N.N.W.)
from Middlewich, containing 52 inhabitants. The
Grand Trunk canal passes through this parish.

CROXTON, a parish in the eastern division of the
wapentake of Yarsorouven, parts of Lixpsey, county
of LincoLn, 74 miles (N. E. by E.) from Glandford-
Bridge, containing, with the hamlet of anbomgh 87
inhabitants. The living is a di o? :
archdeaconry and diocese of Lincoln, rated in ﬂm
king's books at £8, 14, 2., and in the of the
Crown. The church is dedicated to St. John the
Evangelist. Upon a lofty eminence nbont half a mile
westward of the village are remains of a large intrench-
ment, called Yarborough Camp, supposed to be &
Roman work, from the coins found in the arca angd
near its site,

CROXTON, a chapelry in the parish of Funsony
ToN, hundred of Garvow, county of Nnuﬁu,

(. by N,) from Fakenham. The on is.
with the parish. The chapel is dedicatedsto St.

the Baptist.

CROXTON, a parish in the hundred of
county o[’ﬂ!osrou:, 2 miles (N.) from *
taining 246 inhabitants, The living is .

-



ing's Dooks st £ 3, 4., and in the patronage of
g of Rutland. The church i dedicated St. John
_ CROXTON-KEYRIAL, a parish in the hundred of
AND, county of Lercesten, 7 miles (S.E.) from

1

~of Leicester, and diocese of Linceln, rated in the %
age of the
of Rutland, The church, dedicated to St.John, is in
the later style of English architecture, with a tower
rising from the centre. William Smith, in 1711, be-
queathed land producing about £5 per annum for the
a_:dowment of a free school. Croxton abbey, dedicated
to St.John the Evangelist, was founded in 1162, by
William Porcarius de Linus, for Premonstratensian
canons, whose revenue, at the dissolution, was valued
at £458. 19. 11.: one of the abhots was physician to
{ John, whose bowels were interred in the church.
ROYDON, a parish in the hundred of Arming-
rorp, county of Camurroce, 6 miles (S. by E.) from
Caxton, containing, with Clapton, 368 inhabitants. The
living isa discharged vicarage, with the rectory of Clap-
ton consolidated, in the archdeaconry and diocese of
Ely, rated in the king's books at £7, 97., and in the
patronage of the Rev. T. Gape. The church is dedi-
cated to All Saints.

CROYDON, a market town and parish in the first
division of the hundred of Wairvincron, county of
Surrey, 04 miles (8.) from London, containing 9254
inhabitants. This place, called by Camden Cradeden,
and in ancient records Croindene and Croiden, derives
its present name from Croie, chalk, and Dune, a hill, de-
noting its situation on the summit of an extensive basin
of chalk. By some untiquaries it has been identified
with the Noviomagus of Antonine; and the Roman road
from Arumdel to London, which passed through that
station, may still be traced on Broad(Green, near the
present town. At the time of the Couquest it was
given to Lanfrane, Archbishop of Canterbury, whose
successors hud for several centuries a residence here,

pich is said to have been originally a royal palace.

During the war between Henry I11. and the barons, in
264, the citizens of London, who had taken up arms
: ' ing been driven from

of Lin _m§ d]:ﬁw

been o hunting-seat
mansion, which bas : : :
impauve%o is now the residence of the ar
roydon is plensantly situated on tigD |
Bansted downs, and near the sdurce of the river Wan-
it L mw::&:mm
which, ts. i shaltor
and Mitcham, ﬁ considerably increased, and falls into
the Thames at Wandsworth. The town consists prin-
cipally of one long street, and is tolerably well paved,
lighted with gas, and watched, under the direction
of commissioners appointed by an act passed in the
10th of George IV. for its general improvement: the
houses are mostly spbstantial and well built, and
many of them are handsome and of modern structure ;
the inhabitants are plentifully supplied with water,
There is a theatre, but it is seldlom opened., The
barracks, at the entrance into the town from Mit-
cham, were erected in 1704, as a temporary station for
cavalry during the preparation of troops for fo
service : they form a neat range of building, ori :
consisting of six wings, three of which were taken down
in 1827, and contain complete accormmodation for three
troops of cavalry, with an hospital for thirty-four pa-
tients, infirmary, stabling for twelve horses, a store-
room for one thousand sets of harness, with field equip-
ments, riding-house, and other requisite oflices : they
are at present the depit of the royal wagon train, esta-
blished here in 1803 ; and, in addition to their hm&:::
accommodation for cavalry, contain sheds for thredhun-
dred carriages, and sadlers’, smiths', and wheelwrights’
shops, in which is made a variety of implements and car-
riages for the service of the troops in and out of the
field. Within the distance of a mile east, by north of
the town is Addiscombe House, formerly the residence of
the first Lord Liverpool, which in 1809 was purchased
by the Honourable the East India Company, for the
establishment of their military college, previously formed
at Woolwich common, for the education of cadets
for the engineers and artillery, but since 1825 open to
the reception of cadets for the whole military seryice of
the company, with the exception of the cavalry: théfe
are generally from one hundred and twenty to one hun-
dred and fifty students, under the inspection of an
officer of high rank in the company's service, assisted
by an officer of distinction in his Majesty's corps of engi-
neers of artillery, to whom is entrusted the examina-
tion of the cadets previpusly to their obtaining com-
miasions:thmaxefanrteenprnfmrganﬁm s e :
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mpleﬁmofthe cdlage,nnd for its adaptation in
every respect to the intended purposes, have cost the

* proprictors more thun £40,000.

The trade is principally in corn: the eahoo-printing

and bleaching, whicb were formerly carried on exten-
“sively, have materially declined ; there is a large brewery,
‘which has been established more than a century.
~Aun iron rail-road from Wandsworth passes through
the town to Merstham, near Reigate; and a branch
eommunicating with the Grand Surrey canal, near
the Thames, affords a facility of water carriage. The
- market is on Saturday: fairs are held on July 6th for
cattle, and October 2nd for horses, cattle, gheep, and
pigs ; at the latter, which is also a large pleasure fair,
a great quantity of walnuts is sold. The town is within
the jurisdiction of the county jmagistrates, of whom
those acting for the division hald a petty session weekly :
a head constable, two petty constables, and two head-
boroughs, are appointed at the court leet of the Arch-
hishop of Canterbury, who is lord of the manor. A
~eourt of requests, for the recovery of debts under £ 5,
“is held every alternate week, under an gct passed in
“the 47th of George 111, the jurisdiciion of which ex-
tends over the hundred of Walli The summer as-
| gizes for the county are held here and at Guildford alter-
nately. The town-hall was erected in 1807, at an ex-
pense of £10,000, defrayed by the proceeds of the sale
of waste lands belonging to the parish: it is a neat
| stone edifice sormounted by a cupola, comprising in
| the upper part a convenient court for the trial of civil
at the assizes, with rooms for the judges, sheriffs,

l and jury, and for holding the court of requests ;
and in the lower part, a court for criminal causes, and
| an area which, except when the assizes are held, is appro-
ipﬁl&ﬂdﬂa the use of the corn market. The prison was

by subscription: the inhabitants, onthe site
_of the old town-hall: it is a and substantial build-

1ing, of which the lower part, containing several rooms, is
used as the town gaol, and for the confinement of pri-
soners during the assizes, and the upper part let for
warchouses : behind it is & houst occupied by one of
&ehudlﬂ, who has the care of the prisoners: near

hwn-hﬂhlmeediﬁee ﬁwthehutuu-mrl

5 'Hteﬂving vicarage, rated in the king's
.. The church,

S been

glish |
taining A Csittings,
dred of them ﬁ'ee,fortha Mmofmhhhthcm \
missioners £3500; and one at Beaulien Hill,
Norwood, also in the later nﬂedwm
with four turrets, containing one thousand and five sit-
tings, of which six hundred and ~two are free, and
toward the erection of which the i granted
£3000. The livings are ‘curdacies, in the
patronage of the Vicar of Croydon. = There are places of
worship for Baptists, the Society of Friends, Indepen-
dents, and Wesleyan Methodists, The free lclmol for
ten boys and ten girls, was founded and endowed in
1714, by Archhishop Tenison; the income arising at pre-
sent from the endowment, pm of which is in honses
and land, and part vested in the three per cent. consols., is
£130 per annum: the children are taught by the master
and his wife, who have a joint salary of £50 per an-
num, and a house which, with two schoolrooms, was
erected in 1792, at an expense of nearly £1000, 0n a
piece of land adjoining the old school-house, which,
having become unfit for the purpose, was let by the
trustees : a National and a British- school are supported
by subscription. The Society of Friends have a large
establishment, removed to this plice, in 1825, from
Islington, where it had existed for more than a century,
supported by sdbscription, for the maintenance and edu-
cation of one hundred and fifty boys and girls. A
free school originally founded and endowed by Arch-
bishap Whitgift, in conjunction with the hospital of the
Holy Trinity, is now the parish charity school. '
The hospital of the Holy Trinity was founded anden-
dowed by that primate, in 1596, for a warden, schqol-
master, chaplain, and any number above thirty and not
exceeding forty, of poor brothers and sisters, not less
than sixty years of age, of the parishes of Croydon and
Lambeth, who were to be a body cérporate wnd have a
common seal; it is under the inspection of the Arch-
bishop of Canterbury, as visitor : the income arising from
the endowment, in land and houses; originally not more
than +£200 per annum, has increased to £2000 per an-
num: there are thirty-four brothers and sisters now in the
hospital. The building, three sides of aq
drangle, in which is a small ¢ is & handsome g
men of the style of domestie architecture .
the time of its foundation : the schoolroom is at prese
occupied by the children of the National school. Day
almshouses, for the reception and maintenance of ;
oged men and women, were founded in 1447, b
Davy, citizen and mercer of London, who endowed ti
with lands and tenements in the prhh.m ]
about £130 per annum: the pr _
about sixty years limu. m




in 1627,
mum, MM about £150 is distributed among the
Md’thel.itﬂedmshm there are various other
fmbequorthemlicfuhhepmr On a hill
wm Adthngm is a cluster of twenty-five tumuli,
ﬂ\f is dorty feet in diameter ; they appear to
upuﬂ and, according to Salmon, to have
‘and on Thunderfield common is a
d:rnnhr mmpmm, including an area of two. acres,

ded by a double moat. In 1719, a gold coin

tln Emperor Domitian was found at Whitehorse
flml, this parish, where also, within the last four
or five years, a gold coin of Lielius Cwsar, in good pre-

servation, anﬂ several others, were discovered ; and in
digging for a foundation in the town, in 1791, two
gold coins of Valentinian, and a brass coin of Trajan,
were found.

CRUCKTON, u township in the parish of PoxTes-
nurY, hundred of Forp, county of Savor, 4 miles
(8. w. by w.) from Shrewsbury, containing 377 inha-
bitants. -

. CRUDWELL, a parish in the hundred of MALmES-
BURY, cmntyoowrs, 4 miles (N.N.E.) from Malmes-
bury, containing, with the tything of Eastcourt, 570
inhabitants. The living is a rectory, in the archdea-
conry of Wilts, and diocese of Salisbury, rated in the
king's books at £17. 5.24., and in the patronage of the
Earl of Hardwicke. #The church, dedicated to All
Saints, is a large and handsome edifice in the Norman
style of architecture; on one side of the nave the co-
Jumms are short and massive, while on the other side
they are lofty and light. A free school, founded by
Johin, Lord Lucas, is supported by donations of about
€6 per annum,. Near this place runs the old Fosse-
way to Cirencester.

CRUMPSALL, a township in the parish of Max-
custer, hundred of Savromrp, county palatine of
Lavcaster, 24 miles (N. by w.) from Manchester,
containing 910 inhabitants. In 1785, two
were erected by John Bowker and John Taylor, for the

of a school, which are now let for £22 per
annum, £13 of which is paid in support of St. Mark's
“charity school, Cheetham. Humphrey Chetham, foun-
ler of Manchester college, or Blue-coat hospital, was
rn here, in 1580,
GRUNDALE a parish in the hundred of Wyg,
1at d&cut,wmynkaw, 8 miles (8.W. by 8.)
260 inhabitants, The liv-
is @ zwwry‘ in the and diocese- of
rated in the king's books at £11. 10. 10.,

c'-i"-l 'I!’i—:‘ 14
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. CRUWYS-M ’#_ : fege
of Wirnerinee, county of DEvox, ; iy
rectory, in the. of e .*\7._

of Exeter, rated in the king's
in the of Beauvis Wond, no
The chureh, dedicated to the BolyCroll;. was struck
lightning in 1689, which rent the steeple and :
e TON, u parish hundred of e
RUX-EASTON, a in the ey
rTrow, Kingsclere division of the county of Sﬂmm : '1-!
ToN, 64 miles (N.N.W.) from Whitchurch, containing
74 inhabitants. The living is a rectory, in the archden- @
conry and diocese of Winchester, rated in ﬂn oy R
books at £12. 12.°6., and in the pnmmngsa
Temple, Beq. The church is dedicated t. Minhu! *
There is also a chapel of ease, called New chapel, Here W
was the celebrated grotto constructed by nine sisters, |
daughters of Edward Lisle, Ksq., and commemorated
by Pope ; it has been suffered to go to ruin, the shell
only remaining,
CUBBERLY, a parish in the hundred of Raws-
GATE, county of GLOUCESTER, 54 miles (8. by E.) from
Cheltenham, containing 237 inhabitants.  The living is
a rectory, in the archdeaconry and diocese of Glouces-
ter, rated in the king's books at £10, and in the
tronage of Henry Elwes, Esq. The church, dedicated ¥
to St. Giles, ‘contains some curious monuments, There
is a place of worship for Baptists. One of the principal
sources of the river Thames, called the Seven Sprmgn
is in this parish.
CUBBINGTON, a parish in the Kenilworth divhhn
of the hundred of KnigaTLOW, county of Wawr ?o
milés (N.E. by E.)) from Wu-wtck, containing
habitants, The living is g discharged vicarage, in
archdeaconry of Coventry, and diocese of Lishficld nld
Coventry, rated in the king's books at £6. 6. 8., en-
dowed with £200 private benefaction, and £200 royal
bounty, and in the ( of Chandos
The church is dedicated to St. Mary. A National school
was established in 1821, and a bequest by John Glover,
in 1762, of £250, for educating poor ohildm, and one
by Hannah Murcott, in 1775, nf £100, for the esta-
blishment of @ charity school, are applied towards its
support ; nllthepourehﬂdmofthapuiuhmty
ceive free instruction. ,
CUBERT, apu'ithinthehnndmdofl‘lnn,
county of Cornwary, 5% miles (W.N. w‘)wmﬁ '
vicarage, in the mhdneonryﬂ ‘Cornwall,
and of Exeter, rated ln an;
£ 8. ﬁ.ﬂ.,andmthepnrmaga the Rev e
T church i dedicated to St. Cu

vilitedin 1564 with thuputllenen,
afﬂia'lnhﬂﬂhnﬂl.

e
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“"CUBLINGTON, a parish in the Hundrell of Cor- whieh ‘four poor children ar '
- TESLOE, county of miﬁ“'u' miles (N, by £.) land producing £1. 5. a

from Ayleshury, containing 259 ihhlb’ltmﬂ. The liv-
is a , in the archdeaconry gham,
d]oeeaeofl.ineoln,ﬂtedinthe s at

£9. 16. 3., and in the patronage of the R mﬂ‘l"e!-

lows of Lincoln College, Oxfurd _The «:hm is dedi-
cated to St. Nicholas.
CUBY, 2 parish in the western division of the hun-

{8y 2 o g, ot i e rongh

E.) ey the h

of Tregoney, 1175 inhabitants. The living is a vi:fr-
age, with Tregoney, in the archdeaconry of Cornwall,
and diocese of Exeter, and in the pa of the

Hn!qnisofCleveland, The church is dedicated to

St. Keby.  An hospital for decayed housekeepm

was founded here, in 1646, by Hugh Boscaw, who en-

do;!d it with lands now elﬂ £30 annum,
and which are expected to yield a much income

. on the expiration of the present leases. i
CUCKFIELD, a market town and parish in the
hundred of BurrinuiLy, rape of Lewes, county of

Sussex, 25 miles (N, E. by B,) from Chichester, and 40

. (8) from London, on the road to Brighton, containing
2385 inhabitants.  This place is on a pleasant
eminence, nearly in the centre of the county, and is
handsomely built of freestone, of which there are ex-
cellent quarries in the neighbourhood: the pathways
in the town are laid with bricks of a very firm and
durable quality, formed of red clay, which is found
within the distance of four miles, where also are strata
of pxpe-%of,peuuﬁar whiteness : the inhabitants are

. The market ig on
Friday : fairs are hld on May 28th, Whit-Thursday,
&ptmher lﬂth, md November 29th, for horses and
; mnﬁnm hold petty sessions for
! thadfvidundbhﬂ-ourt use. The living is a vicarage,
~in the archdeaconry of Lewes, and diocese of Chiches-
ter, rated in the king's books at £20. 14. 2., and in the

» of the Bishop of Chichester, The church,

duﬂiuwd to the Holy Trinity, is a I “and handsome
structure, in the decorated style af lish architec-
ture, with a square tower mrmountediyn spire co-

© vered with shingles, which, from its elevated situation,

w

i

- as and endowed by Edward
' Flower, Esq,, of London, and the Rev. William Spicer,
in this county, with the manor of Red-

o : T i.ud' 'uth x um, for

Knight, in 1722. A license
and a fair annoally on the eve, day, and
festival of All Spints, and the seven #
was granted in the 32nd of Edward
Ortinco, or L'Orti, lord of the 1
been discontinued. 4
CUCKNEY, or NORTON-CU
the Hatfield division of the wa i
county of NorriNouam, 5§ miles
Worksop, comprising the townships of Hol
with, and Norton, and containing 1485 inha inm
The living is a discharged vicarage, in the arch:
of Nottingham, and diocese of York, rated in the king's
books at £9. 8. 61., endowed with £200 royal banm{,-
and in the patronage of Earl Manvers. The church
dedicated to St. Mary. A mirket and & fair were for-
merly held, but both have been long discontinued.
There are some large worsted and cotton mills, which
give employment to a number of ghildren fmm the
Foundling Hospitel, in London, is also a mill
for polishing marble. o
CUDDESDEN, a parish in the 'I;undred of Buc-
LINGTON, county of Oxrorn, 6§ m (E. 8.E.) from
Oxford, comprising the chapelries Denton and
Wheatley, and the hamlet of Chippinghurst, and con-
taining 1328 inhabitants. The living is a vicarage, an-
nexed to the bishoprick of Oxford, in the archdeaconry
and diocese of Oxford, rated in king's books at
£17. 0. 5. The church is dedicited to All Saints,
A school is endowed, by & bequest from Dr. Moss,
a late bishop of Oxford with £1500 three per cent.
stock, for the education of one hundred and fifty poor
children of Cuddesden, Wheatley, Denton, and Chip-
pinghurst, the produce of which, with contributions, |
amounts to about £100 a year: twelve r girls arve
also educated at the expense of the Bia op of
who has a here, which was rebuilt by |
Paul and Fell, the old palace, erected hyBishop Bm ,
croft, hnviug been burnt down, in 1644, to prevent its |
fnllmg into the possession of the ament,
CUDDINGTON, a parish in the hundred of Avres-
BURY, county ‘of Bt!cxwenul 54 miles (W.8.W.)
from Aylesbury, containing 547 inhabitantl The living
isa curacy, annexed to the v of Hak:
denham, in the archdeaconry of n, and
cese of Lincoln, and in the patronage theDean
Chapter of Rochester. The church is dedicated t
Nicholas. There is a place of worship for Pa
Baptists, The river Teme runs on the north
the parish, in which there are ¢ of stone,
C'U'BDH@G'ION a




; wnm,, parz.;: in the hmdudnf Ruxxy,

e of Surro Hoxx, county of Kenw, 7§ miles

| &hr‘_&i)i_i, _,.mhm;g&?hhabihnu
a .'..-. .Md“mry

 and diocese of Roche ﬁﬂhmm.w

-tl;ﬁ_la, 2. 2., endowed wit’h £200 private benefaction,
and £ 200 royal bounty, and in the patronage of the
Crown. The church is dedmatnd to St. Peter and St.
Paul, A grant for a weekly market here was made by
Henry 111
CUDWORTH, a parish in the southern division of
bundred of Prruxnrrox, county of Somerser, 3
miles (8.8.E.) from Ilminster, containing 144 inhubit-
curacy, in the peculiar
of the Prebendary of Cud-

a township in the parish of Roysron,

take of Sfruwo:.ou, West riding of the county
of Yonrg, 4 miles (N. E.by £.) from Barnesley, contain-
ing 487 inhabitants. There is a place of worship for
Wesleyan Methodists, A school has been endowed by
a bequest from William Poppleton, in 1747, of £50 for
the erection of a schoolroom, and £300 to support the
master ; the income is £12, 12. per annum, for which
seventeen children are educated.

CUERDALE, a township in the parish and lower
division of the hundred of Bracknurw, eounty pala-
tine of Lancaster, 34 miles (E.) from Preston, contain-
ing 166 inhabitants,

CUERDEN, a township in the purish and hundred
of LEYLaND, county palatine of Lancaster, 5 miles
(N.N. W.) from Chorley, containing 569 inhabitants,
Petty Sessions for the division are held on Mondays,

omce in five weeks, alternately with Chorley, Leyland,
*  Penwortham, and Rufford. A school was erected by
Andrew Dandy, in 1673, who bequeathed a rent-
charge of £5 towards the support of a master: ar-
cars on this anunuity have increased it to £6 per
annum, for which twe:aty poorinc:mdrendm eduts::led
ut o trifiing charge; five are instructed gratui y
e same achool from & bequest of £5 a year by

; nel Crooke.
- CUERDLEY, a township in the parish of Prescor,
of West Derny, county palatine of Lancas-
4} miles (W. by 8.) from Warrington, containing
nhabitants.

uinins ! i :.-‘ 1 o -
g;pedaun G.Ioreduuhngand‘, iing
are also two small of £10 each, made in

ldplandl%fornthmb 478 -

CULFO f paris mﬂgod,. gy =
BOURN, county of SuryoLK, 4§ miles (N.N. Wdﬁ ‘
Bury St. Edmund's, containing 291 itan -
living is a di rectorywit'hthonof
Timworth consoli in the
and diocese of Norwich, rated in the
£8, and in the patro of R, B.De Bev
church is dedicated to_St. Mary. The nnvi
Larke runs through the parish.

- The
le river
CULGAITH, a chapelry in the parish of x?tmn»,

Leata ward, county of CumserLanp, 8% miles

from Penrith, containing 257 inhabitants, The Tivi

isa perpetual curacy, in the archdeaconry and diogese

of Carlisle, endowed with £200 private benefaction, and  *
£600 mya.l hounty, and in the patronage of the Vicar
of Kirkland. The chapel is dedtmt&d to All Saints,

CULHAM, a parish in the hundred of DorcuESTER,
county of Oxromrp, 1 mile (8.8.E.) from Ahimdoa,
containing 359 inhabitants, The living is a vi
not in charge, in the archdeaconry and diocese of |
ford, and in the pa of the Bishop of Oxford,
church is dedicated to St. Paul, Here is a small en-
dowed school, :

CULLERCOATS, a towns ci'.? the parish of T‘ﬂil-
MouTH, eastern division of Le ward, county of
NorTHUMBERLAND, 14 mile (N, by Wi) ﬁom,’kn:
mouth, containing 536 inhabitants. % *

CULLINGWORTH, a hamlet’ in the
Bingrey, upper division of the wapentake of nne,t,
West ri of the county of Yorx, 3} miles (8, by B.}
from Keighley. The population is refufnefl with the
parish. There is a place of worship for Wesleyan Me-
thodists. The manufacture of worsted is carried on
here. A school having a small endowment was built
by subscription in 1780, in which from thn'ty to !‘qtty
scholars are educated at a moderate

CULLOMPTON, a market town parish
hundred of HayripGe, comnty of Dr.wou, 1_2,-
(N.E. by N.,) from Exeter, and 166 (W. by 8.) from L
don, containing 3410 inhabitants, This which

river Ci

Q

rives its name from being situated on

carly pmod. by one of the Saxon n
annexed by William the Conqueror tn thg
tle, in Sussex. l.nm:a,the,h;habim
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- CULVERLANDS, a
bundred of Farnmam,
(8.8. E.) from Farnham,
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CULVERTHORPE, a cha
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was built by Mrs. Danvers, and in

with an annuity of £656 by Martha

CUMBERLAND, the extreme nf

Nonmanmn- il
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Vg w ns, and are still increasing : on a stream
e river and the town are two flour-mills, a
“paper-mill, and a mill for spinning yarn ; there are other
“ smunufacturing establishments in the parish, also four
tauneries.  The market is on Saturday : the fairs are
an the first Wednesdays in May and November, which
«ure large marts for bullocks and sheep.  The county ma-
gistrates hold here monthly a petty session for the divi-
.‘j(m a high constable is chosen alternately in this
“parish and that of Kentishear adjoining, who presides
* over both parishes ; and six petty constables are annually
appointed by the parishioners, three for the town, and
three for the rest of the parish
The living is a vicarage, in the archdeaconry nnd
diocese of Exeter, rated in the king's books at £47. 4
« and in the patron of Henry Skinner, Fsq. Th(
. church, dedicated to St. Andrew, is an elegant and spa-
cious structure in the later style, of English architec-
ture, with a lofty square tower, strengthened with highly
enriched buttresses, and crowned with pierced battle-
ments and crocketed pinnacles : opening into the south
aisie is a beautiful chapel, erected in 1528, in the richest
style of that penud by Mr. John Lane, whose remains
are deposited in it : the roof of the nave and aisle of
L the church is of oak, richly carved and decorated with
gilqi There are places of worship for Baptists,
Brignites, the Society of Friends, Independents, Wes-
leyan Methodists, and Unitarians. A National school
for two hundred children of both sexes is supported
by subscription. A fund of nearly £100 per annum,
arising from land pPurchased with a donation from
George. Spaccr , inf1624, 1 appropriated to the up-
icing ‘of oo ﬁlﬁdnm and £54. 10, per annum,
) hased with a donation from John
grs., is distributed in clothing to
;. there are also several other charitable
means of which £100 is annually
the poor. At Langford-Barton, in

'l

N

1k paﬂqh. are the remains of an ancient chapel.
| |  CULMINGTON, a parish in the hundred of Muns-
"~ Low, ‘county of Savnor, 54 miles (N. by W.) from Lud-

_ low, containing 569 inhabitants. The living is a ree-
mdtbe urchdenconry of ‘Salop, and diocese of
 Hereford, rated in the king's books at £18. 9. 2., and in
* = the patronage of the Rev. Mr. Johnstone, The church
edicated to All Saints. Courts leet and baron are

eld occasionally.
. CULMSTOCK, a parish in the hundred of Hew-
m, county of Drvon, 7 miles (N, E.) from Cullomp-
e wn. cm!taining 1357 inhabitants, The living is a
- digcharged vi Jjurisdiction and
ge of the and of Exeter, rated in
s books at £16. The church, dedicated to

- enriched and canopied with foliage.
rting-houses for Baptists, the Society of Friends,

R Methodjsts, Fairs for cattle ave held on
e " May, and - Wednudny before Septemha
Here is u small endowed school

M h&hmdnd of. Gnuvoun

’GUM

hounty, and £700 parliamentary
tronage of B. G. Dillingham, Esq.
cated to St. Botolph,

CULVE RLANDS a tything in
hundred of Farnpam, county of S
(8.8.E.) from Farnham, containing, ywith'
inhabitants, ¢ e

CULVERTHORPE, a chapelry
parish of Hayponr which is in the @Way
HuRN, parts of KesTEVEN, countys
miles (8. W.byW.) frpm Sleaford,
habitants, The chapel is dedica
lomew,

CULWORTH, a parish in the hundred of Kina's
Svrron, county of NorTuamreron, 74 miles (N, E.)
from Banbury, containing 581 inhabitants, The living
is o vicarage, in the archdeaconry of Northampton, and
diocese of Peterborough, rated in the king's books at
410, and in the patronage of Mrs. Grace Greenwood.
The church is dedicated to 8t. Mary: A school-house
was built by Mrs, Danvers, and in 1795 was endowed
with an annuity of £65 by Martha and Frances Rich ;
from seventy to eighty children are jnstructed gmm-
tomsly

CUMBERLAND, the extreme n h western coun-
ty, is hounded on the east by the counties of Northum-
berland and Durbam ; on the south-ecast by West-
morland and Lancashire, being partly separated from
the former by Ullswater lake and the river Eamont,
and from the latter by the river Dudden ; on the west
by the Irish sea; and on the north by Scotland, from
which it is separated by the Solway Firth, and the rivers
Liddel and Sark : it is situated between 54° 6' and
55° 77 (N. Lat), and between 2° 18’ and 3° 30'
(W. Lon.), and contains one thousand four hundred and
seventy-eight square miles, or nine hundred and forty-
five thousand nine hundred and twenty acres: the
population, in 1821, amounted to 156,124, Cumberland,
or, according to the Saxon nrthugraphy, nd,
signifying the land of the Cumbrians, derived its mame
from having been inhabited, at the time of the Saxon
conguests in Britain, by a remnant of, the ancient
Britons, called Cambri, or Cumbri, At time of the
Roman invasion it was, according to Whitaker, occupie
by the Volantii, or Foluntii (people of the forests)
tribe of the Brigantes,.whose territory was mot sub
jugated by the Romans until the reign of the Empe
Vespasian. It was also called Caerleyl-schire,
Caerlielleshire, from its chief town Caerleyl, now Ca
On the first division of the mland } t.he v
Romans, this county was included inithe proy
Britannia Inferior ; and on the second, in the:
distriet, which they named Valentia,
Octarchy it formed part of the king
berland.  About the middle of
Cumberhnﬂwﬁmdﬂdtothg Scol
it was sometimes under the ¢
and sometimes under that of ﬂlll
year 1287, when it was finally an
England by Henry TIL
which historians concu

meom, ok .
containing 61 in--
d to St. Bartho-
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_repuired subsequently to the English court.

and Westmorland ; but these counties were ceded to
the Scottish his successor Edmund, by treaty ;
and it was that the heir apparent of Scotland
should possess Camberland, as before, rendering homage
for it to the king of England : accordingly Indulph, son
of King Malcolm; was proclaimed Prince of Cumber-
land. The insurrectionary inhabitants having shortly
afterwards set up an independent sovereign, named
Dunmaile, apparently of British origin, King Edmund
marched inst them in 945, lnid waste their territory,
and restared it to Malcolm on the condition of his firm
alliance.  About the year 1000, King Ethelred invaded
Cumberland, becanse the Scottish prince had refused to
pay his quota of the contributions levied for prosecuting
the war against the Danes. In the early part of the
eleventh century, Othred, Earl of Northumberland, in
alliance with the Danes, to commit depredations
in this county, but was defeated by Malcolm, after a
desperate engagement, near Burgh upon the Sands:
the Danes and Northumbrians afterwards made an ir-
ruption, and were defeated by Duncan, deon of
Maleolm, who had been invested with the princedom of
Cumberland,  Canute, having ascended the English
throne, summoned the Scottish prince to do homage,
which the latter refused, on the plea that he was
not the lawful sovereign of England : Canute, in conse-
quence, marched northward with his arnry in 1033, but
it is very uncertain whether an engagement or an ac-
commodation ensued, so little are the contradictory
statements of the ancient historians to be relied on.
Duncan succeeded to the erown of Scotland in the next
year ; and after his murder, Malcolm, his son and heir,
finding himself unable to resist the usurper Macbeth,
retired with his brother Donald Bain to his principality
of Cumberlund, and, baving remained there some time,
In the
year 1053, Edward the Confessor gave Cumberland and
the other northern counties to Siward, Earl of North-
umberland, who thereupon invaded Scotland, defeated
Macheth, and placed Prince Malcolm on the throne.
Shortly after the Norman Congquest, a war broke out

“betwlen King William and Malcolm of Scotland, who
“had granted an asylum to the English

IR
1060, or the following year, the Scottish monarch passed

this county, which then belonged to him, and
d ck, Earl of Nor.l:humbuh

(inheritanee under King William's

. 3 g gt £ 1
tory and up to the period when King came back from Scotland, he g
helstan obtained st Bruningfield, or Brunford (a cor- the city (which bad lain i
; 1 OF the Saxon Brunan-burh), a victory over the by the two centuries .
cing of Seotland, and his ally, the king of Northumber- castle : these works advanced but slowly;
land, whereby he acquired possession of Cumberland Henry 1. was there, thirty years afterwards,

Matilda ; tidings of this hm

rome

but a treaty heing shortly after

given to David, and some time after the county of Cum-

berlund. In 1188, the king of Scots oceupied that city
with a strong
256th of September, Alberic, the pope's
and found him attended by the barons, bi
priors of Scotland. *David being defeated the fo :
vear in the battle of the Standard, near York, fled to

Carlisle, where Le was joined by his son three days af-

terwards, In 1142, a dispute arose between the Scottish
prince, Henry, and Ralph, Earl of Chester, respecting
the county of Cumberland, the latter claiming it as his
grant to Ranulph de
Meschines, but it was agreed that the earl should have
the honour of Lancaster in lieu, and espouse one of
Henry's daughters. The English and Scottish mo-
narchs again took up arms, in 1140, Stephen 1 at
York, and David at Carlisle, but they both retived
without coming to an engagement. In the

year a league was entered into against Stephen, at the

latter city, between King David, Henry
(afterwards Henry II. of England), snd
Chester, on which occasion Henry was g
king of Scotland, and swore that when he

throne he would confirm to him and his heirs the
ritories which the Scots in England
1152, David, and his son Henry (who died
met John, the pope's legate, at Carlisle : in
the following year, the king expired in that cif
was succeeded by his grandson, Malcolm IV,
Henry II. ascended the isreg

sh throne, dmwdh: B
the oath made to David, he demanded the wudﬁu .' 

Stephen, he marched with his army towards the north, ”{

; and in the same year, on the
1 e

.
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Carlisle with a strong force, in the year 1186. Eight vigorous resistance from the inhabitants, they raised

years afterwards, William demanded Cumberland the sicge and retreated. The same army, in its career

and the other English which -had been of devastation, arrived-at Lanercost on the Sth of

beld by the ancestors of Richard L, but the state- April, and burnt the priory, but retired on receiving

mdthehhwhmufﬂm;puhd!regmuyd intelligence that the English forces were advancing.

variance regarding his having been put in

of them. Prince Alexander succeeded to the throne of
Scotland in 1214, and two years after, daring the war
with the barons, he invaded Cumberland, pi the
abbey of Holme-Cultram, and Carlisle, which
was surrendered to him on the Sth of August, by order
of the barons. He then repaired to Louis, the Dauphin
of France, who was in possession of the greater part of
England, and received from him and the barons of his
party a recognition of his claim to the counties of Cum-
berland, Northumberland, and Westmorland, for which
he did homage.

Soon after the accession of Henry IIL a general
pacification ensued, and Carlisle was given up to the
English in 1217 : it was then agreed that the sovercign-
ty of Cumberland should remain with Alexander, but
Henry appears to have retained firm hold of it, for in
1285 and 1237 the Scottish monarch demanded that
county and those of Northumberland and Westmorland,
as his lawful inheritance ; however, at s conference held
/at York in the last mentioned year, he was induced to

inquish his claim, and to accept in lieu lands then
pf the yearly value of £200. The Scottish dominion
over the morthern counties of England thus finally
peased, but the feuds between the two kingdoms raged
with unabated violence for more than three centuries,

he horrors of invasion, or the cruelties and depreda-
of border warfare. Life and property could only
preserved by a most vigilant system of watch and
and the construction of numerous fortresses ;
mm.m'. residence, particularly on the
or near the border, had its fortified tower,
sufficiently capacious to afford refuge to the inhabitants
of the domain, and in some parishes the church towers

were so constructed as to serve this purpose. The bor-
der service and laws were instituted in the reign of
Edward L ; the former, for the purpose of keeping a

In October of the following year, William Wallace
entered Cumberland with his victorious army, and sum-
moned Carlisle, but finding that the garrison resolu
held out, he marched fngrward, and laid waste m
Forest of Inglewood, and the whole of Allerdale, as
far as Cockermouth. Shortly after the battle of Falkirk,
in 1298, in which the Scots under Wallace were
defeated, King Edward proceeded with his army to
Carlisle, and therc held a parliament on the 15th of
September. Two years afterwards, about Midsummer,
he set out on a new expedition againgt Scotland, and,
passing through that city, marched with his army to
the western border. In the year 1306, Robert le
Brus, Earl of Carrick, baving been crowned King of
Scotland, Edward ordered his army to ussemble at Car-
lisle on Midsummer-day, to accompany his son to that
kingdom ; he had been for some time in Northumber-
land, and arrived at Carlisle with the queen about the
end of August, where they stayed till the 10th of Sep-
tember. On the 12th of March following, the court re-
moved to Carlisle, where the parliament was then sit-
ting. The king, though daily declming in health, did
not relax in his efforts against Scotland, and ordered
all his vassals to assemble at Carlisle on the 8th of
July; he quitted that city on the 28th of June, being
then in 8o weak a state as to be unable to travel more
than two miles a day, and reached Burgh on the Sands
on the 5th of July, where he expired two days after-
wards. An express having been sent to Prince Edward,
he reached Carlisle on the 11th, and two days after-
wards received the homage of almost all the principal
men in the kingdom. He then returned into Scotland,
but having abandoned the vigorous prosecution of the
war against that nation, he arrived at the above-men-
tioned eity in the month of September,

In the year 1311, two inroads were made into Cum-
berland by Robert le Brus, King of Scotland, who ra-
vaged Gilsland ; during his second incursion he stayed
three days at Lanercost with his army, and imprisoned
several of the monks, but set them at liberty before
his de In the autumn of the year 1314, Ed-
ward le Brus, brother of the Scottish monarch, attended
by Sir James Douglas, advanced into England as far
as Richmond in Yorkshire, after the battle of Ban-
nockburn, and on his return burnt Kirk-Oswald. About

the inhabitants. The
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Cumberland in 1319: three years afterwards, England
was again invaded by Robert le Brus, who burnt Rose
castle (the bishop's palace), plundered the sbbey of
Holme-Cultram, in which the remains of his father had
heen deposited, laid waste all the western side of Com-
berland, as far as Dudden sands, and entered Lan-
cashire; on his return he encamped near Carlisle, and
there remained five days. Edward IL retaliated upon
Scotland, but was compelled to retire in consequence of
the scarcity of provisions, and a dysentery which raged
in his army ; whereupon Le Brus again entered Cum-
berland, and lay with his army for five days at Beau-
mont, whence he sent forth detachments to ravage the
surrounding country,

Shortly after the accession of Edward II1., in 1327,
the lords Ufford and Mowbray were sent with a rein-
forcement to Lord Lucy, the governor of Carlisle; in
July, the Earl of Murray and Lord Douglas entered
England with a large army, and marched through Cum-
berlund, devastating the country. Edward Baliol hav-
ing, in 1332, made an attempt to recover his father's
crown, after narrowly escaping assassination at Annan,
fled to Carlisle, where he was hospitably received by
Lord Dacre, the governor. The following year that
nobleman’s estates in Gilsland were ravaged by Lord
Archibald Douglas, who stayed four days with his army
m Cumberland, When Edward 1II. was in Scotland,
at the close of the year 1334, he sent Edward Baliol
and the Earls of Oxford and Warwick to defend Car-
lisle against the Scots ; large reinforcements having
joined them from the northern counties, they made a
successful incursion into Scotland, and returned to that
city : the next year, on the 11th of July, the king quit-
ted it with his army, on his way to Scotland. The Scots
entered England at Arthuret in 1337, and, marching
eastward, destroyed and sacked about twenty villages ;
(uring a subsequent invasion in the same year, they
surrounded Carlisle, and fired the suburbs, with the
hospital of St. Nicholas ; they also burnt Rose castle,
and pillaged the surrounding country, Five years after
this they invaded Gilsland, and, having penetrated as
far as Penrith, burnt that town, with several of the vil-
lages in its neighbourhood. Carlisle and Penrith were
again burnt by them in 1345, In the next year, David
le Brus invaded Cumberland in person, and took Liddell
castle by assault ; the Scots then plundered the monks
of Lanercost of their money and jewels, and, after com-
mitting great destruction, marched by way of Naworth
to Ridpath.

Although 2 truce had been established between the
two mnations, the borderers continued their hostilities,
In the summer of 1380, the Scots laid waste the forest
‘of Inglewood, and havnr:.frlmmrmcd the town of Penrith
during the time of the feir, they slew o great number of
‘the people, and carried off several prisoners, besides a
' booty ; for which, however, they paid very dearly,

r became infected with a pestilence then raging,
h vast mambers of the inhabitants of Scotland
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burned. The Scots, assisted by the French, invaded

Cumberland in 1885, ravaged the estates of the Lord of
Greystock and the Musgraves, and mnde an uhsuccess-

ful attack on Carlisle. Two years after this, the Earls
of Douglas and Fife, with other Scottigh noblemen, in-
vaded Cumberland, devastated the country; sarprised
Cockermouth, where they remained three days, and
carried off Peter Tilliol, sheriff for the county ;" during
this inroad another attack was made on Carlisle,
and the suburbs burnt. In 1388, the Scots entered
Gilsland, and, on Lord Dacre's demesne; barbarously
set fire to some houses, in which they had shut up
more than two hundred decrepid persons, women,
and children. No further mention is made of this
county till the year 1461, when an army of Scots, in the
interest of Henry VI, hesieged Carlisle, and burnt the
suburbs. In 1522, the Duke of Albany marched to
the borders with a large army, and approached. within
four miles of Carlisl?, with an intention to besiege it;
but having received intelligence that it was well defend-
ed, and in every vespect prepared for a siege, he retired,
and made praposals to Lord Dacre for a truce. The
next year. Lord Maxwell, having made an inroad into
Cumberland, a skirmish took place, in which, after a
sharp conflict, he overcame his opponents, and returned
with three hundred prisoners to Scotland. Nicholas
Musgrave and others, having excited an insurrection in
1537, besieged Carlisle, but were repulsed by the inha-
bitants, and afterwards defeated by the Duke of Nor-
folk, who ordered seventy-four of their officers to be
hanged on the walls of that city ; Musgruve, however,
escaped, Lord Maxwell, Lord Warden of the Marches,
passed the Eske in 1542, and burnt some houses on the
borders. The battle of Solway-moss was fought soon
afterwards, in the parish of Kirk-Andrews, when the
Scots, notwithstanding their superior numbers, were
defeated by the English army, commanded by Sir
Thomas Dacre, who took above a thousand prisoners,
among whom were two hundred noblemen, esquires,
and gentlemen. In the year 1569, Lord Scrope,
the Lord Warden, held Carlisle against the Earls of
Northumberland and Westmorland, who were then in
open rebellion ; these noblemen advanced from North-
umberland as far as Naworth, but, after a conference
with Leonard Ducre, finding that their cause was hope-
less, disbanded their forces in the month of Decem-
ber. Early in the following year, Dacre, who laid
claim to the baronies of Gilsland and Girystock, hav-
ing raised from among the tenants of those baronies a
force of two thousand infantry and six hundred cavalry,
garrisoned Naworth and Rockcliffe castles.  Lord
Hunsdon was sent against him, and on the 20th of
February appronched Naworth, but instead of investing
the castle, passed on towards Carlisle ; Dacre therenpon
made a sally with one thousand five hundred foot and

*

six hundred horse, and to intercept Hums-
dun;;? - b bu:im , and fled ‘with' his
cav. o Scotlan i Hunsdon proceeded  to
Carlisle, and imme&iately took possession of Na-

ik q‘-..l“-:

and Greystock castles for the
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and penetrated as far as Penrith, committing various
depredations. James, who was then at Berwick, on his
way to London, immedintely despatched the governor,
Sir William Selby, against them, with a detachment of
the garrison, who soon defeated these frecbooters, and
sent all the prisoners he took to the castle of Carlisle.
As the two countries were now united under James VL.
of Scotland and I of England, and fromtier garrisons
were no | necessary, the king reduced those at
Carlisle and Berwick; he also took active measures
for ensuring the peace of the borders, and appointed
George Clifford, Earl of Cumberland, Lord Warden
of the Marches. In order to abolish as much as possi-
ble the distinction between the two kingdoms, he ordered
that the counties of ‘England and Scotland, which had
been called the Borders, should be styled the Middle
Shires, and thus described them in his proclamation.
He soon after banished the Gremes, or Grahams, 8 nu-
merous clan, occupying what waf called the debateable
ground, near the river Eske, who had long been an an-
noyance both to their own countrymen and the inhabit-
ants of Cumberland ; they embarked at Workington,
some being sent to the Netherlands, but the greater
number to Ireland, and, in 1606, there was an
assessment on the county to defray the expense of
returned from
exile, the king issued a proclamation for apprehending
them in 1614. For some time after the accession of
| James, outrages and robberies continued to be perpe-
trated on the borders; as a further check to them, the
| king issued several special commissions, under which
various regulations were adopted. All persons, “saving
noblemen and gentlemen mmpeetcd of felony or theft,
. and not being of broken clans,” in the counties lately
called the Borders, were forbidden to wear any armour,
or weapons offensive or defensive, or to keep any horse
above the value of fifty shillings, on pain of imprisonment.
Slongh-dogs, or blood-hounds, for pursuing the offenders
the mosses, sloughs,or bogs (who thus acquired
the name of moss- ), were ordered to be kept at
the charge of the inhabitants of certain distriets; and
Lord William Howard maintained a small garrison at
Naworth, in order to check their marauding, enforcing
the laws against them with the utmost severity; his
great the Earl of Carlisle, was not more
lenient, but they were not finally extirpated until the
reign of Queen Anne,
Carlisle and Bewcastle were garrisoned in 1639, in
of the commotions in Scotland: in the
month of June of the following year, the Scottish army
being daily expected to enter Cumberland, necessary
precautions were taken ; orders were issued for keepmg
striet watch, and for preparing the beacons. The gar
rison at the former place was kept up till the mnnth
of October, 1641, when, in of a treaty with
the Scots, it was disbanded. Soon after the commence-
ment of the war between Charles I. and the parliament,
ud&m«tm the northern counties associated and
king, wwammm

564

CUM

force was firstiraised in this county for the
which menaced Carlisle, but, being pursued hythapm
comitatds towards Abbey-Holme, quickly dispersed and
fled, At this period the Marquis of Montrose, bei
hard pressed by the Earl of Calendar, retreated from
Scotland to that city; a skirmish took place in the town
on the 17th of May, when Montrose retired to the
castle, where he was besieged; but it does not appear to
have been surrendered, as the earl, five days afterwards,
was employed in the siege of Morpeth, After the capture
of York, in July, Sir Thomas Glenham, with the gar-
rison, retired to Carlisle, where he assumed the coms ..
mand; and about the end of September, Sir Philip Mus-
grave and Sir Henry Fletcher, being defeated near Great
Sulkeld by the Scottish army under General Lesley,
escaped with difficulty to the same place: as Lesley did
not then stay to invest it, the townsmen were enabled to
lay in a stock of provisions; but after the storming of
Newcastle, in October, he returned with part of his
forces and laid siege to the city. About the end of Fe-
bruary, it being found necessary to put the garrison
and inhabitants on short allowance, they experienced
the most severe distress; but nevertheless held out till
all hopes of relief had vanished by the fatal issue of
the battle of Naseby, and did not surrender till the 25th
of June, 1645, when the most honourable terms were
granted them., In the month of October, Lord Dighy
and Sir Marmaduke Langdale were defeated by Sir
John Brown, governor of Carlisle, at Carlisle sands,
and, their forces being dispersed, were obliged to
take refuge in the Isle of Man. Carlisle had been gar-
risoned by the Scots from the time of itsgapture by
General Lesley, but on the general evacuation of for-
tified towns by the Scottish garrisons, it was relinquished
in February 1647. An army was ‘raised in Scotland
for the service of the king, in 1648, under the Duke of
Hamilton, and, ahout the end of April in the same year,
Sir Thomas Glenham and Sir Philip Musgrave surprised
Carlisle : shortly after that event, a force of about three
thousand infantry and seven hundred cavalry, raised in
Cumberland and Westmorland, assembled, under the
command of Sir Marmaduke Langdale, upon a heath
five miles from that city, where they were joined by
five bundred cavalry from the bishoprick of Durham.
General Lambert, who' commanded the parliamentary -
army in the north, took Penrith onthe 15thof June, and
established his head -quarters there for a month; detach-
ments from his army captured Greystock, Rose, and
Scaleby castles. retreated towards Carlisle,
i, patiionsd Six Tty Maogeave mo bouut SIS
mine, ve =
army wifihin t?e ul;mn.- The Duke of Hamilton arrived
there early in , and
the command of the garrison mm_ wing-
ston: his forces, which were guartered '

hood - of the city and at Wi Mﬂu
undntbemmhdnilmgﬂ?. king
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Preston.  Sir Philip Musgrave, returning about this time

ith his forces to Carlisle, was refused admittance by the
governor, Cockermouth castle was besieged by a body of

ve hundred Cumberland royalists, in August 1648, and
relieved on the 20th of September by Lieutenant-Colonel
Ashton, who had been despatched from Lancashire by
Cromwell for that purpose, On the 1st of October, Car-
ligle was surrendered to Cromwell, and garrisoned by
eight hundred infantry and a regimentpf cavalry: a gar-
rison, eonsisting of six hundred infantry and one thou-
sand two hundred cavalry, was afterwards established
there for the purpose of suppressing the insurrections of
the moss-troopers. The county was at this time in a
deplorable state; people of the highest rank had scarce
ly bread enough for their consumption, and no better
heverage than water ; many died on the highways for
want of sustenance, and there were thousands of fami-
lies in a state of utter destitution : parliament ordered a
collection to be made for their relief, but i® proved very
inefficient.

In the month of November, 1715, a large force
under the command of Mr. Forster, who had received a
general's commission from James Steuart, entered
England, marched to Brampton, where they proclaimed
him, and, advancing to Penrith, took possession of the
town, the posse comitatis, amounting to twelve thonsand
men, flecing at their approach, This county was once
more the scene of military operations in 1745, when the
young chevalier, as he was styled, made an attempt to
regain the crown, which had been forfeited by his grand-
father : the van-guard of his army entered Cumberland
on the 8th gf November, near Longtown, and encamped
the next day within four miles of Carlisle, which was
garrisoned by the militia of Cumberland and Westmor-
land ; the main body having joined them on the 10th,
they summoned the town, but the siege was not com-
menced till the 13th, two days after which it surrendered.
A garrison having been left there, the advanced guard
marched on the 21st to Penrith, on their route to the
south, and the next day, Charles arrived there with the
remainder of his army. He d as far as Derby,
but, after holding a council of war, made a hasty retreat
towards the north, followed by the Duke of Cumberland.
The main body of the Highland army reached Penrith
on its retreat, on the 17th of December, and a skirmish
took place on the following day between the rear ‘and

| %q part of the duke’s forces at Clifton. On the 20th the

quitted Carlisle, after leaving a ison in

" the castle,and fled towards Scotland ; the Duke of Cum-
berland arrived before the place the next morning, but,
being obliged to wait for cannon from Whitehaven, did
not erect his batteries till the 28th, two days after which
gity was surrendered at discretion. In 1778, during
" the American war, a daring attempt was made on the
st of Whitehaven by the famous Paul Jones ; but one

ats of his iutentions, who were thus fully pre-
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the remainder being in Westmorland. It contains one
hundred and four parishes, of which thirty-eight are
rectories, twenty-nine vicarages, and thirty-seven perpe-
tual curacies. For civil purposes it is divided into four
districts, called wards (a term peculiar to the border
counties), which have always borne the same appella-
tion ; Allerdule. (above and below Derwent), -Cumber-
land, Eskdale, find Leath wards. It comprises the city
of Carlisle, the boro and market town of Cocker-
mouth, and the market towns of Alston Mooer, Bootle,
Brampton, Egremont, Hesket - Newmarket, Keswick,
Kirk-Oswald, Longtown, Maryport, Penrith, Raven-
glass, Whitchaven, Wigton, and Workington.  This
county returns six members to parliament ; two knights
of the shire, two burgesses for Carlisle, and two for
Cockermouth, at which latter place the election of the
county members takes place. It iz in the northern
circuit : the assizes and the spring and summer quarter
gessions are held at Carlisle, where stands the county
gaol and house of correction; the autummal session at
Penrith, and the Epiphany session at Cockermouth.
There are fifty-five acting magistrates. The rates raised
in the county for the year ending March 26th, 1529,
amounted to £57,888, and the expenditure to £ 55,920,
of which £43,783 was applied to the relief of the poor.

The manufacture of calico and gingham was first
established at Dalston, and soon extended to Carlisle
and Penrith, where there are large cotton works. The
cotton-printing is chiefly carried on at Carlisle, and the
population has, in consequence, greatly increased. At
Cleator, Egremont, and Whitehaven, sail-cloth is ma-
nufactured on an extensive scale, and coarse woollen
cloths and blankets at Keswick. Coarse earthenware is
made at Dearham and Whitehaven, and bottles are ma-
nufactured at the Ginns, There are iron-foundries at
Carlisle, Dalston, and Seaton near Workington : paper-
mills at Cockermouth, Egremont, and Kirk-Oswald ; and
several yards for ship-building at Maryport, Whitehaven,
and Workington, as well as every kind of manufacture
for the supply of the shipping.

The ‘elimate is extremely salubrious, the county
being throughout remarkable for the longevity of its
inhabitants. The surface is much diversified ; the
northern and western parts are generally level, and
do not afford any interesting scenery, except in the
courses of the several rivers. The eastern and south-
western parts are chiefly occupied by mountains, many
of which are of considerable height : between these and
the level district are lower of smooth hills,

most of which are denominated fells. The mountain-
ous tract which forms the eastern boundary is a long

continued range of mountains and hills, none of them

picturesque, the summits being for the most part very

little broken. The numerous mountains in the south-
west part of the county present a great variety of .
grand and picturesque forms, and are interspersed with
lakes of considefable extent, and | r cultivated val-
lies, in many parts well wooded ; ing altogether
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© trical survey of the kingdom, are as follows :—Sea-fell
(high gm, three thousand one hundred and sixty-six
feet; Sca-fell (low point), three thousand and ninety-
two; Helvellyn, three thousand and fifty-five; Skiddaw,
three thousand and twenty-two; Bow-fell, two thousand
nine hundred and eleven; Cross-fell, two thousand nine
hundred and one; Pillar, two thousand eight hundred
and ninety-three ; Saddleback, two thousand seven
hundred and eighty-seven; Grasmere-fell, two thousand
seven hundred and fifty-six ; High-pike, two thousand
one hundred and one ; Black-Comb, one thousand nine
hundred and nineteen; Dent-hill, one usand one
hundred and fifteen. The largest of the lakes is Uls-
water, which for about six miles forms the boundary
between Cumberland and Westmorland : its whole
length somewhat exceeds eight miles, and, its breadth
belng in no part quite 2 mile, it has much the appearance
of a wide river: its scenery ig remarkably beautiful and
picturesque ; the most prominent feature of it is the
mountain Helvellyn, which, with some lower ones, being
seen over Patterdale, with sharp peaks, are said to re-
semble the Alpine forms more than any others in this
coun The same mountain is also the most conspi-
cuous amongst the rugged and barren masses seen from
the luke of Thirlemeer, or Leatheswater, which is long
and narrow, like Ulswater, but of smaller dimensions,
and is situated at the entrance of the small but beauti-
ful vale of St.John's. Amongst the finest scenery is
the Vale of Keswick, containing the lakes of Derwent-
water and Bassenthwaite, or Broad-water, connected by
a small stream. The borders of Derwentwater, consist-
ing of fine oak woods and rich enclosures, over which
are seen the mountain Skiddaw at the northern ex-
tremity, and Borrowdale at the southern, present a great
variety of m t and beautiful scenes, a consider-
able addition to which is made in rainy seasons by the
" Lowdore waterfall, the height of which is two hundred
feet. Borrowdale itself, a narrow valley, bounded on
each side by steep rocky mountains, presents a great
diversity of picturesque scenery, among the most re-
markable objects of which are the conical hill called

and the immense and singularly detached
rock, called the Bowder-stone. The lake of Buttermere
lies a short distance north-west of Borrowdale, sur-
rounded by rugged mountains; and a little farther

northward lie Crummock-water and Lowes-water, con-
nected with each other and with Buttermere by a small
stream. At the western extremity of this group of
mountains are those called Hard-knot, Wry-nose, Sca-
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Brathay, above Skelwith bridge ; Lowdore cascade, near |
the south-east corner of Derwentwater, one of the most.
magnificent scenes in England ; Barrow cascade ; Scale
Force ; and Airey Force.

The soil may be classed under four different heads :
first, rich strong loam, which covere but a small portion
of the county, and produces excellent crops of grain.
Second, dry loams, which occupy a larger portion of it
than any other, and prevail, not only in the lower dis-
tricts, but on the steep sides of the mouantains, and even
their summits are sometimes covered with a dry sound
earth, producing green sward and a little heath. Ttis
estimated that one-half of the lower district is covered
with this valuable goil, which is well adapted to the cul-
ture of turnips, artificial grasses, and the various species
of grain, and for hreeding and feeding the best kinds
of stock, particularly sheep, Third, wet loam, generally
on a clay bottom, the fertility of which varies greatly,
as it depends on the depth of the soil, and the nature of
the clay beneath ; although unsafe for sheep, cows for
the dairy may be kept upon it with advantage, and young
cattle and horses bred; it is also well suited to the
culture of wheat, oats, clover, and ray-grass. Fourth,
black peat earth, which prevails on the mountainons
districts bordering on Northumberland and Durham,
and occasionally on commons in the lowlands, in some
places only a few inches thick, reposing on a bed of
white sand. The crops commonly cultivated are barley,
oats, peas, turnips, and potatoes ; those less commonly
cultivated ave beans, cabbages, carrots, and flax : the
artificial grasses are red and white clover, common hay
sceds, with a little rib-grass, and ray-grass. The land
is ploughed by horses yoked abreast, and guided by the
ploughman with cords; oxen are mever employed for
this purpose: the swing plough, in which no improve-
ment has been made, is used in this and all the northern
counties. The earts are drawn by a single horse, threc
of them, and sometimes more, being driven without dif-
ficulty by a man or a boy: the women are frequently
employed in the labours of the field, This county, until
lately, did not produce much more corn than was suffi-
cient for the consamption of ite inhabitants, but since
the large enclosures which have been made within the
lust five and thirty years, considerable quantities of flour
and oatmeal have been sent coastwise to other parts of
the kingdom : the chief exports are from Whitchaver
but smaller shipments of flour and oatmeal are alsomade
from Maryport and Ravenglass, Wheat is chiefly grown
in the north-west part of the county ; Gilsland also,
the north-east, is a corn district, where the turnip
revalent. Thenorth-east, o

barley system is very p :
cast, a:::d gouthern pu::d of the oﬁt?“m -

propriated to grazing, and a great f butter
in firkins to distant markets, Cranberries grow i
profusion on the moors, and form a .
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er was formerly exported to a 1 amount,
. and a cdnsiderable quantity of silver extra::'egde from the

* mipes ; dead and coal are now the most valoable sub-
errancalpy productions. The principal lead mines are

| those Alston Moor, discovered and worked by
Francis Radcliffe, the first earl of Derwentwater ;
upon the attainder of the third earl, they were vested
»guwich Hospital, with the manor and his other

ateg: the number of mines held under that estab-
hmemt, in the year 1814, amounted to one hundred
id two. Lead mines have been worked with tolerable
for some years on Cross-fell, in the parish of
Kirkland, and there are three in operation at Newlands,
but they are not profitable. The principal collieries

| on the coast are at Whitehaven and Workington, the
former being by far the most extensive in the kingdom,

| and there is one at Scalegill, worked only for inland
. sale. Howgill on the west, and Whingill to the east, of
‘Whitehaven, are the largest collieries ; there are three
entrances to the former, and four to the latter, called
- Bear-mouths, or Day-holes, by which both men and
horses descend to the bottom. Thwaite pit, which in
the year 1816 was one hundred and fifty fathoms in
depth, and King pit, which was one hundred und twenty,

| both in Howgill, are the deepest pits that have yet been
| suuk; the former was at that period one hundred and
! twelve fathoms below the sea; the greatest distance to
which workings had then been carried in a direct line
from the shore was one thousand yards. The frst steam-
engine for raising water at Whitehaven was erected
early in the last century, at the Gions; the first for
raising coul was used at George pit, in Whingill
colliery, in 1787 ; others were soon afterwards erected
for the same purpose. Howgill and Whingill have each
two steam-engines for pumping water, and three for
| raising coal: these collierics produce, on an average,
about two hundred and twenty-five thousand tons an-
nually. The coal was formerly conveyed from the works
to the sea-side in packs on horseback, but, about the
year 1720, small wagons were introduced ; in 1813, the
wagon-ways, which were before of wood, were laid with
cast-iron, and on the Howgill side, a self-acting inclined
plane was constructed, two hundred and ninety yards
z, with a perpendicular altitude of one hundred and
' en feet, About nine hundred persons are employed
it the works at Whitehaven. The next colliery in point
tent on the coast is at Workington, which affords
yment to four hundred ; there are four
ion from sixty-five to ninety-five
and six steam-engines are at work in

Crowgarth, in the parish of Cleator, and Bigrigg,

|
|
|
.F
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very abundant in various parts ofthueaud'i;ﬂ i
the sea-coast is burnt in great qmﬂﬂu‘WWi
portation, particularly at Overend, near Hensingham,
and at Distington, from each of which places about
three hundred and fifty thousand Winchester bushels -
are annually sent to Scotland. At A]l-hﬂbn,m :
ham, Cleator, Hodbarrow in Millom, Ireby, Plam
Sebergham, Uldale, &c., there are limeworks for inland
consumption, and the barony of Gilsland is n:piled
from the parishes of Castle-Carrock, Denton, and Far-
lum, Gypsum, or alabastcr, abounds in the parishes of
Wetherall, St. Cuthbert, and in St. Bees, on the sea-,
coast, about a mile from Whitehaven, whence five or six
hundred tons are annually exported to Dublin, Glasgow,
and Liverpool, where it is principally used in the com-
position of stucco. There are several quarries of ex-
cellent freestone, both red and white, in the neigh-
bourhood of Whitehaven, where a great deal is shipped
for Ireland, Scotland, aind the Iele of Man. At Ivegill
and Barngill, near that port, there are quarries for
grindstones, which are also exported in considerable
quantities; and in the townships of Bassenthwaite,
Borrowdale, Buttermere, Cockermonth, and Ulpha, are
quarries of excellent blue slate.

The cattle are small, with long horns, but the Gal-
loway breed is sometimes intermixed, particularly alo
the corst from Whitehaven to Carlisle : the native'b
is not distingnished by any particularly good qualities,
little attention being paid to its improvement, but it
appears better adapted to this county than any other
kind : the Gallowny polled cattle also thrive well.
The dairies are generally small ; the butter which they
produce is of excellent quality ; the cheese, however, ig
very indifferent, being mostly made of skimmed milk.
The sheep (except the Herdwicks, a breed peculiar to
the mountainous district, known as Hardknot, Sca-fell,
Wry-nose, &c.) are descended from a race with black
faces and coarse wool, but, by erossing with some other
kind, many of them have acquired a large portion of |
white on their faces and legs; they have thick, rough,
hairy legs, and coarse long wool. The management of
sheep is very similar all over the county; during the
summer the flock is turned on the commons and allowed
to range at large; in Autumn they are driven in and
salved, when the old sheep are turned loose’again, but
on the first appearance of snow are brought to the
enclosures and daily foddered with hay. Swine are
bred in considerable numbers, as every farmer fattens
one or more of them, and most labourers rear and
feed a pig; their weight is from fifteen to twenty
stone, !

The Eden and the Derwent are the principal rivers :
the former rises in Westmorland, and enters this county
about a mile south of Edenhall, flowing by Kirk-Oswald,
Warwick-bridge, Carlisle, and Roweliffe ; at a short dis-
tance from the latter place it falls into the sea, its course

Cumberland being about thirty-five miles.
The Derwent rises in Borrowdale, five miles south-west
from Derwentwater, and, after feeding that |
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er, Levom, or Line, Liddell, Lowther,, Nent,

Surk, Tees, Tyne, Wampoal, Wayen, A
canal connects Carlisle with the Solway Frith at
Bowness, and a rail-rond is sbout to be commenced
from Carlisle to Newcastle upon Tyne.

. The main roads are remarkably good, limestone hav-
ing been employed in “their construction ; but the cross
roads are usually narrow and bad. 'The great road from
London to Glasgow enters the county at the bridge over
the Eamont, near Penrith, passing through Carlisle and
« Lougtown, aud four miles beyond the latter place runs
into Scotlund, crossing the Sark to Springfield and
Gretua-Green,  The road from Carlisle to Edinburgh

es off at Longtown, and crosses the borders a
little beyond Kirk-Andrews. That from Carlisle to
Newcastle passes through Croshy to Brampton, and
about six miles further on enters Northumberland,
The road from Carlisle to Cockermouth, Workington,
sud Whitchaven, runs through Wigton, thence by
Cockln to Cockermouth, and, in the direction of
Great @ tht]e Clifton, proceeds to Workington; at
Little Clifton it turns off through Distington and

E‘Ei

* Moresby to Whitehaven.

Athough remains of early Norman architecture are to
be scen in many of the churches of Cumberland, few of
them are entitled to particular notice, except the nave
and south transept of Carlisle cathedral (the style of
which is plain and massy), and the churches of Aspatria
and Torpenhow: the great arch and south doorway of the
former are profusely adorned with braids and chevron
mouldings, and some of the original small round-headed
windows are  still remaining in the north wall of the
nave and of the belfry. The great arch in Torpenhow
church is enviched with chevron mouldings: the orna-
ments of the capitals of the half pillars on each side are
very singular, consisting of an assemblage of grotesque
heads and human figures with interlaced arms, The

arches and the doorways of Bridekirk, Irthing-
tom, Isell, and Kirk-Bampton churches are in the same
style, but less decorated; there is a bas-rvelief of indif-
ferent execution within the arch of the north doorway
of the latter, representing three grotesque figures,

one-of which is an abbot. Kirklinton is a complete

Norman church, not having undergone any alteration.
Warwick church is in the same style, and very plain,
ThegrntwcatdooraftheehumhofSt.Beuisom—
mented with e heads and chevron mouldings ;

s
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ubuﬂtmlllﬁ“ugnof Edward gl.;.u‘hthﬂoh b ba
been partially destroyed by fire, and a fine window
the east end of the aigle of B‘mﬁ ;
are the only remains ofsecclesiastical 2
fourteenth century in this county, The only .

of later E llshmvhhwhreocmatthewutmd
of Abbey—Hulme church, where there are twg niches
the arches and pinnacles of which are ornamented
~with crockets, There are some remarkable churches
on the borders of Scotland, which have hitherto heen
little noticed; the towers of two of these, Nemgl:;
losh, near the western coast, and Burgh on the

near the Solway Firth, appear to have been very strong
and capable of affording protection to the inhabitants
of the villages upon any sudden invasion. The towei
of the church of Burgh on the Sands is strongly for.
tified, the walls on three sides being from six to seven
feet thick. The tower of Great Salkeld church was alsg
strongly fortified : at the entrance from the nave is
massy grated iron door, lined with oak; the chamber

the ground-floor is vaunlted, like those of Newton -Arlosh
and Burgh on the Sands. The Augustine' monks had ¢
priory at Carlisle, and another at Lanercost ; the Bene.
dictines had priories at St. Bees and Wetherall, both
cells to the abbey of St. Mary at York, and nunneries
at Armathwaite and Seton ; the Cistercians had abbeys

at Calder and Holme-Cultram ; the Black' friars had :
convent in Carlisle; and the Grey friars had one in the
same city, and another at Penrith, The dmrches ol
Greystock and Kirk-Oswald were coll “At Car
ligle there was an hospital for thirteen dedicutoc
to Bt, Nicholas, and at Wigton an 'hnnpitnl and frec
chapel, dedicated to St. Leonard.

A great trackway, probahly of British construction
extended from the banks of the Eamont to Carlislé
nearly in the line of the present turnpike road; and th
Maiden-way, from Kirby-Thore to Bewcastle, seems t
have been another British road. The p‘nnmpnl Romm
way, called the larger road: of Severus, may be trace(
very distinetly in the neighbouring county of Northum
berland, but disap; at Foultown, near the borders
it soon after becomes visible at Willowford, in Cumbe:
land, to the south of the works of Severus and A
i the road descends tlg
bank to the river, and ascends on. the other side; by |
tween High House and Walbours it is very co pounf
but a little way beyond the latter, whmthegrmd
been ploughed, itis completely lost for some miles; |
Watcheross, it is again discerned
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- which was originally a British, and afterwards a Roman,
city, The principal road, having crossed the Eske at
Longtown, runs through the centre of Solway moss,
passes the Sark at Barrowslacks, and through the Pro-
cestriim of the Roman camp at Burrens, in its course to
the northern vallum. A third road, called the Maiden-
way, may be traced among the moors on the eastern
border of the county: it leaves the Roman road at
Kirby-Thore, passes between Crossfell and Kirkland,
erosses Blackburn, and, running within two miles west
of ‘Alston - Moor, enters Northumberland, bearing for
“Whitley castle, a well known station in that county, and
thence to Carvorran : it passes the Roman wall at Dead-
water, and, re-entering Cumberland, proceeds towards
the station at Bewcastle, which it leaves a little to the
left; then, under the name of the Wheel causeway,
crossing the Kirksop, enters Scotland. No less than
three Roman roads diverge in different directions from
Ellenborough, the station above Maryport; one of these
is very distinct two or three miles beyond Allonby, and
again near Old Mawburgh, and, where last seen, evi-
dently points for Bowness. A second military way from
the same station has been traced with more certainty to
the Roman town at Papcastle, near Cockermouth. The
third crosses the road from Crosby to Cross-Cannonby,
traverses Allerby, passes over Outerside common,
through Baggray, Bolton pasture, and Shaking bridge,
and by Red Dial to the station at Old Carlisle, which it
leaves to the left, and, from the village beyond Thurshy,
proceeds in a direct line towards Carlisle cathedral. A
Roman road, which connected the stations of Ambleside
and Plumpton-wall, is visible at Kirkstone hill, and again
at Gowbarrow-park-head, near Ulswater ; it runs thence
between two hills, called Mill-fells, to the camp at Whit-
barrow, near the eighth milestone on the turnpike road
from Keswick to Peurith, which was a station between
the two Roman towns : it crosses this road in a direction
from south-west to north-eust, and was entire a few
years ago upon Greystock low moor, till it was convert-
ed into a modern road leading to Greystock ; then, after
baving made an inclination to the left, it continues in a
straight line towards Blencow, and is still visible in a
field two hundred yards north of Little Blencow, point-
ing at Couch-gate : leaving Kulbarrow to the south, it
runs throngh Cow-close and over Whitrigg, becomes
‘again visible at the edge of the road on Fair-bank, in
Low-street, and through the enclosures, to the south
gate of the station at Plumpton-wall, A Roman road
me from the station at Brougham, through Stainton
Whitbarrow, which was a post of some consequence,
Another of these roads passed in a direct line through
 Town-head and Wood-end estates, in the parish of
ont, the Cleator hall property, und close by the
of Cleator ; the estate of Todholes, and part of
f Warth, in the parish of Cleator ; across the pa-
‘Arlochden, and the township of Frisington ; the
- of Lamplugh, close by Lamplugh-Cross, and

ate, whence it approac
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y | hed Cockermouth in a
it line : this road is eighteen feet wide, and formed
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seen occasionally as a green bank until it res
ﬂmﬁqm_ at Burdoswald, a little to the west of A
the face of the wall appears in some places to the he
of about three feet and a half, consisting of five courses
of hewn stone, one of which is nine inches thick, and the
others eight. A great deal of the wall was laid opsn in
1807 and the following year, when Banks-Fell was en-
closed, and the lower parts of several of the watch towers
were discovered at Banks-head, but it was destroyed
for the sake of the muterials, except in n few places,
where some of the lower vourses of stone, serving as
the foundations of some modern fences, have been pre-
served. At Hare Hill, half a mile north of Lanercost
priory, a part of it remains, ten feet in height, and
fifteen in length, but no further traces are to be seen
above ground, till within about n mile of its termi-
nation on the Solway Firth, where a piece, several
hundred yards in length, and about three feet high’, is
standing at Kirkland, with a hedge on it; the facing
stones, however, have been removed. In following the
course of the wall from Northumberland through this
county, the station of Burdoswald, one of the most
remarkable un.the whole line, first occurs, its northern
side being formed by the wall, so that the garrison
could enter the country beyond by sallying out at its
northern gate : the ditch, gates, and rampart, enclose a
square of five or six acres, within which are the re-
mains of several buildings: the turrets on each side
of the south gate are still visible. Six miles and a
quarter further on is Castlesteads, or Cambeck fort,
about four hundred yards south of the wall; the situa-
tion is convenient, owing to its proximity to the river,
an advantage of which the Romans always availed them-
gelves, Three miles west of this is Watcheross : the
next station is at Stanwix, just opposite to Carlisle,
Burgh on the Sands, about four miles and a half from
Stanwix, was the Azelodunum of the Romans; urns,
altars, and inscriptions of that people have been fre-
quently found there. These stations were placed much
closer together on the west than on the east side of
the wall ; most probably with the view of preventing
the incnrsions of the Irish,

The castle of Carlisle, which stands at the north-
west angle of the city, is of an irregular form ; it was
originally erected by Willinm Rufus, but s of it are
of much more recent date, considerable additions and
repairs having been made in the reigns of Richard IIL.,
Henry VIIL., and Elizabeth. Egremont castle, which
was built by William de Meschines, soon after the Con-
quest, is in a very dilapidated state, the gateway being
the only part remaining. Cockermouth castle, the
greater part of which is in ruins, does not appear
to be older than the fourteenth century, though it
has been referred to a much earlier period. The
castle which stands within the site of the Roman
station at Bewcastle is a plain square tower, appa-
rently of great antiguity, but nothing certain is known
of its founder, or the period of its foundation. Na-
worth castle, which is in a very perfect state, was
erected in the reign of Edward 111, whenmm
Dacre, obtained the king's license to castellate the
mansion : it is chiefly in the style of the early part ¢
the sixteenth century, and built round a court Ir!s
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contains the private t of Lord William How- Anderby, in the afchdesconry and divoese of Lincolny
. ard, who resided here in the reign of Elizabeth and rated in the king's books at £10. 10, 2§, endowed

her successor, consisting of a library, chapel, and bed-
, . chamber, all of very small dimensions ; the entrance is
by a very strong door, well secured with iron- grating
and bolts. Nothing now remains of Kirk-Oswald cas-
tle, e a ruined tower and some fragments of walls
on a hill above the church, A great part of Millom
castle, which was fortified and embattled by Sir John
Huddlestone, in the year 13385, in pursuance of the
king's license, is still standing, but is not worthy of
particular notice. Of Rose castle, the residence of the
bishops of Carlisle, which was first castellated in 1336,
little of the ancient edifice now exists, except a gateway
and a large square tower. Scaleby castle was erected
about the year 1307, by Robert de Tilliol. The ruins
of Penrith castle excite but little interest. High-head
castle stands on the rocky precipitous bank of the Ive-
beck ; the embattled gate-house,*which serves as an
entrance to the more modern mansion, is all that re-
mains of the original structure. Dacre castle is a plain
square building, with four square turrets at the corners,
Askerton castle, of small dimensions, erected as a pro-
tection against the inroads of the bordérers, contains
nothing remarkable; the stables are vaulted. Grey-
stock castle was constructed soon after the year 1353,
when William de Greystoke had the king's license to
castellate his manor-house.
| The sulphuretted spring at Gilsland, so celebrated
for the cure of cutaneous disorders, has long been re-
sorted to on account of its valuable properties ; it con-
tains a considerable proportion of sulphur, a small
guantity of sea-salt, and a very little earth. There is a
trong sulphureous spring in the township of Biglands,
the parish of Aiktom, which is much weakened in
he winter by its mixture with fresh water. At Stan-
ger, two miles north of Lorton, is a saline spring,
nearly vesembling the Cheltenham water, which turns
white on the infusion of spirit of hartshorn, and pre-
cipitdates comsiderably on the application of oil of tar-
tar: a gallon of it will yield one thousand one hundred
and seventy grains of sediment, of which one thousand

~£200 private benefaction, and £200 royal bounty, and

in the pat:mn&of the Master and Fellows of |
lene College, bridge. The church is dedicatéd to
St. Helen, Ll
CUMBERWORTH, a chapelry partly in the parish
of Kirx-Burrown, upper division of the wapentake of
AGBriGa, but chiefly in the parish of SiLksTone, wat,
pentake of Staincross, West riding of the county of
Yonrk, 9 miles (S.E.) from Huddersfield, containing,'
with the township of Skelmanthorpe, 2451 inhabit-
ants. The chapel is dedicated to St. Nicholas. Here
are several manufacturers ef fancy goods. There is a
small endowment for a school. .
CUMDEVOCK, a township in the parish of Davs-
ron, ward and county of CuMBERLAND, 6 miles (8. 8,Ws)
from Carlisle, containing 333 inbabitants, .
CUMMERSDALE, a township in that part of the'
parish of St. Mary which is within the liberty of the
city of Carvisne, county of Cumserrann, 24 miles
(8. by w.) from Carlisle, containing 512 inhabitants,
CUMNER, a parish in the hundred “of Hormer,
county of Brrks, comprising the chapelry of Wootton,
the township of Cumner, the tythings of Botley, Brad-
ley, Chawley, Henwood, Hill-end, Stroud, Swinford,
and Whitley, and the liberty of Chilswell, and contain-
ing 1303 inhabitants, of which number, 508 are in the
township of Cumner, 5} miles (N.N.W.) from Abing-
don. The living is a discharged vicarage, in the arch-
deaconry of Berks, and diocese of Salisbury, rated in
the king's books at £24. 17., and in the patronage of
the Earl of Abingdon. The church is dedicated to St.
Michael : in the south transept are two ancient tombs
of abbots of Abingdon: they had formerly & residence
here, called Cumner hall, but few vestiges of it are now
to be seen. 1t is noted as the scene of the murder of
the Countess of Leicester, by the direction of her hus-
band, the favourite of Queen Elizabeth. There is a
small endowment for a school. A mineral spring here
was formerly in great repute, but is now disused.
CUMREW, a parish in EskparLe ward, county of
CumperLanD, 6 miles (N.) from Kirk-Oswald, com-
prising the townships of Cumrew-Inside and Cumrew=
QOutside, the former containing 148, and the latter 83,
inhabitants. The living is a pérpetual curacy, in the
archdeaconry and diocese of Carlisle, endowed with
£600 royal bounty, and in the of the Dean |
and Chapter of Carlisle. It is bounded on the east by
the river Gelt, and near it are the ruins of a |
castle, formerly belonging to the Dacres ; there are
several cairns, one of which, Carduneth,; on the su
of lcli.jﬂlliil of immense size,

WHINTON, a joint township with Con
in that part of the parish of WerarraL which is
Cumperrano ward, county of CumBERLAND,

(8. E. by E.) from Carlisle, 472
ants. There is a place of worship for Wes
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‘and diocese of Carlisle, endowed with £400
W.;?t;oﬂ bounty, ;n;'lcismp:;
,. t e of the Dean

Hte ofmcarlhle. The chmdedimd to St.
. On an eminence called “King Harry ' is &
nidical temple, the stones of which, ninety in number,
pliud in n cireular position, and the lines of
P “intrenchments may be traced on the com-
ihcn.

CUNDALL, a parish in the wapentake of HALLIKELD,
Ndl_ﬂ; riding of the county of Yomrk, comprising the
; of Cundall with Leckby, and Norton le Clay,
md cgntnming 312 inhabitants, of which number, 170
¢ in the township of Cundall with Leckby, 5 miles
(N. N. E.) from Boroughbridge. The living i# a vicarage,
n the archdeaconry of Richmond, and diocese of Ches-
r, rated in the king's books at £3. 6. 8., endowed with
£400 royal bounty, and £200 parliamentary grant, and
the patronage of N. Cholmley, Esq. The church is
licated to Saints. A school, in which thirty poor
Bhildren are educated, is supported by the proceeds of
the parish poor lands and subscriptions, in" addition to
a Small endoSgment,
CUNSALIL, a township in the parish of CaepoLe-
rox, northern division of the hundred of Tormonsrow,
sounty of Srarrorp, 34 miles (N. N. W.) from Cheadle,
ontaining 182 inhabitants.
CUNSCOUGH, a district in the parish of Havrsavrt,
hundped of WesT DeErBy, county palatine of Lawncas-
'ER, 4 miles (8. by E.) from Ormskirk. The population
s returned with the parish.
- OUPERNHAM, a tything in that part of the parish
of Romsey styled Romsey Exrra, bundred of King's
"Somupounx, Andover division of the county of Sovrn-
Amrrox, 1 mile (N. E.) from Romsey. The population
s returned with the pnnsh
CURBAR, a hamlet in the parish of BAkrwrLL,
_- mdred of Hicn Peak, county of Dersy, 1§ mile (E.
by 8.) from Stoney-Middleton, containing 392 inha-
hitants,
CURBOROUGH, & joint township with Elmhurst,
| that payt of the parish of St. Cuap, Licnrienp,
W ‘_‘- h is in the northern division of the hundred of
DW, umtyof Stavronrp, 2 miles (N.N.E.) from
d, containing 250 inhabitants.
OURBRIDGE o hamlet in the
undred of Bampron, county of
W. 5. W.) from Witney, containing 572 inhabitants,
here are six almshouses endowed with £110 per

sh of Wirney,
x¥orD, 2% miles

- CURDWORTH, a parish in the Birmingham divi-
o of the hundred of Hemrincrorp, county of Wan-
1G] ,3 miles (N. W. by N.) from Coleshill, containing,
b the township of Minworth, 555 inhabitants, The

-il a vicarage, in the archdeaconry of Coventry,
pse. of Lichfidd and Coventry, rated in the

¢ at £5, and in the pa of the Rev,
°le MG.B.Adderky.Elq The church is
o St.'. Vichuhs The Birmingham and

ual | thmngh this parnh, and ig con-

of Ampick

ter, containing 461 mhabltnnts. “The Iiving is a vec-'
tory, with the perpetusl curacy of Curland annexed, -
in the archdeaconry of Taunton, und diocese of Bath
and Wells, rated in the l:mgl books at £24. 1. 3.,
and in the patronage of the. Crown. The church is
dedicated to.All Saints. The act of pnlumw
in the 2od of Edward IIL, which vested the y
of Cornwall in the king's eldest son, annexed Cur’ -
Mallet to it, and it still continues a part thereof.
weekly market, and a fair annually on the eve, day,
and morrow of All Saints, were granted by Edward II.
to Hugh Poyntz, then owner of the manor, who, in
the 18th of the same reign, was summoned to par-
liament by the title of Lord Poyntz, Baron of Curry-
Mallet. -

CURRY (NOR’I‘H). parish (formerly o market
town) in the liundred of Norta Cunrny, county nf Sa- i
mERSET, 61 miles (E. by N.) from Taunton,
with the ty{]ungu of Knapp, Llllwtoue and erntl.ge
1645 inhabitants. The living is a uu’l&
with the perpetnal curacies of Stoke bt..Grcgory
Woest Hatch annexed, in the peculiar jurisdiction and pa-
tronage of the Dean and Chapter of Wells, rated in the
king’s books at £21. The church is dedicated to St.
Peter and St. Paul. There are places of worship for Parti-
cular Baptists and Wesleyan Methodists. This pldve
appears to have been mot unknown to the Romans,
an urn containing a quantity of thdesilver coins of
that people having been discovered in 1748 : it was
subsequently held by the Saxon kings, and retained
in demesne by the Conqueror. King Jobn granted
it & market, which was formerly held on Wednesday
but has been long discontinued. The mh river
Tone passes in the vicinity. Newport, i
anciently [mseao.ed the privileges and oﬂicm
porate town, and is still called & boroughg |thadaluol
chapel.

CURRY-REVELL, a parish in the hundred of «
Arpick and Buwsrons, county of Somerser, 24 miles
(W.8.W.) from Langport, containing 1192 inhabitauts.
The living is a vicarage, with Weston, in the archdea- |
oom'yof Taunton, and diocese of Bath and Wells, '
rated in the king's books at £13. 16. 04., and in the
patronage of the Earl of Chatham. e church is
dedicated to St. Andrew. This parish contains several
quarries of blue limestone and white lyas, in which
bivalve shells of different sorts are frequently foungd.
Fairs for cattle and s are held on the Monday next
after Lammas and the 6th of August, The house and
beautiful grounds of Burton-Pynsent, once the
and residence of the celebrated Earl of Chatham, who
enjoyed the title of Viscount Pitt of Burton-Pynsent,
add greatly to the lntaestingmuyofthtl neigh-
bwé’ﬁ"lgv pasish.ta.the bundred of KERnign, county

» :
of CORNWALL, “miles (8, 8.L.) from Helstgn, con-
taining 505 ts. The

ct.I‘-cy, lmnd to the wﬁvh&h




rish dn the west. .
e . ISOP, a parish in the lnmdmd of Emsmcr,
i y of HErEPORD, 2 mﬂutn.sn}fromﬁwm-
266 inhabitafits. The i isa
~_.tory, in the archdeaconry and diocese of l'lted
5‘;?-7 king's books at £5.19. 7., endowed with £200
_ private benefaction, and Em‘mplbounty and in the
 patronage of the Earl of Oxford. The church is dedi-
s Om.twﬂinthntpartofthe of
18T-A which«s in the southern division of the
‘ ed of GreENEOE, county of Norrork, 43 miles
o .w.) from Swaffham. The population is returned
g:nnh. Here are the ruins of a chapel, dedi-
*‘cmdto Thomas 2 Becket, to have been
founded by the monks of W, priory, who re-
ceived te hold a fair annually on the 7th
of July : connected with it was a house, the residence of
@ custos ndoneortvomnks who were mgnged in

\ chapel. .
Bt MBE, a parish in the hundred Cumnp-
. Tox, county of Sunn.m. 53 miles (8. W. by 8.) from
Dm,mhhlngm:nhbltanm The living is a vicar-
mvﬂhﬂwpup?lemcyoﬂmxbmougbmnexed in
¥ Taunton, and diocese of Bath and
m rated in the king's books at £14.0.74., and in
of the Crown. The church is dedicated
St.lolm. A school was founded and endowed, in 1720,
hl Richard Elsworth, in which from fifty to sixty chil-
_ instructed. Dunkery, the highest mountain in
ﬁc western counties of England, is in this parish, on
- the it of which are the ruins of several large
hearths belonging to the beacons formerly erected on
this elevated spot, to alarm the country in times of civil

in that part of the pa-

' rish of Brepo whhh in the upper division ofthe
 hundred of Oﬂm.mw, of Wonrcesrten,
| though locally in the upper division of the’ hundred

E-'
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. living is a discharged rectory, in the

conry of Oxfe

king's books at £9. 10, 5., and inthe qg.&
Warden and Fellows of n!m F‘m
church is degiuted to the ilhol st
* . CUXTON, a parish in the hundred n:?,l
Iathe of AyLrsFORD, county of KenT, 24 miles *‘
from Roches'er, containing 384 inhabitants, The living
is a rectory, n the archdeaconry and diocese of Roches- «
ter, rated in the 's books at £14.15. 5, and'in the
patronage of the Bishop of Rochester. The church. ii.
dedicated to St. Michael. ‘N

CUXWOLD, a parish in the wapentake of Bm:.n-
Haverstox, parts of Linpsey, county of Lincoun, 4
miles (E.) from Caistor, containing 60 inhabitants. Tb:
an
diocese of Lircoln, rated in the king's books at £ 5. 7.6._
endowed with £200 royal bounty, and in the

of H. Thorold Esq. The church is dedicated to S‘t

mholas

CWMCARVAN, a parish in the upper division of -
the hundred of RacrLann, county of Moxmourn, 3%
miles (8.8.W.) from Monmouth, containing 293 inhabit-
ants.  The living is u perpetual curacy, annexed to the
rectory of Mitchel-Troy, in the archdeaconry and q.locue
of Llandaff. ;

CWMYOY,a parish partly in the hundred of Ewru-
Lacy, county of Hererorp, and partly in the lower
division of the hundred of AnErGavenny, county of
Monmovurn, 84 miles (N. by W.) from Abergavenny
containing, with the townships of Bwlch and Toothog,
679 inhabitants. The living is a curacy, in
the are of Brecon, und diocese of St. David, ¥
endowed with £200 private benefaction, and £400 royal
bounty, and in the patro of — Lander, The
church is dedicated to St. Michael. Soon the

_ year 1108, a priory, dedicated to St. John thesxﬂ,ls .
and afterwards

known' by the name of Llantony abbey,
was founded here by Hugh Lacy, for canons of
the order of £it. A e, many of whom, by reason
of the privations and hardships which they sustained
mthisplnceremovedﬂrsttotheephmpﬂlpﬂ!mn
Hereford, and afterwards, in 1136 to a place
Gloucester, 1 afwofthﬁh'breﬂ:wutthn
nalnuttlemmtut tony, whose revenue,

of Henry VIIL, was estimated at abaut
mains, which are nearly in the centre of
in a tolerable ofypruerntlon.




